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INTRODUCTION.

The District of Columbia appropriation act, approved June 11, 1896,
contained the following provision:

¢“And it is hereby declared to be the policy of the Government of
the United States to make no appropriation of money or property for
the purpose of founding, maintaining, or aiding by payment for serv-
ices, expenses, or otherwise, any church or religions denomination,or any
institution or society which is under sectarian or ecclesiastical control;
and it is hereby enacted that, from and after the thirtieth day of June,
eighteen hundred and ninety-seven, no money appropriated for chari-
table purposes in the District of Columbia shall be paid to any church
or religious denomination, or to any institution or society which is
under sectarian or ecclesiastical control.

«“That a joint select committee is hereby authorized, to consist of
three Senators to be appointed by the rresiding ofticer of the Senate,
and three Members of the House of Representatives to be appeinted
by the Speaker of the House, which select commmittee shall make inves-
tigation of the charities and reformatory institutions of the District of
Coluinbia, and especially of those for which appropriations are made
by this act, as respects their relations to the government of the District
of Columbia and to the United States, whether by special charter or
otherwise, their efliciency. their management and resources, whether
by appropriations, investments, or otherwise, and also what portion, if
any, of appropriations heretotore made to them have been used for the
purpose of maintaining or aiding by payment for services, expenses, or
otherwise any church or religious denomination or any institution or
society which is under sectarian or ecclesiastical control; whether such
charitable or reformatory institutions are effective and economical in
their organization, methods, and expenditure to provide for the poor
and destitute in the District of Columbia; whether it is practicable for
the Commissioners or other authority in the District to make contracts
or to otherwise provide for such care of the poor and destitute with any
of said institutions, and if so, which of them and to what extent, within
the limitations of the policy hereinbefore declared; and if not, the
probable expense of providing and maintaining public institutions for
such purpose.

“Said committee shall make report as soon as practicable after the
beginning of the next session ot the present Congress, including in
such report any changes by them deemed advisable as respects the
methods of dealing with the charities and the reformatory institutions
of said District.

“Said committee is authorized to sit during the recess, and the nec-
essary expenses of the committee, including clerical and stenographic
work, shall be paid out of the contingent funds of the Senate and
House of Representatives, jointly, on the certiticate of the chairman of

the committee,”
11X



v INTRODUCTION.

The joint select committee provided for as above did not orgunize
until February 21, 1897, too late to make a report to the Filty-fourth
Congress. The District appropriation act approved March 3, 1897,
repeats the declaration of policy stated in the first paragraph quoted
above, and provides further:

“That the joint select committee, authorized by the act making
appropriations for the expenses of the government of the District of
Columbia for the fiscal year ending June thirtieth, eighteen hundred
and ninety-seven, to make inquiry and report concerning the charities
and reformatory institutions of the District of Colunbia, are hereby
continued during the Fifty-fifth Congress, with all the powers and
duties imposed upon them by said act. -And any vacancies which may
oceur in the membership of said committee by expiration of service or
otherwise of any Senator shall be filled by appointment by the presid-
ing ofticer of the Senate,and any vacancies which may occur by reason
of the expiration of service of any House members of said committee
shall be filled by appointment to be made by the Speaker of the pres-
ent House of Representatives from Members-elect to the House of
Representatives ot the Fifty-fifth Congress; and any vacancies which
may occur by reason of death or resignation of any House member
shall be filled by appointment to be made by the Speaker of the House
of Representatives for the time being; and said committee shall have
authority to sit during the recess, and shall make report as soon as
practicable after the beginning of the first session of the Fifty-fifth
Congress: Provided, That the clerk designated by the committee may
be paid for clerical services such compensation as may be fixed by the
committee in addition to any salary he may be receiving.”

Part I of the report of the joint select committee, submitted at this
time, includes the hearings held by the joint select conmittee, the finan-
cial statements of the various institutions, the reports from the mayors
of cities as to appropriations for charitable and reformatory purposes,
and suggestions as to a board of charities,
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SCHEDULE FOR HEARINGS BEFORE THZ JOINT. SELECT COMMITTEE
ON CHARITIES AND REFORMATORY INSTITUTIONS IN THE DISTRICT

OF COLUMBIA. »

FIRST HEARING.

The general subject of the Charities of the District of Colnmbia.

To be heard: The Commissioners of the District of Columbia; the relief com-
mittee of 1896-97; the Associated Charities; the charities committee of the board
of trade; the superintendent of charities; the ofticers of the Civic Center.

TOPICB.

fl.h'l‘ha method of distributing the annual appropriation of $13,000 for the relief
of the poor. .

2. The extent and character of the relief work supported by subscription.

3. The need and method of investigating the applications for relief.

4. The proper organization of the charities of the District of Columbia.

5. Should relief be confined to bona fide citizens of the District of Columbiat

SECOND HEARING.

Subject: Reformatory Institutions.
To be heard: The oflicers of the Reform School for Boys; the officers of the Reform
School for Girls.
TOPICS.

1. The work of ths Reform School for Boys and needs of the institution.

2. Management of the school and extent of the supervision exercised by the
Department of Justice.

3. Should the control be transferred to the District authorities?

4. The work of the Reform School for Girls.

6. Does the school provide for all necessary cases?

6. Conditions of the most economical management.

7. What becomes of boys and girls discharged from these schools?

THIRD HEARING.

Subject: The Insane; The Deaf and Dumb; The Feeble-minded.
To be heard: Dr. Godding, of St. Elizabetix’s; Dr. Gallaudet, of Kendall Green;

Mr. Lewis, of the Board of Children’s Guardians.
TOPICS,

1. The provisions for the care of the District insane and the method of commitment.

2. The deaf and damb of the District at Kendall Green.

8. The feeble-minded; in what institutions placed; comparative cost at various
institutions; increase or decrease in the number of cases.

4. The need of an institution for inebriates.

FOURTH HEARING.

Subject: Dependent Children.
To be heard: Officersof the Board of Children’s Guardians; ofticers of the Humane

Society; judges of District courts. .
TOPICS,

1. What children are, propérly speaking, dependent; and what are the daties of
t

the District toward such as are dependent
2. Has the District a duty toward children not officially declared dependent?

3. Methods of taking up dependent children; the limits of guardianship.
4. The proper training for dependent children.

5. The disposal of dependent children; in homes; in boarding places.

8. The need of visitation in the case of children placed out.
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FIFTH HEARING.

Subject: Dependent Children; Institutional Training.
To be heard: Officers of the Board of Children’s Guardians; officers of the Indus-
trial Home School; officers of the National Association for the Relief of Destitute

Colored Women and Children; officers of the Humane Society.
TOPICS,

1. The facilities offered by aided District institutions to care for dependent children.
2. What coordination of existing institutions and agencies is possible and desirable
(a) for taking up children, (b) for training children, (¢) for placing out and visiting

children.
3. Changes in existing institutions necessary to adapt them for the oare of all

dependent children, properly so called.
. Industrial training for dependent children.
5. The possibility of securing homes.

SIXTH HEARING.

Subject: Dependent Children; Foundlil;fa.
‘To be heard: Officers of the Children’s Hospital; officers of the Washington Hos-

ital for Foundlings; officers of St. Ann’s Infant Asylum; officers of the Board of

hildren’s Guardians.
TOPICS.

1. The work of the foundling institutions in the District of Columbia.
2. Extent to which public aid may properly be granted.

3. Mortality.

4. Placing out and adoption of children.

6. Visitation of children.

6. Private foundling asylums.

SEVENTH HEARING.

Subjeot : De(;)endent Children; Charity.

To be heard: Officers of the German Orphan Asylum; officers of the Church
Urphanage of St. John’s Parish; officers of St. Roso Industrial School; officers of
8t. Jaseph’s Male Orphan Asylum; officers of the Newsboy’s and Children’s Aid

Society.
TOPICS.

1. May pablic funds properly be used to support sectarian or private institutions?
2. Where grants of public money are made, ought not the District to have the
right to place dependent children in the institution so aided?
. What would be the effect of carrying out the declared policy of Congress to
make no appropriations of money to sectarian institutions?
p 4. I:loes th: policy of taking children from and returning them to parents stimulate
ependency
" 5. }Vhat becomes of children discharged from the sectarian and private institu-
ions
6. What is the length of time children are maintained at pubiic expense, and is
the expense per child unduly large?

EIGHTH HEARING.

Subject: Hospitals for Special Classes.
To be heard: Officers of the Emergency Hospital; officers of Columbia Hospital;

officers of the Home for Incurables; officers of the Eastern Dispensary.

TOPICS,

1. Hospital work done by the hospitals.

2. Comparative cost of maintenance in Washington and other cities.

3. Income from patients. :

4. Do persons come to Washington to secure free treatment at District expense?
g. The training of nurses as m:rt of hospital work.

Connection between hospi and colleges of medicine,
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NINTH HEARING.

Subject: General Hospitals. v
To be heard: Officers of the Homeopathic Hospital ; officers of Garfield Hospital;

officers of Freedman’s Hospital; officers of Providence Hospital,
TOPICS.

1. Is there duplication in the work of the District hospitals?
2. Why should not the District share the expense of Garfield Hospital?
3. Should the work of the hospitals be supervised by District authorities?
I te ?ho’nld the control of Freedmen’s Hospital remain with the Secretary of the
nterior
6. Contagious diseases in hospitals.,
6. Trainiug schools for nurses.
7. The salaries of the hospital staff.

TENTII HEARING,

Subject: Charitable Work for Young Women.

To be heard: Officers of the Woman’s Christian Association; officers of Yonng
Woman’s Chris:jan Home; officers of the Association of Works of Mercy; officers of
the Hope and lelp Mission; officers of the House of the Good Shepherd.

. TOPICS,

1. Temporary homes for young women seeking employment,

2. The need of several institutions.
8. The work of the House of the Good Shepherd and similar institutions.

4. How far should this work be maintained by the public?

ELEVENTH HEARING.

Subject: Men Out of Work. )
To be heard: Officers of the Municipal Lodging House; officers of the Central
Union Mission ; officers of the Temporary Home for ex-Union Soldiers and Sailors.
\
TOPICS.

1. Growth of the work as shown by the growth of the Municipal Lodging House.
2. How far is the municipality to go in furnishing work for the unemployed ¢

3. Do the lodging houses encourage tramps?

4. 8hould the work in the District be extendedt






FIRST HEARING.

THE GENERAL SUBJECT OF CHARITIES IN THE DISTRICT OF
: - COLUMBIA,

APRIL 7, 1897—2 o’clock p. m.

Present: Hon. James McMillan, chairman, Hon. Thomas S. Martin,
Hon. Mahlon Pitney, Hon. 8. A. Northway.

Mr. McMILLAN, The matter to be discussed this afternoon is the
general subject of the charities of the District of Columbia. The first
to be heard, according to our schedule, are the Commissioners of the
District of Columbia. We have received from them a written report to
be filed here. If anyone desires to see it he can do so. It covers the
ground we want.

The report of the Commissioners of the District of Columbia referred

to is as follows:
THE FUND FOR THE RELIEF OF THE POOR.

OFFIOE COMMT:SIONERS OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA,
Washington, April 7, 1897.

DEAR SIR: The Coa nis3ioners of the District of Columbia have the
honor to acknowledge receipt of a letter from Mr. Charles Moore, clerk
of your committee, inviting them, or their representative, to appear
beiore your committee at 2 o’clock to-day, or to make a written state-
ment with regard to the method of distributing the annual appropria-
tion of $13,000 for the relief of the poor.

The Commissioners have thought that a written statement might be
more concise and satisfactory than an oral statement, and therefore
submit the following:

The allotment of this fund made for the relief of the poor for the
current fiscal year is as follows:

For physicians to the Poor.........ocivicieiiencriencenracncvenecnanens $7, 200
For medicines and printing prescriptions for physicians to the poor........ 8, 700
For the Women’s Dispensary.......ccececeveeireainccanececcnonacncensonns 500
For the Aged Women’s HOIme. ..cc.vveetviueinieenoiecneeanteotecnoncncnnes 300
For coffins for the indigentdead...........coiiemimnriirieeiiieiecennns 300

For emergency relief of cases investigated through the police departmnent
‘on order of the Commissioners of the District of Columbia, on recommenda-
tion of the superintendent of charities to be distributed in provisions, fuel,

or clothing, by the Police..cececeseaiscnnscecnsreccaccascecccrracanecanns 1,000
13, 000

1




8 CHARITIES AND REFORMATORY INSTITUTIONS.

The item of 87,200 for physicians to the poor is the same amount
which has been named for the same purpose for many years. Formerly
14 physicians were employed, at the rate of £40 per month. It having
been ascertained that this number of physicians could not adeguately
cover the territory of the District, instead of 15 physicians at $40 per
month, 20 physicians were employed at $30 per month. That has been
the number employed for the past three years. They are paid only for
the time actually employed. If absent, from sickness or otherwise, pay
is deducted for the time lost. According to the estimate of the health
officer, made in his annual report for the year 1896, page 11, the average
cost for patients for medical attendance has been 46 cents, but if the
number of visits and office consultations be taken into consideration,
the average amount received by each physician per visit or office con-
sultation has been but 25 cents. The duties of these physicians are
outlined in instructions issued to them by the health officer, a copy of
which is hereto appended. .

The item of $3,700 for medicines and printing prescriptions for phy-
sicians to the poor is the same amount which has been allotted for this
purpose annually at least as far back, as 1874, Eighteen druggists to
the poor are appointed, who are paid by the District for goods actually
furnished, in accordance with an agreement signed by the druggists
(a copy of which is hereto attached), from which it will be seen that
the average cost of the prescriptions filled by the druggists is between
15 and 20 cents.

The allotment to the Women’s Dispensary of $500 is to an institu-
tion located at Four-and-a-half street and Maryland avenue, SW. The.
building is owned by the trustees of the Minor Institute, an association
of public-spirited citizens who receive a fund for the education and care
of colored youth. As will be seen by the report of the secretary of
that institution, contained on pages 293 and 294 of the Report on Chari-
table and Reformatory Institutions of the District of Columbia for the
year 1896, no salaries are paid to anyone in that institution except the
sum of $10 per month to an apothecary. Having no regular appropri-
ation for its benefit, the Commissioners deemed it proper to devote the
$500 to its laudable purposes from the fund for the relief of the poor.
Dr. Joseph Taber Johnson is president of the board of directors.

The Aged Women’s Home is sitnated at 1255 Thirty-second street,
NW. Mrs. B. Kennon is president, and Miss N. A. Riley is secretary
and treasurer. Thirteen aged poor women. are taken care of in this
bome, as appears from the report of the superintendent of charities for
1895, page 311. The only certain income ‘had for this institution is
$144 per annum from invested moneys, making, with the public funds
received, a total of $444, and their annnal expenditure is about $600,

The item of $300 for coffins for the indigent dead is an allotment
which merely pays for the material from which the coffins are made,
the labor being all furnished by inmates of the Washington Asylum.
The coffins are furnished only to persons whose families or relatives
are wholly without means to provide for their burial.

The last item explains itself. During the inclement seasons of the
year cases of great destitution and of immediate urgency are relieved
upon reports made as to their condition by members of the police force.
The money is used wholly for the purchase of provisions, fuel, and
clothing, and the Commissioners have regarded these expenditures as
having been carefully and satisfactorily made. It may be proper to
advise your committee that there is another fund disbursed by the
superintendent of police for the same purpose, namely, the interest on
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the amount, $26,000, received March 18, 1889, from the executive com-
mittee of the inaugural ceremonies of March 4, 1889. This principal
is invested at 6 per cent per annum and yields annually $1,560. The
Commissioners have within the past few days also received from the
committee having in charge the late inaugural ceremonies the sum of
7,000, which will be invested in the same way for the same purpose.
If any further or other information is desired by your committee, the
Commissioners will take pleasure in furnishing the same upon request.

Very respectfully
’ JonN W. Ross,
President Board of Commissioners, District of Columbia,

Hon. JAMES MCMILLAN,
‘Chairman Joint Select Committee to Investigate Charities
and Reformatory Institutions in the District of Columbia.

PHYSICIANB TO THE POOR.

HeavTn DEPARTMENT, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA,
Washington, ———y ——, 189—,

ﬂ

S1r: You have been appointed to the responsible position of physician to the
poor, of which you have.been duly notified. You will be expected and required,
therefore, to attend promptly and faithfully at the call of the sick poor in your
district, to vaccinate free such of the poor as may need vaccination, to investigate
cases of death occurring without the attendance of a physician, or casés where it is
impossible toobtain a physician’s certificate, and to perform such other duties as may
be assigned to you. You will keep a full record ot your work and make weekly
returns to this office each Monday, in person, upon blanks provided for that purpose.

A sick pauper entitled to your attention should be a resident of the District of
Columbia, J»ermnnently or temporarily without the means of support, and in such
bodily condition by reason of disease as to require medical treatment. Cases able
to visit dispensaries for treatment should be referred to one of those institutions.
When in doubt as to the worthiness of the patient you should exercise your own
best judgment, always leaning to the side of humanity, and considering the income
of such patient in reference to the uses to which it must be ap]";lied. Cases requir-
ing your care and not provided with suitable accommodations should be reported at
once to this office.

Especial attention should be paid to the prompt and accurate diagnosis of con-
tagious diseases and to their proper isolation and treatment. When the diagnosis
in such cases is doubtful you should apply at once to this departmeut for aid in
determining the nature of the disease. Arl sore throats suspected of being diph-
theritic should be investigated bacteriologically and the serum treatment adopted
in all cases of true diphtheria. This department will make the necessary bacteri-
ological examinations and furnish assistance in the use of antitoxine when desired.

Cases of death investigated by you, pursuant to your instructions above, if sudden
or due to other than natural causes, or if the cause of death can not he determined
should be referred without delay to the coroner; otherwise they should be certified
to, indicating that the death did not occur in your practice.

The followiug prescriptions are believed to be adequnte to the requirements of the
sorvice, in the quantities designated, but larger quantities may be ordered when
necessary, specifying in such cases on the prescription the need for such special
Preacription and having in view at all times the economical conduct of the work.
Tablet triturates will be furnished to those desiring them to be nused supplementary
to the regular prescriptions,

Tinctures (standard), 2 ounces.

Mixtures, including sirups, 2 ounces. -

Decoctions and infusions, one-half pint.

Pills, 6. Suppositories, 3.

Powders, 10. -Ointments, one-half ounce.

Blisters, 2 by 4 inches.

Antidiphtheritic serum and vaccine virus can be obtained at the health office.

Obstetric cases should receive your prompt attention, especially when y~u are
called in cases of emergency to render necessary aid to a midwife in attendance;
other cases may be referred to this department, which will make such arrangements
as may be possible with one of the out-of-door lying-in dispensaries now operating

in this city.
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Your district will be known as the sanitary division, and will comprise all
that portion of the District of Columbia bounded.

H2ALTH DEPARTMENT, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA,
Washington, D. C., — 189—.

The undersigned hereby agrees to furnish at prices not to exceed fifteen (15) cents
for each and every prescription, medicines of best quality, inclnding cinchona and
its alkaloids, properly prepared and put up, upou prescriptions of the physicians to
the poor for the sanitary division, agrecably to the following provisions:

Tinctures (standard), one prescription not to call for larger quantities than two
ounc+s.,
* Mixtures, including syrups, not to call for larger gnantities than two ounces.

Decoctions and infusions, not in larger quantities than one-half pint.

Pills, not more than six. Powders, not-more than ten.

Ointments, not more than one-half ounce.

Suppositories, nut more than three.

Blisters, not larger than 2 by 4 inches.

Provided, that in cases where special prescriptions are ordered when their con-
stituents are exyensive, or the quantities greater than those designated above, the

price allowed will be proportionate to the standard price.
I also agree to furnish the health officer on the first day of each week a statement

of my account upon blanks provided for that purpose, to be certified by him to the
Commissioners of the District off Columbia for payment.

.

———

THE ASSOCIATED CHARITIES.

Mr. McMILLAN. The next to be heard is the representative of the
Associated Charities. Is anyone here to represent them?

Mr. GEORGE S. WILSON. Yes, sir; I am secretary of the Associated
Charities. A report has been filed here by the Associated Charities,
and I might say that in general our views are expressed in that report.
Whether the committee desires me to elaborate or dwell at length upon

it I do not know.
Mr. McMiLLAN. Mr. Wilson, you are at the head of the Associated

Charities, are you not?

Mr. WILSON. No, sir; I am the executive head; I am the secretary.
The board of directors are the managers in authority. :

Mr. MCMILLAN. What is the practical character of your work?

Mr. WiLsoN. The character of work is an effort to bring about coop-
eration among the charities of the community, both publicand private.
In order to do that we hold that in every case of application for relief
of any kind, whether to an institution or out-door relief, the circum-
stances should be thoroughly examined to ascertain what kind of relief
"i8 required, if any, and then to find the proper source of such relief and
have it properly applied. If a central bureau of this kind is main-
tained we believe that the duplication of charities can be prevented
to a large extent. No matter how efficient each organization may be
in its own work, duplication is apt to oceur. This, you might say, is
almost the universal experience of all associated charities or societies
for organizing charities, variously denominated, which have been
formed in large cities and been in operation for ten, fifteen, and some
twenty years. '

Our society operates along the same lines as the majority of these
societies. We are interested in the whole field; we look at the whole
ficld. In and of ourselves we are nothing. Any case, no matter what
it is, may be referred to us and properly referred to us, and it becomes
our duty to find the mcans of relief and have it applied. So that we
look at the field in the very broadest possible way and from the broadest
possible standpoint, because there is no organization or institution
which we may not, apd do frequently, apply to in the course of our work.
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Mr. McMILLAN. It is not the practice of your association to furnish
money ?

Mr. WiILsON. No, sir.

Mr. McMiILLAN, You furnish persons with positions or help them to
ositions? .

Mr. WILSON. Yes, 8ir.

Mr. McCMILLAN., And you have no means furnished you for general
relief purposes? i )

Mr. WiILsoN. No, sir, In gencral we procure relief through the
incorporated agencies already in existence.

Mr. McMILLAN. Through all the other charities?

Mr. WILsON. Yes, sir; we try to help the other agencies to do the
work better and more economically. Our expenses we estimate at about
87,500 a year.

Mr. McMILLAN. Is that all raised from private sources?

Mr. WILsON. Yes, sir.,

Mr. McMILLAN. With no assistance from the Government?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; and we do not ask any. We believe we
can do the work better. We think we have the confidence of the
community in which we work.

Mr. McMILLAN. You do not propose to exercise any oversight over
these different charities. You simply work in harmony with them?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; the board of trade has recommended in their
report that that oversight should properly belong to a board of charities
with a wider field of work than we have—a board which would corre-
spond to State boards of charities and in some cases to municipal
boards. During the last ten or fifteen years many of such boards have
been formed in New York and Massachusetts and other States—a large
number of them—and those States which bave not these boards are
gradually forming them. We believe that the charities of the District
should properly belong to such a board as that, composed of members
nominated by some publi¢ authority and to serve without compensation,
These boards, so far as I know, have worked very satisfactorily and in
every case have effected some improvement in the charities of the com-
munity in which they exist, because they are composed of men who have
the confidence of the community, men willing to give their time to the
work because they are interested in it, and their recommendations have
great weight with the legislatures or municipal authorities.

I know in Ohio, where I worked for some years, the recommenda-
tions of the State board have the greatest weight with the State legis-
lature, and through that board many reforms have been established.
We believe that the recommendations of the board of trade that the
charities of the District could be better managed by such a board are
correct. Snch a board would properly have the consideration of all the.
minor details which the Congress of the United States is now troubled
with from year to year. I just called the attention of some of the gen-
tlemen this morning to the report of the superintendent of charities for
thepastyear. Asyouwillsee by reference to pages 5 and 6,the Congress
of the United States, the appropriating authority, is urged to grant a
specialappropriation because somebuildings here havebeen damaged by
storm. I could pick out three private corporations in this list receiving
public funds controlled by private authorities which ask for a deficiency
appropriation because a storm injured their buildings to the extent
of $25. Large private corporations come to the Congress of the United
States and trouble you gentlemen; and the time of Congress is taken
up year after year with small or comparatively small items of District
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charities, and we think until there is a board to pass nupon these mat-
ters it will be very difficult for Congress to avoid this trouble, which it
has had from year to year. I do not know whether there is any ques-
tion any member of the committee would like to ask me in relation to
our own work. It would be impossible to go into the matter in detail.

Mr. NorTawAY. Take an individual case.

Mr. WiILsON. First we examine the circumstances of a case when an
application is made for relief, and then determine which should be the
proper and natural source for the relief. For instance, cases have come
to me of \¥dd Fellows. Of course the order helps bona fidle members
of their loiges. We go to the lodge quietly about the case, and they
say they are glad we brought it to their attention. The person might
belong to a strong church, and you know it is very generally claimed
that the well-to-do churches care for their own poor. 1 ask them to
care for the case. There is a large residuum that does not belong
to any of these organizations, and this field has been occupied in Wash-
ington by the general relietf committee.

Mr. McMiLLAN. You go around until you get some organization to
take care of that individual?

Mr. WiLsoN. Yes, sir.
- Mr. McMILLAN. You have no power to contract for the care of that
individnal so as to bind anyone? .

Mr. WILSON. No, sir; we do not use or take public money.

Mr. MARTIN. In your duties you have investigated all the charities

of the District of Columbia?

Mr. WiLsoN. No, sir.
Mr. MCMILLAN. No; they have nothing to do with that. Theysimply

investigate individual cases, IFor instance, if a person comes to your
house desiring help, and if you are not satisfied with the explanation
le makes, you are at liberty to send a letter to this association saying
that you would like to have an examination made of the person’s con-
dition or of his family, and this secretary will obtain and give you that
information. He will say to you that the person or family is worthy of
help or that he is not worthy of it, and if the Associated Charities say
he is worthy you will very likely help him or the family. I have found
it 8o in many cases.

Mr. WILsSON. There is no red tape. We have what is called a
‘“Golden Book Fund.” People come to us to contribute, and say, per-
haps, ¢ Here is a hundred dollars; you can use it for special cases where
you can not get other money.” There are cases reported to me, emer-
gency cases, and the money in this fund is used for these cdses of imme-
diate necessity. If you had experience, you would find that there are
very few people indeed who pass in an hour or two from a condition of
comfort to one of destitution.

There is one thing welike to insist npon, and that is that people who
are to be relieved should be bona fide residents of the District of

Columbia. .
Mr. MCMILLAN. Mr. Martin, do you desire to ask any questions?

Mr. MARTIN. No, 8ir; I think not.

Mr. MCMILLAN. Dr. Van Reypen, do you desire to add anything to
what the secretary has said?

Dr. VAN REYPEN. No,sir; I believe not. The secretary has advanced
the views of the board much better than I can, and I entirely concur
in his statements. We are a nonpartisan organization; we have noth-
ing whatever to do with church, creed, or condition. We simply want
to ascertain whether or not the person to be relieved is worthy of relief.
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That is the object—to eliminate frauds. We know that there are per-
sons applying for relief who are not worthy of it, and the elimination of
those cases is one of the objects of the Associated Charities.

THE CHARITIES COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRADE.

Mr. MoMILLAN. The next to be heard is the charities committee of
the board of trade. Is there anyone present in connection with the
board of trade?

Mr. B. T. JANNEY. Up to within about five years no special effort
was made to organize the charities of the District of Columbia. Since
that time very little progress has been made in that direction. The
superintendent of charities, while doing the best he could, seems abso-
lutely to have failed in that effort; and the board of trade have taken
up the matter and discussed it at length, aud have advised their com-
mittee to urge upon Congress the creation of a board of charities,
believing that a committee or board of the citizens of Washington could
better dispense the chariies or organize them than one single man,
The board of trade has discussed the matter from time to time for two
or three years. I do not know just what to say to you gentlemen fur-
ther than that, but that has been their effort and recommendation.

Mr. McMILLAN. Something like a State board !

Mr. JANNEY. Yes, sir; there are eighteen States that, up to within
two or three years, have had superintendents of charities. They have
abolished superintendents and put boards in their places, and we have
no instance where they have changed back to superintendents,

Mr., McMILLAN., What charities would they take in?

Mr. JANNEY. Everything in the District.

Mr. McMILLAN. Hospitals?
Mr. JANNEY. Not a controlling but an investigatory authority. The

board should be clothed with authority to investigate and make recoin-
mendations for appropriations and assistance when called upon for that

purpose.
Mr. McMiLLAN. They would decide, then, how much money each one

should have?
Mr. JANNEY. Yes, sir; when estimates were to be sent in they would

be referred to this board.

Mr. McMILLAN. And this board would then report to Congress,
through the Commissioners, that these institutions were entitled, in
their judgment, to assistance?

Mr. JANNEY. Yes, sir.

Mr. MoMiLLAN. Or whether they were not?

Mr. JANNEY. Yes, sir.
Mr. NorRTHWAY. Do you deal with charities practically at all?

Mr. JANNEY. No, sir; not as a board of trade.

Mr. NorTHWAY. In what way do you differ from the Associated
Charities in the line of investigation?

Mr. JANNEY. We do not do any investigating at all. This question
is simply taken up by the board of trade as a matter of public interest.

Mr. NORTHWAY. And you have a plan or suggestion for a board of
charities for the District of Columbia?

Mr. JANNEY. Yes, 8ir.

Mr. NorTHWAY. Have you that on paper, so that we can get your
ideas brietly -

Mr. JANNEY. No, sir. We have talked the matter over, and it is-our
opinion that a board of nine members would be about proper, with a
well-paid secretary, who should be an expert.



14 CHARITIES AND REFORMATORY INSTITUTIONS,

Mr. NoRTHWAY, How chosen?

Mr. JANNEY. By the Commissioners of the District.

Mr. NorTOwAY. Appointed by the District Commissioners?

Mr. JANNEY. Yes, 8ir. '

Mr. MOMILLAN. Mr. Macfarland, do you desire to present anything?

Mr. H. B. F. MAOFARLAND. The question of charities in the District
of Columbia is a 'very peculiar one, because there are Federal charities
and there are charities supported by private subscription—purely pri-
vate institutions—and we ot the committee on charities of the board of
trade, having a purely advisory function, having no control of the
charity work, have been investigating what would be the ideal system
if we could get it here. Two years ago we recommended to the board
of trade, and the board of trade adopted, resolutions declaring that it
was the sense of the board that Congress should abolish the office of
superintendent of charities and create a board of charities, which should
have supervisory control over all charity work in the District of Colum-
bia. Of course, that work divides itself into several classes. There is
first of all what is called the relief work--the outdoor relief work. The
opinion of the committee of the board of trade, and it is the general
opinion, is that outdoor relief should be left to the Associated Chari-
ties. They would probably be aided by the board of charities. Our
idea was that the members of that board should be the very best men
and women, if that was desired, in the District of Columbia, having the
confidence of the community and of Congress; and the thought was
that they would be able, by their advice and recommendations, to aid
every charitable work, but the Associated Charities has demonstrated its
entire competence to manage the outdoor relief work of Washington.

On that point I should like to say that our opinion would be that the
appropriation of $13,000 for the relief of the poor, made by Congress,
should be distributed underthe direction of the Associated Charities, as
it has been at times in the past. As to the second question, the extent
and character of the relief work, that is a question for them; and the
third. the need and method of investigating the applications for relief,
has already been answered by the Associated Charities. In regard to
the fifth topic, I think the relief should be confined to bona fide citi-
zens of the District of Columbia.

Now as to organizations. This board, as we conceive, would be per-
forming the duties which are really the duties of the Comnmissioners of
the District of Columbia, but which, under stress of time and work, they
can not properly attend to. This work would devolve upon this board
of charities, and having to give comparatively little attention to the
active outdoor relief work,inasmuch as that would be under the Asso-
ciated Charities, its special function would be to deal with the institu-
tions. They may be divided into two classes—institutions that have
child-caring work, and all the rest, the rest being largely hospitals.

As to child-caring work under the direction or supervision of the
board of charities, the Board of Children’s Guardians, which was cre-
ated for that purpose, should, in my judgment, have general supervi-
sion, and no child should be made a charge on the charity appropriatious
made by Congress until it had been made a ward, either permanent or
temporary, of the Board of Gardians, and subject to a proper court. '
As to the other institutions, the purposes of the board of charities would
oe supervision of their work and to bring them into harmony as far
as possible—to literally organize the charities of the District of
Columbia. They are now disorganized; that is, independent. Institu-
tions have grown up independently of each other, - Certain people get
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together and thiuk there is a need for a certain institution, and they
organize it, without consulting, perhaps, the institutions of similar char-
acter already established and in operation; and if these people have
sufficient acquaintance and influence they get it established, and per-
haps by and by they come to Congress and get appropriations if they
have sufficient personal and political influence. We think that the
board of charities ought to determine, as Mr. Janney has said, what
estimates for appropriations shall be submitted, and we hope that this
board would have the confidence of Congress, so that Congress would
accept its recommendations and not make appropriations except
through its recommendation. That, I think, outlines our plan in a
- rough way.

Mr. McMILLAN. How would this board be appointed according to
your plan?

Mr. MACFARLAND. By the Commissioners of the District ot Columbia.

Mr. MoMILLAN. But without pay?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir; without pay, but having a paid secre-
tary who would be an expert.

Mr. PIrNEY. Could you get them to serve without pay?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir; there would be no diftficulty about that.

Mr. McMILLAN. We have no trouble in Detroit in getting all the
members we want; and we get the best men.

Mr. P1rNEY. Let me ask you a question about the present Associated
Charities. That is a purely voluntary association, is it not?

Mr. MACFARLAND,. Yes, sir.

Mr. PrrNEY, It has no legal status except as an association of indi-
viduals mutually desirous of forwarding the work of charity?

Mr. MACFARLAND. No, 8ir.

Mr. PITNEY. Does your scheme propose that they sha'l have official
supervision of the charity work?

Mr. MACFARLAND. They shall do just what they are doing now, I
think the board of charities would recommend that this money appro-
priated for relief of the poor should be expended under the direction of
the Associated Charities.

Mr. P1TNEY. Would it not be well to give them some legal status?

Mr. MACFARLAND. I do not think so. The general relief committee,
simply by request of the Commissioners of the District, and without
any legal status whatever, collects and disburses large sums of money.
Some years ago, when my wife was chairman, or chairwoman, of the
committee, it raised $30,000 and expended it.

Mr. PITNEY. But that was for a temporary emergeney?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes,sir. Oune of the things which would beaccom-
plished by the proposed plan would be that all emergencies would be
pianued for in advance, and the work done much better than at present.

Mr. PITNEY. One thing I forgot. You would have to make the pow-
ers of the board.of charities very general and trust to the discretion
of the members of it to interpret and exercise them rightly and prop-
erly, because it would not be an official body, and yet it would have
some semiofficial standing, so to speak.

Mr. MACFARLAND. My own hope would be, and I think it is the
hope of the committee on charities of the board of trade, that by vir-
tue of its excellence, of the value of its public work, it would receive
and have the confidence and cooperation of all the people interested
in charitable work of every kind, and their advice would be taken.

Mr. PITNEY. It would be an arm or branch of the local government,
would it not—a sort of commission?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir.
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Mr. PITNEY. Appointed by and under supervision of the Commis-
sioners of the District?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir; and simply do what the Commissioners
would perform if they had the necessary time to spare.
¢ Mr. PirNEY. The Commissioners disburse this appropriation of

13,000t .

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir. I think 81,000 of itisdisbursed through
the police deparinent in cases of emergency or distress.

Mr. PiTNEY. Now, I believe you are somewhat familiar with the
Board of Children’s Guardians and their operations. What have you
to say of the sufficiency. of the powers of that Board—whether they are
sufficient to make the Board as you think it ought to be?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Asto that I would not undertake to say, for there
are details with which I am not acquainted. I am certain that they
have recommended changes in the law, but I can not say what they
are. No doubt the Board will speak for themselves.

Mr. PITNEY. Animportant recommendation which they have made
is that they be furnished with a building in which to take care of the
children who are their wards.

Mr. MACFARLAND, Yes, 8ir,

Mr. PiTNEY. That was part of the original scheme, but was stricken
out by Congress.

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir. In Minnesota and other States where
similar boards have been successfully tried they have what is practi-
cally a receiving home—a temporary place of keeping children until
they are prepared to go out into homes. The theory of the Board of
Guardians is that children should only be kept in institutions sufficiently
long to’ prepare them to go into homes. They must have family care
rather than institutional care; that is, they should be brought up by
families rather than by institutions.

Mr. McMILLAN. That is the plan in Michigan, but here this is done
by the Board of Guardians through different institutions.

Mr. P1rNEY. No, sir; I anderstand that the plan here is that the
street urchin or waif should be put into some institution under sys-
tematic care long enough to rub the dirt and street associations off’ of
him and out of him, and until he is prepared to go into a home and
take the home influences. They have no bailding here of their own,
ﬁud so use the buildings which are the property of publie ibstitutions

ere‘
Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, sir; I am a trustee of the Newsboys’ Aid
Society, and we get a number of the wards of the Board of Children’s
Guardians and keepthem for a longer or shorter time—keep them until
they are sent to homes; but it would be a very desirable thing for the
Board of Children’s Guardians to have their own institution, in which
they could prepare children for future homes.

Mr. NorTHWAY. If your scheme is carried out, are you prepared to
express an opinion whether it would promote the work of charity and
at a less cost per head?

Mr. MACFARLAND, Yes, 8ir; our hope is by coordinating all the
charities it will increase their efficiency and lessen the cost.

Mr. NorTHWAY. You have a plan in regard to distributing this
appropriation of $13,000. Do you say that that has not been satisfac-
torily done heretofore?

Mr. MACFARLAND. Of course that is a mere matter of opinion. No
system of almsgiving is efficient without such investigation and re-
ports as are made by the Associated Charities, and without the further
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work of the Associated Charities of making friendly visits to encour-
age self-help. My personal opinion is that any appropriation made by
Congress for what is called relief work would Le more efliciently dis-
bursed by the Associated Charities. Mr., Wilson calls my attention to
the fact that 87,200 were given to the physicians to the poor.

Mr. NoRTHWAY. Of the $13,0001

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, 8ir; "under the last apportionment. It was
not always so.

Mr. WiLSON. It coversthe physicians, and very little else. One thou-
sand dollars went foremergency relief direct. This money—the $13,000—
is appropriated for charities. It ought not to be appropriated in that
way. It creates a false impression that there is a fund which is for
direct relief.

Mr. NorTHWAY. There is only $1,000 of it spent for direct relief?

Mr. WiLsON. Yes, sir; according to this last report. Seven thousand
two hundred dollars is given to the physicians to the poor.

Mr. PITNEY. Congress makes an appropriation of $13,000, and out
of it, as I understand, the Commissioners have been spendmg, or pay-
ing to physicians for attendlng the poor, $7,200, and only 81,000 in the
way of direct relief. Does any part of that $l3 000 go to mstltutlous?

Mr. WILsON. Yes, sir; for the Women’s Dlspeusaly, $500; for the
Aged Women’s Home, 3300 for coffins for the indigent dead $300,
The appropriation, however, in the past has been used again and again
largely for direct relicf. 1t ought to be used at times in part for insti-
tutions,

Mr. P1TNEY. As a kind of contingent fund, applied wherever it is
most needed ?

Mr. WiLsoN, Yes, sir.

Mr. McMILLAN. Some cities have a poor fund, a poor master, and a
poor commission, having in charge the taking care of the regular poor
people who make it a business to be poor and who have made it a busi-
ness to be poor for many years. They are cared for all the winter by
this poor master and a large sum of money is distributed in Detroit
in that way, as mach as 20,000 or $25,000, How much, Mr. Moore;
is it more than that?

Mr. MooRE. Yes, sir; more than that.

Mr. McMILLAN. The commission can only expend such amount of
mouey as is in their control. When that is done, then the citizens con-
tribute in times of great distress or extreme cases when there is great
suffering, and raise money and put it into the hands of this commis-
sion. The poor people of the District of Columbia who are regularly
in need have no way of getting money except through private charities?

Mr. WiusoN. No, sir.

Mr. McMILLAN. Like the central relief committee?

Mr. WiLsON, Yes, sir.

Mr., NorRTHWAY. Tell me how the poor people are cared for if the
most of this appropriation is given to physicians.

Mr. PrrNey. I suppose, being relieved by physicians and medicines,
it is thought that they will be able to take care of themselves in other

respects.
Mr. MACFARLAND. 1 should like to have the privilege of submitting

a better statement.
Mr. McMILLAN. We would like to have you submit a written state-

ment.
Mr. PrrNEY. I would like to ask you a question, Mr. Mactarland.

I think you said that the charities are now disorganized. Nobody
S, Doc. 185—2
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seems to know how the work is being performed or how it has been car-
ried ont

Mr. NorTowAY. His plan provides for a board of charities.

Mr. P1rNEY. More particularly as to the present.

Mr. MACFARLAND, Dr. Warner, who was appointed during the
Administration of President Harrison, made a very thorough investiga-
tion at that time. He made some mistakes, but he got at information
which had not been published, at least in that form, before. He was
satistied that the superintendent of charities could not do the work
which Congress had set him todo. Among other things in Dr. Warner’s
recommendations was a specific recommendation for a board of charities.
It was he who first suggested the creation of a board of charities, and
we have simply taken his recommendation and are now seeking to apply
it, and our thought was that if such a board was created it would bring
the boards and managers of all the institutions into more narmonious
relations than we ever had before.

Mr. PITNEY. Do yon think they could prevent the duplication of
work ?

Mr. MACFARLAND, Yes, 8ir.

Mr. P1TNEY. You know that the charters of each of these institutious
prescribes what work shall be done,

Mr. MACFARLAND. Yes, 8ir; that is primarily true as to all institu-
tions receiving Government aid. Qur opinion is that the character of
this board of charities in dealing with subsidized institutions would
induce the managers of private institutions to take advice, and their
recommendations to Congress in their annual reports would have such
weight as to improve things.

Mr. MCcMiILLAN. They would all work in harmony with this board,
you think?

Mr. MACFARLAND. That is our hope. That has been the experience
of the State boards of charities, which have twenty-five years of experi-
ence behind them. The State board of Massachusetts was created in
1866 or 1867. Since then sixtcen or seventeen other States have fol-
lowed their example, and there is a long line of achievements to their
credit. You know that it was through these boards that the inter-
national conferences of charities and corrections were created.. These
conferences or meetings are held once a year and largely attended.
Great reformers and philanthropists meet together to get the benefit
of the experimental work throughout the country. They had a meet-
ing last year in Grand Rapids, aud it was the most profitable ever held.
It publishes each year a report, and that is really our literature apon
that subject. It seeks to promote self-help among the poor rather than
reliance upon others, and this child-caring work, which has for its ulti-
mate object the placiug of children in homes, has been doubled under
the influence of these international conferences of charities and cor-
xéections, international because Canada takes part with the United

tates.

Mr. McMILLAN. Senator Martin. would you like to ask any questions?

Mr. MARTIN. Mr. Macfarland, have you any knowledge on the
subject of the payment of this $7,200 to the physiciaus to the poor?

Mr. MACFARLAND, No, sir.

Mr. MARTIN. You have no knowledge upon that subject?
thr. MACFARLAND. No, sir; but I think Mr, Wilson would know about

at.

Mr. WiL8ON. In my opinion it is a wise appropriation; weneed physi-
ciaus to the poor, but I think they should be appropriated for specifically.
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I do not think the money should be appropriated and called ¢for relief
of the poor,” because it is a misnomer. I believe we need physicians to
the poor, and if there are other items in this schedule that are proper.
they should be provided for specifically, and if money is appropria
for the ‘“relief of the poor” it should be so used; but it is my belief
that such appropriations should not be made in Waﬂhmgton.

Mr. MACFARLAND, Just on that point I ought to have said that pub
lic appropriations for outdoor relief have been abolished in many cities.
I believe in Brooklyn, when Seth Low became mayor, he succeeded in
wiping out that appropriation on the ground that it increased depend-
" ency. I should like to submit a written statement if 1 may have that
privilege.

Mr MOMILLAN. We will be glad to have it.

Mr. MACFARLAND. i am also the chairman of the charities committee
of the Civic Center. We indorse the views of the Board of Trade.
Miss Hosmer is here and will be able to describe the work of the Civic
Center.

Mr. JANNEY. As to whether or not the Associated Charities has any
legal status, it is an incorporated body.

Mr. MOMILLAN. The Associated Charities?

Mr. JANNEY. Yes, sir; I would say that it has no money of its own
and dispenses no relief from its own funds, and receives no money at

all except for its own administrative expenses.
THE CIVIC CENTER.

Mr. McMILLAN. Miss Hosmer, we will hear you now.

Miss K. P. HosMER. The Civic Center is an organization similar to
the Civic Federation of Chicago, of which Secretary Gage was formerly
president. It is an organization which invites all citizens who believe
in having the city in all its departments on the very highest and best
plane, to consider the conditions of the city; to learn what has been
done elsewhere, and to endeavor to meet those conditions in the best
way; to see that what is good here is continued and to get what is good
from outside. In this way every department of the city is covered.
I might say that the Civic Center attempts to oversee as citizens just
as the Commissioners do as officials, and endeavors to find out what is
best to be done. We therefore are very much interested in the organi-
zations in the field of charities. We believe that Washington, from
being in respect to charities more or less in a chaotic condition, can be
a model, and ought to be -a model, for the whole country; because it
has not very many obstacles to overcome. I might say that all the
various cities which are on the line of progress in such matters look to
Washington and wish it to be the model.

I was saying that we have very few obstacles to overcome. One of
the things that other cities have had to overcome was the question of out-
door relief, which results in increased pauperismn and is very harmful.
It is much the same as giving out all kinds of medicines, of all descrip-
tions, and having the different persons who come after medicine given
any kind that happens to be on hand. Now, the field of charities, we
think, should be considered by a public board of charities, the same as
the commlttee on charities of the board of trade recommends; this
board should consider the whole field and be responsible officially in
respect to charities as the Commissioners of the District are responsible
in respect to the duties imposed upon them.

That field is divided clearly into two parts, the question of private
relief, and relief through public institutions. The Associated Charities
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is an unofficial body. We do not believe that it should be paid from
the public funds, because it then becomes an official body. It is respon-
sible to the citizens of the whole District to see that every case, worthy
or unworthy, is investigated. It should be responsible in respect to
every application made for relief in the District of Columbia;to see
that they get the proper kind of relief. It may be work, fuel, or cloth-
ing; it may be treatment of one kind or another. In that way it makes
use of all the different institutions for charities in the District as well
as private charities, the same as the physician makes use of all kinds
of medicines for his different patients. It is therefore a purely admin-
isgrat;ive society, just as the physician is paid so muc for diagnosing
all cases.

In former times, you may know, the physician did no! dare ask pay
for advice, but was paid for the medicine; but now that has been spe-
cialized and the patient gets his drugs from the drug store. The Asso-
ciated Charities is responsible for seeing that each case gets the relief
needed, whether it is indoor or outdoor. It may be that one member of
a family needs to go to an asylum and another needs work. It finds
that it lacks a number of medicines, as it were, or institutions, in other
words. We have no inebriate asylum., Wehave difticulty in providing
for imbecile cases.

To give a practical example, one of the agents of a society said to me
the other day that an application was received from a certain family,
All of the children were imnbeciles, and the agent said it would cost to
take care of them about $1,200 a year. The agent of the Board of
Children’s Guardians said that that was the treatment for that family,
but that with the money he had he could not take them, saying that for
the same amount of money many more cases of the same kind could be
treated. The work of the Associated Charities is very apt to be misun-
derstood. If there are any questions that could be asked, either in
general or in detail, I would be glad to answer them.

o Mr. McMILLAN. We want you to tell us about the work of the Civic
enter.

Mr. PiTNEY. That is a citizens’ association interested in the general
work of improvement of the city’s conditions?

Miss HosMER. Yes, sir. '

Mr. NorTEWAY. Does it cover the same field as the Board of Trade?

Miss HosMER. It is similar to the organization of the Board of
Trade, except that the Board of Trade is organized for the special pur-
pose of forwarding the business interests of the city. The Civic Center
has for its object to promote the welfare and interests of the city. It
is merely a body to get information as to the conditicus of the city and
to find out what are the best remedies to apply to those conditions, to
ascertain what has been done elsewhere and then toreport to the proper
authorities.

Mr. P1TNEY. To make suggestions?

Miss HoSMER. Yes, sir.

Mr. McMiILLAN. I believe you have takcn up this question of houses
in alleys?

Miss HOSMER. Yes, sir.

Mr. McMILLAN. And have made some investigation into that?

Miss HOSMER. Yes, sir. ‘

Mr. McMiLLAN. I understand there has been some etfort made by
the Civic Center to raise money to put up some buildings better fitted
for these poor people.

Miss HosMER. Yes, sir.
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Mr. NorTawAY. You have no fund?

Miss HosMER. No, sir. In this matter of slums, the Civic Center
thought we had slums here and that nothing was being done about
them. We made a preliminary investigation ourselves and had a com-
mittee appointed to make an investigation. We also employed a person
for twomonths. Upon this report we made important recommendations,

Mr. NorTHWAY, To whom?

Miss HosMER. To the Civic Center and to the public generally—
that the alleys should be cut through from street to street, making
minor streets, and in that way to do away with blind alleys, which
really make small communities of the lowest classes, isolating them
from the outside. To put the recommendations of the Civie Center
concisely in the matter of charities, we think the field should be cov-
ered; that there should be an official body to consider the whole ques-
tion. The supervision of the whole field should be in the hands of a
board of charities, both relief by institutions and outside of institu-
tions. The Associated Charities should be responsible for every appli-
cation of persons needing relief in whatever form and to see that it is
taken care of. The Associated Charities is responsible to see that
every case in the District of Columbia is provided for and taken care
of. Now, some cases may not be taken care of by institutions. If so,
such a case it sees is provided for in some way. As to institutions, it
finds many times that there is not the proper institution in which cases
of certain kinds can be cared for, yet they are not able to say to any-
body ofticially, or to the Commissioners officially, that there is this or
that institution lacking, but the proposed board of public chamtles
would bhave that under their control.

Mr. McMiLLAN. That is to say, that if it was proposed that there be
an inebriate agyluimn, then this board of charities would investigate that
matter and report to Congress whether such an institution was required,
and if so, that so much money was needed to establish and conduct it?

Miss HosMER. Yes, sir.

Mr. PiTNEY. You spoke about holding the board of public charities
responsible, How could they be held responsitle except by public
sentiment?! How would you hold them responsible if they failed to
come up to your views?

Miss HosMER. If people fail to come up to what they should, that is
their own fault. They should have as their duty the consideration of
the whole question of charities—to find out and to know whether there
is a proper institution for the relief of a given case on the one hand,
and whether there is a proper body which can investigate every case.

Mr. PITNEY. To have a board composed of a sufficient number of
citizens who would be in touch with the sentiment of the people, as well
as to know from observation of the needs of the field?

Miss HoSMER. Yes, sir; and an expert or secretary would have the
guidance of it.

Mr. NorTEWAY. The Civic Center, then, recommends a board of
charities having supervision of the whole questlon of all the charities?

Miss Hosmm. Yes, sir.

Mr. NorTHWAY. And the Associated Charities to say how the work
shall be done?

Miss HosMER. No, sir; the Associated Charities has no determmmg
power at all. The board ‘of charities would have that power. 1t would
fix upon certain things to be done, and it should have the duty of
making investigations in respect to the whole question and as to how
much money should be expended ypon them.
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Mr. PITNEY. And have the power to determine whether they would
use the Associated Charities or any other instrument to carry out their

duties under the law?

Miss HosMER. Yes, sir.

Mr. McM1LLAN. They would have a general supervision ¥

Miss HosMER. Yes, 8ir; to supervise the whole field.

Mr. PITNEY. Your idea, Miss Hosmer, is to delegate to the board of
charities, or, rather, throw upon them the respousibility of organization ?

Miss HosMER. Yes, sir: if they are not already organized, and to
determine those that are necessary to be organized. They should be
delegated to perform certain work that the Commissioners of the Dis-
trict have not the time to perform, and all the money thatis given to
charities by the public should be expended under their recommendation.
They should have that power. Their powers would be supervisory.
They would not be responsible for investigating every case, but the
Associated Charities is the body that would attend to that, and see that

relief was obtained. =
Mr. P1TNEY. This board of charities is to give more eyes and ears to

the Commissioners of the District, and more hands—that is to say,
more facilities for performing executive and administrative functions?

Miss HoSMER. Yes,sir. If it will not be taking up too much time of
the committee, I would like to read an extract from this paper, which
shows what is done in one case that comes to the Associated Charities.

It is rather interesting.
Mr. PrrNEY. We will be very glad to have you read it.
Miss HosMER read the extract which follows:

TYPICAL MARRIED VAGABONDS,

Gamma made his first application to the Charity Organization Society seven years
ago, at a time when it was even more dificnlt than now to find volunteer visitors
who were intelligent and faithful enough to make a careful study of the needs of
families placed nwuder their charge, or courageous enongh to carry out any thorough
plan of treatment in these families. The man was a German cobbler who had mar-
ried an American domestic, and, at that time, there were three children, one of them
an imbecile with destructive tendencies, The man said he was discouraged, that
he got work with difficulty and had no materials with which to do it, Materials
were furnished and members of the society found work for him, but, this form of
assistance not being very much to his mind, they soon lost sight of him, and it was
not till several years later that the society again enconntered the family in a different
part of the city, and a friendly visitor was secured to study their condition and
try to improve it. ‘

The visitor reported that the man was ‘“discouraged,” the house filthy beyond
description, and that the life of the fourth child, then 9 monthsold, wasendangered by
the imbecile boy, who was violent at times. Aid was given, and the man’s own theory
being that he could do butter in another neighborhood, the family was moved and
otherwise aided by money secured from benevolent individuals. It soon became
apparent that the man lacked cnergy. He was given to pious phrases, and was a
good talker, but all efforts to inculcate industry or cleanliness were met by both
man and wife with the excuse that the imbecile boy interfered with all their efforts.

At the family’s own solicitation, the society tried to find a home for this boy; after
months of negotiations he was placed in the School for Feeble-Minded at Owings
Mills. This burden removed, the visitor redoubled her efforts to make the home a
decent one for the remaining children, but without success. The beds were not made
until they were to be slept in, the dishes not washed until they must be nsed again,
and soiled clothing was allowed to stand in soak a week at a time in hot weather
until a heavy scum gathered over the top and the air was poisoned by the stench.
The remaining children were unkempt and untrained, and the woman quite indifferent
about their condition. The imbecile had improved at Owings Mills, but owing te a
half-expressed wish of the mother’s to see the boy, Garama hrought him home and
refused to take him back again. The man’s good intentions always seemed to evap-
orate in fine phrases. He was reported by the neighbors to be drinking, though not
heavily, and one morning the visitor received a letter from him saying that she must
take care of his family—he could stand it no longer and had left them.
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One thing greatly handicapped the visitorat this time and later; the squalor of
this family strongly appealed to chance charitable visitors, who helped them liberally
because they looked miserably-—helped them without knowledge and without plan.
It nused to be said that every Aruerican thinks he can make an atter-dinner speech,
and it might be addod that every American, or nearly every American, thinks he can
administer his own charities judiciously. When we are mistaken in onr speech-
makinﬁ ability, we ourselves are the sutferers, but the saddest thing about our char-
itable blunders is that not we but the poor people ure the sufferers. The friendly
visitor to the Gammnas was a woman of unusual intelligence and devetion. Her
fuilure may be traced to two canses: To the fact that she was not called in earlier,
and to the willinuness of many good church people to help quite indiscriminately
for the nsking. They went aund looked at the home, saw that it wasindeed wretched,
and called thin ‘““an investigation.” ¢ Yes, I'’ve Leiped the Gamm:s,” they used to
say, “I've investigated their condition myself.” The way in which Gamma was in
tile habit of talking about the Bible as his best friend made a great impression on
them.

The man’s desertion of his family was a mere ruse. He was soon back again and
ready to profit by the help they had obtained. Moving from plare to place to aveid
rent they were at last ejected, and the man, wife, and children, including the imbe-
oile, found refuge in the stable of & kind-hearted man who took pity on them. The
owner was alarimed, however, when he fonnd the family making no ettcit to tind
other gnarters, and fearing the imbecile might set fire to the plice at any time he
applied to the Charity Organization Society to know what could be done. We
oftered the woman and children shelter at the electric sewing machine rooms nntil
the boy could be sent back to Owings Mills and the other children committed to the
Henry Watson Children’s Aid Society, and advised that the man saw wood at the
Friendly Inn until he conld get work. The man retused to go, but the wonuin and
children came to the electric rooms and with the cooperation of the Society fyr the
Protection of Children the iinbecile was returned to Owings Mills.

At this juncture, nnfortunately, the daily papers interfered with our plans for the
children by publishing a sensational account of Gumma as a most industrious shoe-
maker, who had always supported his family until the hard times of the last year
had thrown him out of work. Money was sent to the papers for the family.
Gamma, who had consented to have two of the children placed in good coimtry
homes by the Henry Watson Aid Society. changed his mind, and the old story of
indiscriminate charity and indiscriminate filth and neglect began all over auvain.
The grutleman who had given them shelter thonght they ought to have another
trial. They had had six years' trial already, but this last one was of short dura-
tion. In four months their champion returned to say that the Charity Organization
Society was right and he was wrong, that he had found Gamma d.unken, lazy, and
insolent, and that children raised under his influence must hecome paupers and
criminals. Again the fumily were ejected, and this time, before public sympathy
could interfere, the two older children were comniitted to the Henry Watson Aid
Society, and only the baby left with Mrs. Gamua.

Our advice to Mrs. Gamma was to return to her mother, who offered her a home.
But the advice was not taken. Established in another part of Baltimore, Gamma
renewed his attack on the clergy, and told one minister that he was a hardened
criminal who had served a term in thg penitentiary, but after hearing one of his
sermons he desired earnestly to reform. The latest news about the Gammas is a
bit of information in which the charitable public will have to take an interest,
however reluctantly, before very long—there is a new baby.

One reason that I desired to read this was to show the necessity for
the Associated Charities. It should have the duty of investigating and
seeing that relief is applied, and the board of charities should see that
the whole field is covered.

I fear I have taken up too much time. -

Mr. McMILLAN. Is the superintendent of charities here?

Mr. PiTNEY. The superintendent has sent through me an apology in
writing and a physician’s certificate.

Mr. MoMILLAN, Does anyone appear for the relief committee?

CENTRAL RILIEF COMMITTEE.

Mr. WiLsoN. Col. H. F. Blount, the chairman of the committee on dis-
tribution, was present here this afternoon, but he was obliged to leave.
He has asked wme, as secretary of the central relief committee, to
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present report upon the work of distribution for the past winter. In
accordance with the resolution passed by the central reliet comimittee
at its organization, the central relief committee used the Associated
Charities as the means of investigating and reporting on cases of need,
and have granted relicf only to families recommended by the agents of
that society. We are pleased to state that we have fonnd this arrange-
ment very satisfactory. It has prevented, almost entirely,the duplica-
tion of relief, and at the same time has enabled us to relieve the really
needy. :

Wg found that the vast majority of the applicants for relief were
already known to the agents of the Associated Charities and those
cases could be quickly passed upon, while those families that were not
already known were promptly visited and the circumstances exam-
ined by the agents of the society. Through this personal knowledge
not only was fraud and imposition prevented, but the lady visitors were
able to find and relieve those families who frequently are unwilling to
make public their condition. Frequently those who are loudest and
most persistent in their demands for relief suffer less than the quiet
self-respecting families who shrink from making their wants known at
a crowded relief agency. Through the agency of the lady visitors we
were able to reach these families quietly in their homes and relieve
their necessities.

We have not opened any central distribution agency, but have required
applicants to go to the district office in the section of the city in which
they reside. This arrangement we have found most satisfactory. It
has prevented congestion and confusion, always found at a large central
distribution agency, where people from all parts of the city come to
clanior for relief. Besides, it has enabled the agents to deal much
more intelligently with the applicants, because cach applicant was
required to make his application at the district office in the section of
the city in which he resided, and the agent in charge being constantly
in tonch with the people in her division, knew their circumstances and
was better able to deal with the cases in hand than could any person
who had not formerly known anything of these people and their history.

The work has been done very quietly, but it has been done eftectively.
Up to date relief has been granted to something over 2,000 separate
families. We believe that few cases, indeed, of real suffering have been
unrelieved, and, so far as we can learn, but little complaint has been
made as to the manner in which the work has been done.

Not only has the work been effectively, but it has been most econom-
ically conducted. We have never refused to aid a family where it was
deemed necessary or wise to grant relief, and yet with a fund of a little
over $8,000 we have been enabled to do the work of the winter and
have left & considerable balance which can be used for cases of emer-
gency that arise during the summer months,

We feel confident that the work of your comnittee will commend itself
to the public who have supplied the means to enable us to carry it on,
8o that if in the future you should find it necessary to appeal to the pub-
lic for support it would be most generously given.

We do not believe in public outdoor relief work, and we think——

I\Ill“., PITNEY. You do not believe in indiscriminate outdoor relief
wor

Mr. WILSON. No, sir. We think if it is a public body that has that
work to do the money will be misused. In other cities they have large
general relief societies; we have none here. We have church societies
bul there are many who do not belong to churches needing relief, and
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who do not belong to any beneficial societies. There should be such a
society to deal with these cases, to give relief to those who have no
other source of relief. The board of charities would see the necessity
for it and would recommend it. We see the necessity for it and see it
each year. The papers have to call for contributions. There is great
demoralization sometimes. Ior instance, one person comes from an
alley for relief. 1If it is given the whole alley will come, saying that
such a person got it and we should have it too. Therefore this outdoor
relief work should be done very quietly.

Mr. McMILLAN. Mr. Wilson, have you anything further to say for
the general relief committee of 1896 and 18971

Mr. WiLsoN. Colonel Blount is the chairman of the committee on
distribution, The report submitted by him was considered by the full
committee on March 12 last. It is stated that with a fund of a little
over $3,000 we were able to do the work of the winter, and there was a
little left over to do the work of the summer.

Mr. McMILLAN, How did they get this money?

Mr. WILSON. By private contribution; a little over $8,000.

Mr. NORTHWAY. No public fund whatsoever?

Mr. WILSON. No, sir; I do not say that I speak for the relief com-
mittee. They have not been able to get together. I am here as secre-
tary of the committee; still I would not undertake to speak for the
committee. However, my experience is that the necessary funds for
the public out door relief can be provided as they have been this winter.
Two or three years ago Congress made an appropriation of 10,000 to
relieve suffering, and there are many people who think that it did mnore
than $10,000 worth of harm. The applicants for relief did not come
and ask charity. They would say “ We want a living and here is the
money to give us aliving.,” In the North and Northwest, in Wisconsin
and Ohio both, where 1 have worked, there is a movement to curtail
the amount for this character of work., There is a movement toward
abolishing it in large cities. 1t has been done in Philadelphia.

There are special reasons why it should not be in vogue here. We
have here 80,000 colored people or more. During ordinary times we
have almost two applicants from colored people to one white applicant.
Let an emergency come when there is a little excitement, the number
of white applicants will not materially increase; that is, the white
people do not come in a rush, but, on the other hand, the number of
applicants from among the colored people will increase enormously ; we
have had them increase twentyfold. Now, we have these people here;
they live here at all times, summer and winter, from hand to mouth.
If you establish a public out-door relief fund they come around in the
winter and say ¢ I am out of work; I havenothing todo; I want relief,
and there is money lhere to give it.” You say you will investigate.
You know these people are within forty-eight hours of starvation most
of the time. You go to the house and see absolute destitution. The
money is there for relief purposes and it has to be granted. By having
such a fund you take all the backbone out of these people.

Mr. NORTHWAY. Suppose you do not have any money; they starve
thent '

Mr. WILsON. No, sir; they work then. These people can not come
to you then and say this money has been appropriated by Congress for
relief, and that they are entitled to it; thal is, they can not claim it as
a right.

Mr. PITNEY. No; they could not claim it as a right.

Mr. WiLsoN. The very worst cases are these people who have an
idea that we get money from Congress. Yet if you supply it, we can
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not kay no. These peoplereceive it naturally, and expect it. It is not
8o in regard to white people. The great majority of them would rather
struggle to get along. The colored people are childlike, and if we
had a publiec outdoor relief fund their condition would be doubly dis-
tressing, we think, Besidex, there has never b en any difticulty to raixe
money when needed. Washington institutions. more largely than those
of any other city in this country, I think, are supported to a great
extent by public money. '

Mr. McMiLLAN, Have you a statement showing to what extent they
are supported 1n that way?

Mr. WiLsoON. No, sir.
Mr. MCMILLAN. You might make up a statement of that kind.

Mr. WiLsoN. These institutions being supported in this way to such
an extent, it leaves the burden a comparatively light one. If you have
the confidence of the people you can raise the money, and, above all
things, you can raise money for outdoor relief. You know how the

apers write up a sensational story. We do not blame the newspapers;
Ehey help us; but in ninety-nine cases out of one hundred the person
who allows himself to be written about is undeserving. These peopie
may be hungry, and what are you going to do about it? If you start to
feed them they will do less for themselves. I have seen little children
not bigger than that [indicating] come in to ask for relief, and have heard
them say: “ Well, Mr. So-and-so got it, and I don’t see why mamma can’t
get it, too.” Is that not bad training—teaching them to be paupers?

Mr. PITNEY. Does not the same motives operate to a certain extent
to increase the demand upon all the institutions; that is to say, the
facility with which they can get it and the fact that there are public
fands given to the institutions? Does that not increase the demands
upon the institutions by people who do not need relief?

Mr. WiILsoN. Yes,sir; but not to so large an extent, because institu-
tions are not the kind of places they seek as a rule; that is, they do not
want to seek the almshouse, but they might seek the hospitals,

Mr. P1rNEY. What do you know about the operation of the Emer-
gency Hospital ? '

Mr. WiLsoN. I know of it in a general way, especially of its outdoor
work, but they tell me that during the past year they have been com-
pelled to do a kind of permanent work, and it is therefore not quite so
well able to do the real work for which it was created. They have
asked ua to look up some of the applicants who ask for free treatment,
and they have sent us many of these caxes to investigate for the reason
that they believe they are not entitled to it.

Mr. PirNEY. How long have you been doing that?

Mr. WiLsoN. For three months. I have not the fignres for these
three months made up, but not more than 5 per cent of the cases
referred to us for investigation have proved frandulent. We are not
anxious to investigate these people, but it is necessary. The superin-
tendent said to me the other day that since the fact was stated that
applicants for free treatment would be referred to the Associated Chari-
ties large numbers will not come.

Mr. PITNEY. Because they think your association has an acquaintance
with or knowledge of professional frauds?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; it does not always require much investigation
to ascertain that a case is not one deserving of free treatment. We find
the cooperation with them very harmonious indeed.

Mr. MCMILLAN. One case has come under my observation, in which
applications have been made to my family for help during the last three
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or four years. I think I finally sent a note to Mr. Wilson, and he had
the matter investigated. Just about ('hristmas time the woman, in her
appeal to me, described the miseries of home without a Christmas. To
my surprise she wanted to get dolls to send down to Florida, and she
was in one of the Departments.

Mr, WILSON. One day a gentleman living up in the northwest came
to me and asked me if it would be possible for me to find out anything
about a Brooklyn man from whom he had received appeals for money
and who said he used to be employed with him. I said I would write
to the Brooklyn anthorities. We cooperate in this way. This gentle-
man said that in the last eight months he had sent this man $:20.50.
In a confidential bulletin forwarded to me from Brooklyn, in response
to my inquiries, I found that this fellow was in it under several aliases.
I do not want your committee to get the idea that the object of the
Associated Charities is detecting fraud. It is our endeavor to make a
thorough investigation into the circumstances, and then we determine
what we are going to do. 'We ascertain the circumstances, or, in other
words, we diagnose the case before we undertake to treat it. Our inter-
est extends to the whole field, and it becomes our duty to find out the
circumstances surrounding a case and, if relief is needed, to apply the
proper remedy. -

There seems to be some misunderstanding as to the work of the pro-
posed board of charities; that is, whether the creation of such a board
would take the place of the Associated Charities. It would not, for it
would have no time, even if it had any desire, to go into the details of
that work any more than the Commissioners themselves. The board
would have the work of seeing that each institution was doing the
work for which it was created, whether it reached its aims, just as
State boards do in relation to State institutions, and ot ascertaining
whether a new institution was needed and of making recommendations.
It would also be its duty to see that there was cooperation between the
institutions.

If it is the pleasure of the committee I will submit a statement with
reference to public charities.

Mr. McMILLAN. We will be glad to have it.

Mr. PITNEY. Do you know anything of the project of starting a
hospital in Georgetown?

Mr. WiLsoN. Only in the most general way. I believe there is such
a project on foot under a sisterhood of the Episcopal Church, and the
idea is that it shall be a private institution in its beginning. I do not
know that they ask at present for public funds., I wish to bring outin
the figures which 1 will present in my statement that nearly all of the
institutions that receive public funds began as private institutions and
then came to Congress.

Mr. McMILLAN. Suppose the Government should decide not to help
these institutions; what would be the result! Would they go along
just the same?

Mr. WiLsoN. I think those that are necessary would.

Mr. McMILLAN. And probably more economically?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir. Relief ean be much abused. I shall cite
statements where institutions actually say ¢ We receive people of all
nationality, creed, and color,” a very good object, and then turn to the
taxpayers and say, *“ You pay for it.”’

Mr. NORTHWAY. Your idea is that public funds are thrown away?

Mr. WiLsoN. That is according to the way they are used.

Mr. McMILLAN. I8 it not true that Washington is situated in respect
to its institutious very differently from any other city?
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Mr. WILsSON. Yes, sir.
Mr. McMILLAN. Suppose you were to take these hospitals away from

the care of the Government?

Mr. WiLsoN. I would make the hospitals Government hospitals,
The health ofticer brought out in a report the other day the case of a
little boy, who was carted around from oue institution to another, and
not one of them would let him in.

Mr. NorTHWAY. All hospitals you would have under control of law?

Mr. WILsSON. If citizens desire to organize and support a hospital,
all right, but do not mix your public and private institutions. If you
are going to give public money, let it be given to those that are not
purely private institutions. Some of those receiving public money now
are purely private corporations—close corporations. 1 was talking with
an official of one of our-large hospitals, a member of the board of
directors. New members who wish to get in can do so by paying $10.
I told him they were a close corporation. lle said they were practi-
cally so. Isaid, ‘“You elect your own successors.,” He said, ¢ Yes, sir.”
I then said, “You meet when you want to.” He answered, *Yes.”
Then I said, “ You are a close corporation;” to which he replied to all
intents and purposes that they were.

Mr. PI'TNEY. You have given us the fact, but you have not given any
names. Wae are sitting here as a public commission to get information
for the public benefit, and I think we ought to get the name.

Mr. WiLsoN. 1 will give you the name: The Central Dispensary and
Emergency Hospital is a close corporation.

Mr. McMILLAN. Receiving s «\Ipport from the Government?

Mr. WiLsON. Another thing 1 wish to call attention to is the report
of the superintendent of the Metropolitan police. In it you will find
this statement: That 333 of the cases sent to hospitals during the
last fiscal year were persons who had come from Virginia and Mary-
land alone, and which cases are by the sanitary officer’s records classed
as “afllicted with incurable diseases.” These people have come into
the District and were sent to District hospitals. 1In all, 333, which is
more than one for every working day in the year.

Mr. NORTHWAY. And the expense paid for by the I'ederal Govern-
ment?

Mr, WiLsoN. Partially so and partially not. Some of these institu-
tions are supported by the Government—some receiving appropriations
in the sundry civil bill, and some in the District appropriation bill.

Mr. PiTNEY. If these appropriations are to be continued do you think
the amount appropriated should be divided equally between the Federal
Government and the District?

Mr. WiLsoN. I do not know as to that. I would say that if this
board is organized there ought to be some central body having author-
itp—it should have supervision over all these institutions. 1 do not
care to argue as to whether half ought to come out of the Federal
Treasury and half out of the District treasury. Asa general principle,
public money should be devoted to publi¢c institutions managed by

public officers.
Mr. PITNEY. Do you think the money ought to be given in part from

the District treasury?
Mr. WiLsoN. Yes, sir; I do not know whether it should be 50 per

cent each or not; but the same percentage should be maintained

thronghout.
Mr. PITNEY. Do you know anything about the work of the Humane

Society in its childcaring work?



CHARITIES AND REFORMATORY INSTITUTIONS. 29

Mr. WiLsoN. A little. I have come in contact with its agents from
time to time, but have no intimate connection with its work in detail.

Mr. P1rNEY. Not sufficient information to make a statement upon?

‘Mr. WiLsoN. I would be willing to make a statement to be considered
in connection with childcaring work in general.

Mr. P1rNEY. Do you tind that the work of the Humane Society
duplicates that of the Board of Children’s Guardians?

Mr. WiLsoN, The cases that have come to our knowledge of children
we have always referred to the Board of Children’s Guardians, because
that is a body entirely capable of taking charge of the work. I think
that in a document submitted by Chairman McMillan last year this
subject is taken up quite fully, and contains some correspondence with
the Board of Children’s Guardians and the Humane Society. I think
it was stated in that document that there is not now reason for the two
socicties.

Mr. PITNEY. Does the fact that a child shall be put through a process
of law before he can receive care through the Board of Children’s
Guardians prevent children or the parents of children trom applying?

‘Mr. WiLsoN. No, sir; the bringing up of a child is one of the most
serious problems to deal with, and I think the public guardiaunship
should go with public support If the child is a ward of the State,
the State ought to have the right to say that it shall be brought up in

a Proper way.

Mr,?x\’ ORTHWAY. Are they able to take care of all the cases as they
come

Mr. WILsSON. So far as their appropriations enable them to do so.

Mr. P1rNEY. IS there any system here as to adults?

Mr. WILSON, No, sir; and that is one of the most important recom-
mendations that ought to be made. There is no law which determines
who is a dependent, and there is no law determining the time of resi-
dence. We have made a rule of a year’s residence.

Mr. PrrNey, That is to say, there is no court or jurisdiction clothed
with the power of saying who is sufficiently settled in the district to be
entitled to publie relief?

Mr. WILSON. No,sir; there is not.

Mr. P1TNEY. Suppose that should be supplied, is there any necessity
for an adjudication by a judicial tribunal as to a person’s title to relief?

Mr. WiLsoN. I think if a law was enacted providing that a certain
period of residence in the District entitled a person to relief, that the
board of charities could properly pass upon cases coming under this
law. DBoards of directors of county infirmaries have the power to pass
upon the degree of dependence, and I do not think it would be neces-
sary to take it into court.

Mr. PreNey. We have a law in New Jersey which provides for an
adj uldication as to whether a child shall or shall not be made a public
ward,

Mr. WILSON. The adult is seeking support and perfectly willing to
receive it. On the other hand, it is frequently necessary to invoke the
power of the court to get control of the child.

Mr. PrrNEY. The infant is helpless.

Mr. WiLsoON. Yes, sir. In many States they have a law providing
that it the parents surrender a child to the directors of the county
home, duly surrender and sign the papers in the presence of a notary,
it shall not be necessary to have a trial.

I would like to call attention to the fact that some of these institu-
tions in their reports for the last three years show several thousand
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dollars of expenditures in excess of receipts. There is no deficit carried
over to the next year; and on this statemnent they base an argument
for increased appropriations.

Mr. PITNEY. Does that appear in a report to Congress?

Mr. WiLsON. Yes,sir; in the report of the superintendent of charities.

Mr. PiTNEY. Please refer to the printed pages. ‘

Mr. WiLsoN. Page 191 and page 228. Here on page 228 of the report
for 1895 it states that “our expenditures each year far exceed our
receipts.” You will find that running through three or four years.
There may be some explanation of it.

Mr. McMILLAN. That is a little curious.

Mr. WILSON. To my mind the fundamental thing that causes this sort
of condition is the appropriation of public money for private organi-
zations, which encourages these institutions to admit persons freely to
their “homes” in order to show that they have large numbers, and thus
secure incredsed appropriations. There is no public authority now to
pass upon such admissions. If we had a public organization, managed
by public officers, it would be their aim to decrease rather than increase
the number of public dependents. I only say that these reports are

peculiar on their face.
Mr. McMILLAN. Well, if there is nothing further, this hearing will

be closed.
Thereupon (at 4 o’clock p. m.) the committee adjourned.



SECOND HEARING.,

REFORMATORY INSTITUTIONS,

APRIL 8, 1897—2 o’clock p. m.

Present: Hon. C. J. Faulkner, presiding; Hon. Thomas S. Martin,
Hon. Mahlon Pitney, and Hon. S. A. Northway.

Senator FAULKNER. Gentlemen, the meeting will please come to
order. The first topic before the committee has reference to reforma-
tory institutions. To be heard: The officers of the Reform School for
Boys and the officers of the Reform School for Girls. We will take
up the subject in the order the topics are suggested in the printed
schedule. I suppose it is understood by the gentlemmen who are to
appear before the committee that we want as brief a statement as they
feel they can give and- do justice to the subject. Who is present
representing the Reform School for Boys?

THE REFORM SCHOOL FOR BOYS.

Mr. CecinL CLAY. I ain president of the board of trustees of the
Reformn School for Boys. A majority of the board are here; the super-
intendent of the school, and the secretary and treasurer. 1 presume
what the committee wants, Mr. Chairman, is a reply to each of the
enumerated topics as givenin this printed schedule?

Senator FAULKNER. Yes, sir.

Mr. CLAY. Before I proceed, I would say that I have prepared what
may be of service to the committee, a brief memorandum of replies to
these several topics, which can be amplified by any questions that the
committee would like to put. Do you desire an oral statement as to

each topic?
Senator FAULKNER. If your written statement embraces your aliswer

it will not be necessary.

Mr. CrAY. I can put this memorandum of replies in after I have
read it. If anyone desires to ask any questions I will be glad to answer
them. The first topic is in relation to the work of the Reform School
and needs of the institution. The simple, broad answer to what is the
work of the Reform School is the reformation of its inmates, If any-
thing is desired as to the scope of that reformation of inmates it can
be given. Boys who are sent there are boys who have primarily com-
mitted some misdemeanor or minor offense which brings them within
the scope of the courts of the District of Columbia or United States
courts outside, and who are too young to be put in the penitentiary,
and so are put in the Reform School. -
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Senator FAULKNER. So you take boys from courts in other States?

Mr. CLAY. From United States courts. The average number of
inmates is 219, of whom 69 per cent were committed by the courts of
the District of Columbia, 17 per cent by the sourts of the United States,
and 14 per cent by the president of the boarc. 'These figures are based
upon the statistics for the last five years. The schoolis in no sense a
charitable institution, because it simply deals with boys who have com-
mitted offenses or who are so incorrigible and so outxide of the control
of the parents that they can not be dealt with longer by them, and the
aid of the State is invoked. The Reform School gets no charitable aid
fromm any private sources, it being supported by appropriations of
Congress.

Senator FAULKNER. You mean to say that where boys are incorrigi-
ble in the States they can be sent to this Reform School ¢

Mr. CLAY. Oh, no; only incorrigible boys in the District of Columbia.
They can be committed by United States courts for a misdewmeanor or
minor offense.

The second part of the first topic is, What are the needs of the insti-
tution? In this memorandum I have made a brief reply to that inquiry,
‘under three heads: ¢(a) As to maintenance and running expenses the
present appropriations are sufficient,” except with one small exception.
The law provides that the minor officials of the school, watchmen and the
like, shall be appointed by the board of trustees (who are, of course,
the best judges as to the needs of the institution), at salaries fixed by
the board, subject to the approval of the Attorney-General. Yet for
several years past the Appropriations Committee has failed to appro-
priate, by $300 or $400, a suflicient amount of money to pay all the
salaries. Three or four years ago they provided for these watchmen,
but did not appropriate sufficient money to pay them, and so the sala-
ries had to be brought down to nineteen dollars and some cents instead
of $22.50 per month. But aside from that the appropriations are
suflicient. .
. The next answer to that topic is, ¢‘(b) As to buildings and improve-
ments.” The board has for some years recommended an appropriation
for an assembly hall or chapel structure. There is no urgent need of
this, but it should be provided for as soon as financial conditions war-
rant it. We have to take now the largest of our school rooms for this
purpose, and that is not large encugh. Every Sunday afternoon we
have a religious service there. Many parents aund friends of the boys
come, and we have the room very full. Then, of course, holding the
religious services in that sort of a room does not teach the boys the
proper respect for the services, and they do not have the same eftect
that they would have if they were held in a roomn specially designed

for the purpose. These are the material needs of the school.

Then we come to the next answer under this topic of needs of the
institution, which is, ¢{c) As to additional legislation.” The board
has for years been of the opinion that the discharge from the school
should be a limited, not an absolute, one; that Congress should be
asked to provide by legislation for such control by the board of trustees
of the boys after discharge as will enable it to reclaim and return to the
school any boy wlto, by his bad conduct, shows himself amenable to
recommitment. This control is given to institutions of like character
in many of the States, and is found to work very satisfactorily. As
long ago a8 the first session of the Fiftieth Congress, in 1888, Congress
was asked to legislate in this direction, and a bill was favorably reported
in the House at that session, but not passed. This recommendation of
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the board has been brought to the attention of Congress by the Attor-
ney-General in his annual report for several years. Now, whon we dis-
charge a boy we have no control over him. We may institute inquiries
as to how he is getting along, make inquiries through those interested
in the boy, or otherwise, but if we find him going to the bad we can
not do anything., In Peunnsylvania the reformmatory keeps a record of
boys discharged, as to their conduct, and if, in a certain period, one is
going wrong, it can briug him back to the school and take charge of
him. For several years back the Attorneys-General have thought—Mr.
Harmon did—that that sort of legislation would be a very good thing
to have.

The next topic is, ‘“Management of the school and extent of the
supervision exercised by the Department of Justice.” That shows two
topics—management of the school and supervision exercised by the
Department of Justice. The answer to that is: The earlier acts under
which the Reform School was organized placed it under the control of
the Secretary of the Interior, who was directed to set apart a location
for it on what was then known as the Government farm. This site
proving unhealthy, in the year 1872 Congress made an appropriation
for the purchase of the present site and the erection. of necessary
buildings; the title to the land then bought and the 116 acres subse-
quently purchased, in all 366 acres, was vested in the United States.
The United States owns the launds in fee simple. In the sawme year
Congress also enacted that ‘“all and singular the powers conferred and
duties enjoined by existing laws upon the Secretary of the Interior,
relating to the imprisonment or discharge ot convicted offenders against
the laws of the United States, or to the Reform School and jail in the
District of Columbia, be, and the same are hereby, transferred to the
Department of Justice.”

The subsequent act of May 3, 1876, amending the various acts relating
to the school, shows more in detall the authority of the Attorney-Gen-
eral over tbe affairs of the school. The trustees are appointed by the
President upon his recommendation; officials appointed by the board
of trustees have their appointment and compensation inade subject to
his approval; the bond which the superintendent is required to give
before entering upon the duties of his office must also be approved by
him; and it is to the Attorney-General that the trustees make their
annual report, accompanied by that of the superintendent, treasurer,
and other subordinate ofticers. Attorneys-General since this act took
eftect have personally visited the institution at proper times and been
personally cognizant.of its workings. It may further be said in this
connection that the chiet clerk of the Department of Justice has since
1887 served as one of the board of trustees, having been placed on that
board upon therecommendation of the Attorney-General, primarily that
the Department of Justice might keep informed of evelythmg in con-
nection with the school, and he is now the president of that board. I
do not know whether the committee wants to ask anything supple-
mentary to this as to the control exercised by the Department of Justice.

Representative PITNEY. How often, as a matter of fact, does the
Attorney-General get an opportunity to visit the institution?

Mr. CLAY. Well, Mr. Harmon went out there once only in the two
years that he was Atborney-General; I think only once.

Representative NORTHWAY. Does that cover the only supervision of
the Department of Justice—those visits?

- Mr. CraY. Oh, no. The law gives to the President the appointment
of the board of trustees upon the recowmendation of the Attorney-

8. Doc. 1856—3
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\
Gerieral, This board acts under the direction of the Attorney-General.
He nominates the members of the boird and the President appoints
them. The moment this board in the exercise of its authority appoints
anyone it has to report that to the Attorney-General and have him

approve the salary, etc.
kepresentative NORTHWAY., What supervision do the trustees have

over the school?

Mr. CLAY. They are the people who do the work of managing the
school. They are out there from time to time and hold meetings regu.
larly on the second Monday in each month. The trustees receive uo

compensation whatever. )
Representative PITNEY. Where are these meetings of the board of

trustees held?

Mr, CLAY. At the school except in exceptional cases, such as a spe-
cial meeting (as we held yesterday in regard to this matter) which was
held in the city, because it would have consumed too much time to go
out to the school, but the regular meetings, which occur monthly, are
held at the school. The visiting committee of the board may go out
there a dozen times in a month, and all the boys are examined by this
committee upon having earned their honors by attention to studies in
their school and good bebavior, and who have arrived at a point where
it is feasible for the superintendent to recommend their discharge. The
names of such boys are put in the monthly report and furnished to the
visiting committec, which personally examines these boys.

Senator FAULKNER. How many members of the board are there?

Mr, CLAY. Seven.

Senator FAULKNER. And how many members on the visiting com-
mittee? '

Mr. CLAy. Two. Two of the trustees are selected to serve for each
month in the year, and rotate alphabetically, one member dropping out
-each month and another substituted. Then there are standing com-
mittees that are always at work; a building committee; a finance
committee, which serutinizes accounts; and an executive committee,
which of course takes charge of matters of administration; and the
school is constantly under the supervision of the trustees.

Representative PITNEY. Are they all residents of Washington, Col-

onel Clay?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. Are all the boys sentenced to the Reform
School from the District?

Mr. CLAY. No,sir; 17 per cent of them come from outside the District.

Representative NoORTiiwAY. From other States?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Seventeen per cent come by commitment by
United States courts from outside. You do not know now what juris-
dictions they come from?

Mr. CLAY. No, sir.

Representative P1ITNEY. Iow great a distance do they come?

Mr, CLAY. Some come from as far as Georgia and Tennessee, where
there are no institutions of this kind closer at hand or cheaper to which
they can be sent. We haveone boy there from Utah. He was sent on a
definite sentence for fifteen years, which ought not to have been done.

Representative P1ITNEY. Under what authority of law does the presi-
dent of the board commit boys to the school?

Mr. CrAY. Under the act of 1876, amending the previous laws as to

the school,
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Representative PITNEY. Wé can find the act.

Mr. CLAY. It was the act of May 3, 1876, section 8. That section
provides:

And the president of the board of trustees may also commit to the Reform School
such boys as are mentioned in the foregoing third and fourth clauses, upon applica-
tion or complaint in writing of a parent, or guardian, or relative having charge of
such boy, and upon such testimony in rogard to the facts stated as shall be satisfac-
tory to him; and for taking testimony in such cases, he is hereby empowered to
administer oaths.

.Representative PITNEY. He is given judicial functions for carrying
on an inquiry as to the propriety of committing certain boys?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir; a parent comes and wants to know about putting
a boy in the Reform School. I inquire why it is desired to put him
there. The answer may be that he is stealing or that it is feared that
he will 8oon be in the clutches of the police. If only one parent comes
I ask where the other is living and for the name and address, stating
that I will communicate with them further. Then I communicate with
the police department and get a report from the precinct where the
people live as to the boy’s conduct. They may say, as they did in the
last case that came to my notice, that the boy was known to the police
and had been several times accused of theft and only kept fromn going
before the court because on account of friendship for the boy’s father
it was not desired that he be prosecuted. So, in this way, by applying
to the president of the board, a boy can be placed in the school without
the publicity of a proceeding in court.

Representative NORTHWAY. The institution is reformatory and in no
sense charitable?

Mr. CLAY. In no sense charitable.

Representative NORTHWAY, It exists according to terms of law?

Mr, CrAY. The property belongs to the United States, the trustees
holding the property in trust.

Representative NORTHWAY. All purchases and expenditures are
made in accordance with law, are they?

Mr. CrLAY. Yes, sir.

Represeirtative PITNEY. What is the earliest age at which boys are
committed ? ‘

Mr.CLAY. At about 10 years of age; but the law says any boy under
16 years.

Representative PITNEY. Are they held until they arrive at majority,
or for a definite or indefinite time?

Mr. CLAY. That depends upon the boy’s behavior. They are com-
mitted until they are 21, unless sooner reformed. Sometimes they are
sent there with definite sentences.

Representative NORTHWAY. But the sentences are generally indefi-

nite?
Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir; some come there from United States courts with

definite sentences.

Representative NORTHWAY, Is anything known of the boys after
they go away from the school?

Mr. CLAY. There is no provision of law about that; but I will come
to that later on.

Representative PITNEY. How long on the average are the boys there?

Mr. CLAY. Boys not sent there from United States courts with deter-
minate sentences would be there not less than twenty months, They
can not get out in less time than that. If a boy went in there—a bright,
intelligent boy—and behaved himself well, was attentive to his studies,
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and got no demerits at all, he would earn his honors in about twenty
months; but his discharge depends upon whether the superintendent
shall consider him fully reformed, even if he has earned his houors,
because there are bright boys who conforin to the letter of the law,
paying attention to their studies, and the sharper the little rascals are
the less liable they are to get demerits; so while a boy may get no
demerits, yet in heart he may not be reformed. That is where the con-
tact with the teachers and close supervision of the matron come into
play. They get to know the traits of character and idiosyncrasies of
these boys and learn all about them. You ask the matron about this
or that particular boy. She will say, ¢ This little fellow is a fine boy,”

and *“That one is a little rascal.”

Representative PITNEY. Can you give any idea of the percentage
of reforms?

Mr. CLAY. That will come a little later. Although we ‘have no
authority, we learn through friends or acquaintances, or by inquiry,
what becomes of some of these boys and what they are doing. I had
the superintendent—he had a very short time to do it in—make up a
 statement about that. He does not give their names, but refers to them
by number. In his list there are 61 boys, whose whereabouts are per-
fectly well known to us, and we know how they are getting along
since they left the school. One is foreman of our box shop out at the
school, one is a minister of the gospel, several are in the Navy, and
one or two are members of the metropolitan police force of Washington;
one is at college, and so on down the list. There are others who have
not been reported in this list. I met a boy on the cars a few days ago.
He said, “ You don’t remember me, do you?” I said, “Yes; I remember
you; you were out at the Reform School.” He told me where he was
employed; that he received so much a month. I asked him if his
parents were living. He said, “No,” and I asked how he took care of
himself. He said, I have $103 in the savings bank.” I told him he
was better off than many people who were making much more than

he was.
The third question to be replied to is, Should the control be trans-

ferred to the District authorities? The reply is:

The Attorney-General being charged by law with matters relating
to the imprisonment or discharge of convicted offenders against the
laws of the United States as well as with matters relating to the Reform
School and jail in the District of Columbia, it does not appear that any
part of his duties in respect to these matters should be taken from him
and put in other hands.

For some years after its incorporation no appropriation was made for
support of the inmates of the Reform School, the District of Columbia
paying a certain sum per week for such of its boys as were committed
to the school. Shortly after the adoption of the present system of
government for the District of Columbia, and agreeably to the plan
of placing upon the District of Columbia the obligation of sharing with
the General Government in the payment of certain expeunses, appro-
priation was made for the support of inmates of the Reform School, one-
half to be paid by the District of Columbia. Appropriations have
been 8o made anuually since. This legislation simply provided a dif-
ferent method for paying for the support of such boys as should be
sent to the school from the District of Columbia. Before that time the
District of Columbia paid board for theim.

By the act of June 4, 1880, it was provided that “one of the Com-
missioners of the District of Columbia, to be selected by the Board of
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Commissioners, shall be a trustee, with all the powers, privileges, and
duties of other trustees” of the school.

This was done ostensibly for the purpose of having the District see
what was being done with the money. Now that the District is paying
half of the support of the inmates of the school, instead of paying board
for those from the District, it should have a representative on the
board of trustees.

By the act of March 3, 1881, it was provided that the officers of the
Reform School should. at the end of each fiscal year, make a report to
the Commissioners giving certain information as to property, employees,
their employment, results, etc. This connection of the Commissioners
with the school, their representation upon the board of trustees—one
of their number for several years serving as president of the board—
and the supervision exercised by them through the accounting officer
of the District over the accounts of the school has so far worked well
and amply protected the interests of the District in the school.

As long as the District was-paying half of the expense it was thought
that it' should have a report showing what was done at the school,
although it was not the xame report made to the Attorney-General.

Since this new method of paying the expenses was established it has
been the tendency to simplity as far as possible the administration of
all these things. The Department of Justice should bave control fromn
its head over all those matters relating to United States pnsoners. All
these boys are in a sense United States prisoners.

Representative PITNEY, Let us think of that. Whether these boys
are prisoners by law or not, it seems that it will be claimed that the
Reform School in point of fact is a part of the charitable work of the
District of Columbia. The other charitable orggnizations, whatever
they may be, public or private, ought to be able to avail themselves of
the advantages of that school for a certain class of charitable subjects
or objects. The school, when it turns out these boys, whether it has
power of control over them after release or not, might fail to accom-
plish all the good that was possible, unless there are other persons
charged with the duty of taking an interest in these boys after release,
and of seeing not only that they have not gone wrong but of prevent-
ing them from doing so. It may be claimed that the ground you cover
in your work is a necessary part of the territory of the general admin-
istration of charities here. Now, it has been suggested that the general
charitable work might be given in charge of a board of charities, which
should take actively the interest that the Commissioners of the Dis-
trict now take theoretically in the work; and if that is done, if such a
board should be created, would it not be advisable for that board to
have representation in the Reform School and take a live interest in
the work, and see that the right sort of boys are taken care of after
they are sent there and after they leave?

Senator FAULKNER. As to these other institutions making use of the
Reform School, you could not put boys in what you call a reformatory
without a judicial decision or the consent of parents.

Representative PIrNEY. If there is proof of the need of the child for
the guardianship of the law, he is put in the control of the Board of
Children’s Guardians. A

Senator FAULKNER. But without the consent of parents you have no
right to put o boy in a reformatory without the machinery of the law.

Representative PITNEY. What I want to know, Mr. Clay, is what
your views are upon the subject of the relation of the work of the
reformatory to the general charitable work of the District. Whether
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they are not essentially related one to the other; whether the work of
the Reform School is not a part of the charitable work of the District,
and whether they ought not to be brought into relation in the reorgani-
zation of the District charities?

Mr. CLAY. It might be provided by law tliat boys under the eare and
control of any of these charitable organizations could be committed to
the Reform School. The Reform School is rather in the nature of a
penal than a charitable institution, becai.se there is an essence of pun-
ishment to a certain extent. The sentence sr commitment of boys is
not for the purpose of providing for those whose parents can not do it,
for probably all of them could be supported by their parents. They
are sent there because of their conduct.

Representative PITNEY. But when you get down to first principles,
if it is simply for purposes of punishment or for isolating inmates from
the rest of society, it could be done just as well by putting them in jail.
It is because it is supposed they may be reformed that boys are sent to
the Reform School, and in so far as they are there for that purpose it
is a charitable purpose and not a penal purpose.
© Mr. CLAY. I would say that it would be necessary for this board, or
conglomeration, of charities, under whatever head it might be, to be
authorized by law, by certain process, wiatever might be thought best,
to commit boys to that school.

Representative NORTHWAY. This board of charities, it could hardly
behsaid, ought to have any part in the business managemeut of the
school. Sl

Mr. CLAY. No,sir; I do not think it should.

Representative NORTHWAY, So far as the business control of the
institution is coucerned, it is similar to other institutions of like kind
elsewhere, is it? _ : -

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir. 'We have the “family” system, just as in Massa-
chusetts. There is a difference, perhaps, as to the size of “families.”
We divide the boys up into families of not to exceed 50 or 60 and put
them in separate buildings, but their meals are all eaten in the same
room. To return to the paper:

Any change in the direction of adding to the present authority of
the Commissioners over the school would seein to be in antagonism to
the tendency of recent legislation, which has increased the Attorney-
General’s control over the administration of the officers of the United
States courts, and over all matters relating to United States prisons,
prisoners, and convicts. Quite recently the appropriation for the
support of the jail in the District of Columbia, one-half the expense
of which, as in the case of the Reform School, is paid by the Dis-
trict of Columbia, was by express enactment directed to be hereafter
expended under the direction of the Attorney-General, and not by the
Commissioners of the District of Columbia.

Half of the expenses of the jail are paid by the District, but the
Commissioners themselves do not want to have any discretion as to
the payment of the expenses of that jail, and the appropriations are
made to be disbursed by the Attorney-General, who has sole control.

Representative PITNEY. So much for the legal and financial part of
it; but how about the humanity of the subject; how about practical
results?! Who is going to take an active interest in a boy when he
leaves the school? .

Mr. CLAY. Who does now if we don’t?! There is living down in
Louiriana a Mr. Falls, who was president of the board of trustees
before me, I suppose that man did not make less than three visits a
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week to that school. The time he spent in working for the Reform
School was sufficient, if he had given it to his profession, to have made
him rich, but he actually broke himself down working in the interest
of that school.

Representative PITNEY. I am talking about when the boys go out.
You propose to provide for the machinery to get him back if he goes
wrong, but there should be some way to prevent him from going wrong,
if possible. Now, the relation of your work to the general charitable
work of the District comes in right there. It seems to me that there
ought to be some force at work to prevent these boys from going wrong.
What I want to get is harmony between your institution and the

others.
Mr. CLAY. I do not understand or think that there is any lack of

harmony. .

Senator MARTIN. Suppose there was a board of charities here look-
ing after the charvities of the District generally, with power to appoint
these trustees, do you think that supervision would be effective?

Mr. CLAY. I do not see exactly where anything is to be gained by
having the trustees appointed by another board rather than by the
President on the recommendation of the Attorney-General.

Senator MARTIN. You say Mr. Harmon went to the school only once
in two years?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir. .

Senator MARTIN. Do yc1a not think the board of charities would go
there more frequently than that!

Mr. CLAY. That is the work of the trustees of the school.

Senator MARTIN. Which would be the most efficient way to accom-
plish the best results—the present one or supervision by a board of
charities, or a board of commissioners to look after the charities of the
District?

Mr. CLAY. I do not see that anything would be gained by putting
the school under another board. It would merely result in multiplying
supervising officers without gaining anything in execution.

Senator MARTIN. Looking upon this school as a department of prisons
rather than of charity, I would like to hear your views upon the pres-
ent authority of the president of the board of trustees to commit to the
institution boys who have not been convicted of a crime. Do you think

that is a safe and proper power?
Mr. CLAY. That is a matter that would be subject to considerable

discussion.
Senator FAULKNER. He does not do it now without the consent of

the boy’s parents.

Mr. Oray. He has to gnard against attempts of parents who want to
relieve themselves of expense by putting their boys in the school. The
only way he can do this is by getting evidence from neighbors as to the
boy’s conduct or through the police departinent, and such evidence as
can be gotten in any other way, to see if the case is a proper one. As
to this matter of the authority of the president of the board to commit
boys, I have no interest in that one way or the other; it throws a great
amount of work upon me and requires the exercise of much care. The
people who swear or make affidavit before the president of the board
kuow they are making an oath, but a majority of them do not know
they would not be amenable to action for perjeey. The thing that has
to be gnarded against is the attempt of parents to defraud the Govern-

ment in this way.
Senator FAULKNER. What is your experience as to that?
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Mr. CLAY. The expericnce is that we do not get many boys out there
in that way, because we exercise too much care.

Senator FAULKNER. Is there any effort to get boys in there by
guardians in that way?

Mr. CrAY. Not since I have been there. There was one case that
was exploited in the courts here sometime ago of a boy who was put
there on request of his guardian, but that is rather a long story to

discuss now. . '
Senator MARTIN. You think it is a criminal institution rather than a

charitable one?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir; just such as there are in many States. At the
Elmira Reformatory they take persons up to 30 or 35 years.

Representative PITNEY. Have you stated the capacity of the school?

Mr. CLAY. It is about 250; we have now 225,

Representative PITNEY. How many different buildings?

Mr. CLAY. We have four family buildings. One is the original
building, the large main building; then there are three other family
buildings. In each of those buildings there is a dormitory, rooms for
officials in charge of the building, for two teachers, watchmen and
matron, and also a schoolroom, fitted up with desks, blackboards, etc.—

a regular schoolroom. Half of the family is under one teacher in the
schoolroom while the other half is at work in the shops or on the farm;

they alternate in that way.
Senator MARTIN. You do not admit them over 16 years of age?

Mr. CLAY. No, sir.
Representative PIT'NEY. What is the proportion of white and col-

ored at the school?
Mr, CLAY. I can not tell you at the moment. I’erhaps the superin-
tendent can. Mr. Shallenberger, what is the proportion of colored and

white?
Mr. SHALLENBERGER. A little over one-half are colored; probably

120 as against 95.

Representative PITNEY. What sort of instruction do the boys get?
Do they get industrial training?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, 8ir; we have—

Senator FAULKNER. He says that half are at work on the farm and
in the shops, while the other half are at school.

Mr. CLAY. We have a paper-box industry there which employs 70
boys, which turns into the United States Treasury trom $2,500 to $3,000
every yvear. We have a shoe shop, a tailor shop, and carpenter shop,
and we have a system of manual training which we are now introduc-
ing, the Sloyd system-—that is, we are extending that system. We
have boys employed in the bakery, and in the greeuhouses under a
tlorist, and under the engineer, who, with the aid of the boys, keeps
the plumbmg in order. Then there are boys employed in the laundry
and in the stables and on the farm; also in the dining room.

Representative NORTHWAY. What restraint is exercised over them
during the day?

Mr. CLAY. Simply moral restraint. There are no walls around the
place, but the boys are never out of the sight of their teachers. It is
very curious to see how few attempt to get away or leave the school.
We had 110 boys committed to the school last year, aid of these we
lost but 4 by walking off.

Representative NORrHWAY. It is a matter of curious study at such
institutions in our various States to see how few do try to escape.
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b Relgn:esentative PITNEY. It is the way with jails, that many try to
reak in.

Mr. CrAY, It takes more to reform a boy than giving him instruction
in studies aud in manual training, because, as I said, the sharpest little
rascal may be the best behaved and be entitled technically to discharge
in the shortest time. There is a provision in the law which says that
no boy shall be discharged by the trustees until the superintendent
recommends it, and under that we do not retain him if the superiutend-

ent says he is fully reformed.
Representative NORTHWAY. But you discharge them on reaching the

age of 217

Mr. CLAY. Oh,yes. Speaking about the element of reformation, our
endeavor is to keep the grounds around the school in thorough and
beautiful condition, and to keep the buildings clean and painted; this
is done by the work of the boys. You can go into any of the dormi-
tories and wipe up the floor with your handkerchief and you will have
it as clean as that paper. You can see the effect of the surroun lings
upon a boy in a very little time after he is there. Personal cleanhiiess
will lead to moral cleanliness. They are never out of the sight of the
watchmen all night long; no part of the dormitory is out of the sight
of the watchman. Each of the boys has a separate iron bedstead. In
general, the school is kept in such a way that many ot these young
scamps know that they are in a better place than they would be at
home, and therefore do not want to run away. If there were walls,
they would be constantly planuning escape, because if a boy sees a wall
to keep him in he will surely want to get over it. Instead of that, they
know they have a good place to be. We work practically all of them
in the summer time on the farm, and while we are doing this, we also
keep the buildings in order. We try to make the place support itself.
All the offal that comes from the dining room goes to the piggery.
We have our own piggery and smoke-house, and make our own bacon;
we raise our own farm products, and dispose of some, the receipts from
which go to the Treasury, as you will see from our report for the year.

I did not read the last part of the reply to the question of placing
the school under District authority. I will finish it now: <

Quite recently the appropriations for the support of the jail in the
District of Columbia—one-half the expense of which, as in the case of
the Reform School, is paid by the District of Columnbia—was by express
enactment directed to be hereatter expended under the direction of the
Attorney-General, and not by the Commissioners of the District of
Columbia. To preserve the unity of purpose indicated by this legis-
lation, the same provision should be enacted in regard to the appro-
priation for the Reform School, the desirability and propricty of which
has been heretofore advocated by the Commissioners themselves.

When the payment of half the expenses of the jail was first put on
the District of Columbia, the appropriation was made to be disbursed
by the District Commissioners, but at the very next session this was
put under the Attorney-General. Only last year Commissioner Ross
told me that he proposed to have that very clause inserted in the
appropriation for the Reform School, as he thought it should be dis-
bursed by the Attorney-General. If the vouchers for the expenditures
of that school are examined, as are those of the jail, in the Department
of Justice, under the new system we have, they would get a thorough
examination, and that is what the board would very much like to have.
The only fault the board has to find with the people of the District,
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and with certain Members of Congress who have heretofore been
appomted as consulting trustees, one by the Senate and one by the
House of Representatives, is tlmt _they do not come out there and see
what is done and how the school is carried on, and we would be very
much gratified if this committes would coine out and look at the school.

Representative NORTIHWAY, How far is it out to the school ?

Mr. CLAY. About 3 miles northeast of the city, at the District line.

Now as to topics §,6,and 7. I supposed that No. 5 probably referred
only to the Reform School for Girls.

Senator FAULKNER. That refers to the Reform School for Girls more
particularly.

Mr. CLAY. The seventh topic is, ¢ What becomes of boys and girls
discharged from these schools?” We have put in answers to topics 5
and 6 also, so that you can refer to them if you care to. I will file this
memorandum of replies and also this list of 61 boys, showing their
whereabouts and occupations since leaving the school.

The statement and list referred to are as follows:

MEMORANDUM OF REPLIES TO QUESTIONS OF THE JOINT SELECT
COMMITTEE ON CHARITIES AND REFORMATORY INSTITUTIONS IN
THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA BY THE REFORM SCHOOL OF THE

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA.

Question 1. What is the work of the Reform School?

Answer. The reformation of its inmates. The average number of
these is 219, of whom 69 per cent are committed by the courts of the
District of Colnmbia, 17 per cent by the courts of the United States,
and 14 per cent by the president of the board.

Question 1, What are the needs of the institution?

Answer. (a) As to maintenance and rununing expenses the present
appropriations are sufficient.

(0) As to buildings and improvements: The board has for some years
recommended an appropriation for an asseinbly hall or chapel structure.
There i8 no urgent need of this, but it should be provided for as soon as
financial conditions warrant it.

(c) As to additional legislation: The board has for years been of the
opinion that the discharge from the school should be a limited, not an
absolute, one; that Congress should be asked to provide by legnslatwn
for such control by the board of trustees of the boys after discharge as
will enable it to reclaim and return to the school any boy who, by his
bad conduct, shows himself amenable to recommitment, This control
is given to institutions of like character in many of the States, and is
found to work very satisfactorily. As long ago as the first session of
the Fiftieth Congress, in 1888, Congress was asked to legislate in this
direction, and a bill was favorably reported in the House at that session,
but not passed.

This recommendation of the board has been brought to the attention
of Congress by the Attorney-General in his annual report for several
years.

Question 2, What is ¢ the management of the school and extent of
supervision exercised by the Department of Justice?”

Answer. The earlier acts under which the Reform School was organ-
ized placed it under the control of the Secretary of the Interior, who
was directed to set apart a location for it on what was then known as
the Government farm. This site proving unhealthy, in the year 1872
Congress made an appropriation for the purchase of the present site
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and the crection of necessary buildings, the title to the Iand then bought
and the 116 acres subsequently purchased, in all 366 acres, was vested
in the United States.

In the same year Congress also enacted that ¢ all and singular the
powers conferred and duties enjoined by existing laws upon the Secre-
tary of the Interior, relating to the imprisonment or discharge of con-
victed offenders against the laws of the United States, or to the Reform
School and jail in the District of Columbia, be, and the same are hereby,
transferred to the Department of Justice.”

The subsequent act of May 3, 1876, amending the various acts relat-
ing to the school shows more in detml che authority of the Attorney-
General over the affairs of the school. The trustees are appointed by
the President upon his recommendation; officials appointed by the
board of trustees have their appointment and compensation made sub-
Ject to his approval; the bond which the superintendent is required to
give before entermg upon the duties of his oftice must also be approved
by him; and it is to the Attorney General that the trustees make their
annual report, accompanied by that of the superintendent, treasurer,
and other subordinate officers. Attorneys-General since this act took
effect have personally visited the institution at proper times and been
personally cognizant of its workings. [t may further be said in this
connection that the chief clerk of the Department of Justice has since
1887 served as one of the board of trustees, and that be is now the

president of that board. ,
Question 3. Should the control be transferred to the District

authorities?

Answer. The Attorney-General being charged by law with matters
relating to the imprisonment or discharge of convicted offenders against
the laws of the United States, as well as with matters relating to the
Reform School and jail in the District of Columbia, it does not appear
that any part of his duties in respect to these matters should be taken
from him and put in other hands.

For some years after its incorporation no approprlatmn was made for
support of the inmates of the Retorm School—the District of Colum-
bia paying a certain snum per week for such of its boys as were com.
mitted to the school. Shortly after the adoption of the present systemn
of government for the District of Columbia and agreeably to the plan
of placing upon the District of Columbia the obligation of sharing
with the General Government in the payment of certain expenses,
appropriation was made for the support of inmates of the Reform School,
one-half to be paid by the District of Columbia. Appropriations have
been so made annually since. This legislation simply provided a dif-
ferent method for paying for the support of such boys as should be
sent to the school from the District of Columbia. Before that time the
District of Columbia paid board for them.

By the act of June 4, 1880, it was provided that “one of the Com.
missioners of the District of Columbia, to be selected by the Board of
Commissioners, shall be a trusfee, with all the powers, pnvlleges, and
duties of other trustees” of the school. And by the act of March 3,
1881, it was provided thas the ofticers of the Reforin School should at
the end of each fiscal year make a report to the Commissioners giving
certain information as to property, employees, their employment, results,
etc. This connection of the Commissioners with the school, their rep-
resentation upon the board of trusteces—one of their number for several
vears serving as president of the board—and the supervision exercised
by themn throngh the accounting officer of the District over the accounts
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of the school has so far worked well and aniply protected the interests
of the District in the school.

Any change in the direction of adding to the present authority of the
Commissioners over the school would seem to be in antagonism to
the tendency of recent legislation, which has increased the Attorney-
General’s control over the administration of the offices of the United
States courts and over all matters relating to United States prisons,
prisoners, and convicts. Quite recently the appropriations for the sup-
port of the jail in the District of Columbia, one-half the expense of
which, as in the case of the Reform School, is paid by the District
of Columbia, was by express enactment directed to be hereafter
expended under the direction of the Att:rney-General and not by the
Commissioners of the District of Columbia. To reserve the unity of
purpose indicated by this legislation, the same provision should be
enacted in regard to the appropriation for the Reform School, the
desirability and propriety of which has been heretofore advocated by
the Commissioners themselves. .

Question 5. Does the school provide for all necessary cases?

Answer. On several occasions in the history of the school, before the
erection of its latest buildings, it was necessary to request the courts
to suspeud commitments becaunse of the lack of accommodations. No
is)uch]suspension has been asked since the completion of the last family

uilding.

Question 6. Conditions of the most economical management.

Ansiwcer. The cost per head of subsistence, housing, clothing, and gen-
erally caring tor the boys in the school is below the cost in similar
institutions elsewhere in this country.

Question 7. What becomes of boys discharged from the school ?

Ansiwcer. Up to the 31st of March, 1897, there had been received in
the school 2,230 boys, of whom 225 remain. Owing to the absence of
the desired legislation, as has already been stated, an accurate record
of the career of boys subsequent to their discharge can not be shown,
but in & general way the resuits achieved by a large proportion have
been in every way satisfactory to the board and indicated the usefulness
and helpfulness of the school.

A few typical cases are submitted—these withont names, but their
identity is complete—and all are well known to those in the present

maragement of the school.

Partial record of discharged boys.
RErorRM ScHooL, D. C., April 1, 1897.

Nb::] Color. Employment. Address.
1162 | Colored..... P CORCHIMAN . cevvamcneee iiieiiieasinanresereceoaneaannns ‘Washington, D. C.
1170 | White ...... Blackemith . .ceeoiiiiiiii i it iteerienianacsone Da.

1182 [..... de ...... I0 DUSINPES coeeeriiiiiiiieiiniiacieraiiienaisciacnnns Baltimore, Md.
1183 |..... do.....j..... {1 T Wanshington, D. C.
1 Colored...... BAarber . ... e it ittt iiiie it ienireeeeaneann Do,
1 White...... Mininter of gospel coeeeiiene i iiiiiiaena.., Nevada.
1465 |..... do...... Bookkeeper. Baltimore and Potomac Railroad.......... Washington, D. C.
1468 |..... do...... ‘Telegraph operator, Baltimore aud Potomac Railroad.. Do.
1468 | Colored..... Doing well, higgh 8chool..ceenee.uenianiiiiiiiiieae. Do.
1718 | White......]..... 0. i etiieeitenescetocncensanasetecersnccicansacssonn Do.
835 { Colored.....|..... L 1 T R Oxford, Ala.
160 | White......}|..... 0. e ieeneceaeinecnccereocassencanscscsenscassusscanns ‘Washington, D. C.
280 1.... do...... Inbusiness . ... oiiie viiiiiiiiiiiiiieiaainrecanas Da.
1055 | Colored..... Driver, Washington Brick Co.....ooviviiiinniniiiaa.. Deo.
813 | White ...... In businera, Centor Market. .....oooviieiieninancnenne. Do.
1355 |..... do ...... Doing well ..o iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieaaa, Deo.
1868 |..... do...coi)ennns L Terre Haute, Ind.
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Partial record of discharged boys—Continued.

Nb';:_'" Color. Employment. Addrese.
Metropolitan police ..c..oeieerueriinrnnnrnneanenn.n Washington, D. C.
G CArPeNIEr .o e e riee .. . Do.
Foreman Los shop, Reform School . Do.
dDoingwell woeeannii il Do.
ker........ feeeeieitineene .. Do.
2001 | Colored..... CDoing well .....oiaan.... eeabe ettt iaittanirecaneas Do.
United States NaVy.ceeeioniirnnieeiineirennnacnenes
B0 11T 1 ; Do.
In hin-im-an ............................................ ' New York.
..... QOu i iiatcannecaneacasiaccascscsassoancaeaaoanans’ .
CONCDIMARN . e e e e iei i ieerii i iaassnscccsconnn sansas Wasahington, D. C.
United States Navy . .oooiiieieniiriiecieccnocesanncanns
United States marine . Do,
. Doing well .......... e R Do.
.| On Baltimore and Ohio Railroad ....................... Do.
With hisfather. ... o iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitnenrcanns Do,
United States Navy, petty officer ......... .. ... ...
Fire Department, District of Columbia .ooooeveeeaa... Do.
D TR Ty £ LT T Y Do.
Doingwell .oooioeiiaiaaoil, et teeeieenaeaaa, Do.
81 o ) Do.
B 327 T Do.
Porter in store .. Do,
Bookkeeper..... Do.
.| Coachman....... Do.
.; United States Army...... ..
Driver for a business firm.............................. Deo.
" Metropolitan police ....cooiieeei il Do.
"IN DUSINEAB. ceee et Philadelphia, Pa.
D 3 17U .
1493 | White ...... Atcollege.......ocuennieeaiiiiiiiiii i iiieieenee, Washington, D. C.
1491 | Colored..... Doing Well eeeenn e Do.
1870 | White......|..... L L Y R e Do.
1888 |..... do...... Real estate...... Doe.
1802 | Colored Doing well ........... Do,
1914 | White . United States marine. Do.
1922 ..... o . United States Navy.... . Do.
1318 ..., do...... Clerkinabank. ... .. o i iiiiiiiiiiiiaianans . Do.
T48 i..... do...... Manager of OPera cCOMpPany . .....ccoceuineiriiaaacanann.
415 ... do...... Farmer in Maryland—owns farm. .. cocveeiieieeinnann..
1457 ... do...... In business. ..... P eeeecaaeeeieeaaeienaaaan Baltiwore, Md,
807 i..... do...... Telegraph......cc.coivivieaan.. @ateescecscaaonnaanennn Washington, D. C.
1932 ... do...... In business, tailoring. . ... ..ol Knoxville, Tenn.
1704 | ..... do...... Doing woll ... . ..., senvona ceneseesemessannsannans . Texas.

Senator FAULKNER. Is there anything else, Colonel, that you want

the committee to hear?

Mr. CrAY. I think not. -

Representative NORTHWAY. You think you have covered everything,
do you?

Mr. CLAY. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. Does the board of trustees agree to this state-
ment in regard to the school which you have filed ¥

Mr, CLAY. Yes, sir; that embodies the board’s ideas. It was sub-
mitted to the board at a meeting held yesterday. It is also the idea of
the Department of Justice; that is, in regard to control of the school.
I would like to say just this on the point about how often the Attor-
ney-General visits the school. It seems to me that that has very little
bearing upon the question of taking it out of the control of the Depart-
ment of Justice. You might just as well ask how often he goes to the
Fort Leavenworth Penitentiary. It is the Department of Justice that
has this control, not the Attorney-General individually; it is through
the Department of Justice, and any of you gentlemen who areacquainted
with the provisions about prisoners and prison accounts will see that
you can not have very much better control or management of those
interests than they get now under the Department of Justice,
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Senator FAULKNER. I think it was an admirable idea of putting the

chief clerk on the board.

Mr, Cray. Thank you.
Scnator FAULKNER. You have the Department in full touch.

THE REFORM SCHOOL FOR GIRLS.

Senato; FAULKNER. Who is present representing the Reform School
for Girls

Mr. WiLLIAM C. ENpICOTT, Jr. I am president of the board of trus-
tees of the Reform School for Girls, and I have prepared a statement
covering the operations of the school and its needs. I only learned of
this hearing late yesterday afternoon, and therefore have not had an
opportunity to submit the statement to the board of trustecs. The state-
ment contains practically what has been recommended in the annual
reports of the board for the past three years; that is, since the school
was tirst opened.

One thing I wish to call attention to is that the appropriations for the
Reform School for Girls have always been made in the District appro-
priation bill, under the head of charities. Both Attorney-General Oluey
and Attorney-General Harmon have recommended that it be placed
under the head of reformatories and prisons, as is done in the case of
the Reform School for Boys. The officers that are appointed by the
board of trustees are confirmed by the Commissioners of the District.
That is practically the ouly difference between the institutions. 1 have
always thought that the institution was in no sense a charitable one,
Having it under the head of charities has from time to time led to more
or less complication. :

I think what is most desirable for the welfare of the school is that
the powers be concentrated as much as possible in one place. For the
first two years the Commissioners of the District disbursed the funds.
We tried very hard to get them to agree to the appointment of a treas-
urer of the school, but they put it oft from time to time, and that led
to difticulty, because we never knew how the accounts stood. Finally,
Iast year—it was in the autumn of 1895—we did appoint a treasurer,
and subsequently the appointment was confirmed by the Commissiouners.
Since then the funds have been disbursed through the treasurer.

Representative NoRTHWAY. Upon whose order? He disburses the
funds, but upon whose order?

Mr. EnprcoTrr. Of the tinance committee,

Representative NORTHWAY. Of the board of trustees?

Mr. Expico1T. Yes, sir. The members of the board of trustees are
appointed in exactly the same way as the board of trustees of the Retorm
School for Boys, The superintendent of the school makes requisition
for supplies for the ensuing month, and these requisitions are submitted
to the trustees at their monthly meetings, which are held on the last
Friday of every month. They authorize the president to approve these
requisitions, and if approved the superintendent takes them to who-
-ever the supplies are to be purchased from. Then all the bills for
expenditures are audited by the finance committee.

Senator FAULKNER. Are commitments to this school the same as to
the boy’s school?

Mr. ENprcoTT. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. The same authorities?

Mr. Expicorr. Yes,sir. On July 9, 1888, Congress passed an act to
incorporate the Reform School for Girls of the District of Columbia, and
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by said act nine trustees and their successors were created a body cor-
porate, to be known as the board of trustees of the Girls’ Reform School
of the District of Columbia. On July 14, 1892, Congress, in the District
of Columbia appropriation bill, appropriated $35,000 for the erection
and completion according to plans and specifications to be prepared by
the inspector of huiidings and approved by the Commissioners of the
District of Columbia, of a suitable building or buildings to be used as
a Reform School for Girls, to be expended under the direction of said
Commissioners. It was also stipulated that said building should be
erected on land belonging to the Government, to be selected by the
Attorney-General, the Secretary of War, and the Engineer Commis-
sioner of the District of Columbia. The land selected upon which to
erect the Girls’ Reformm School is at the corner of the Conduit and
Loughborough roads, and was an old farm of about 19 acres. The
building was built in accordance with the act of Cougress, and on or
about November 1, 1893, was handed over by the Commissioners of the
District to the board of trustees of the Reform School of the District of
Columbia. The title to the real and personal property of this institu-
tion is vested in the board of trustees, and at the dissolution of the
said corporation, or if it should cease for tho space of six months to
maintain a reform school for girls, all the property, real and personal,
of said corporation would vest in the United States.

The trustees are appointed by the President of the United States
upon the recommendation of the Attorney-General, each for the term
of three years, but in such manner that the terms of not more than
three of them shall expire within any one or the same year. The said
board of trustees has authority to appoint such officers, agents, teachers,
and other employees as may be necessary, and to fix the rate of com- -
pensation of the same, subject to the approval of the Commissioners of
the District of Columbia.

The president of the board of trustees each year makes an annual
report to the Attorney-General, to be accompanied by the annrual report
of the superintendent and treasurer.

Since the founding of the institution the Girls’ Reform School of the
District of Columbia has been placed under the head of charities aund
corrections in the District of Columbia appropriation bills, while the
Boys’ Reformm School has been placed under the head of reformatories
and prisons. This has led to trouble. Attorney-General Olney and
Attorney-General Harmon have both recommended that in the District
appropriation bill the Girls’ Reformm School be placed under the head
of reformatories and prisons, as the school is not in any sense a chari-
table institution. It has further been urged that it is for the interest
of the school that the appointments made by the board of trustees
should be confirmed or approved by the Attorney-General, and not
by the District Commissioners as at present. This would avoid delay
and would place the Girls’ Reform School in the same relation to the
Department of Justice as the Boys’ Reform School. The preseunt
method of confirmation of ofticers gives rise to unnecessary trouble and
inconvenience.

Number of girls comnmitted to the school since it8 opening, 62; num-
ber of girls released, 38.

The following classes of girls are committed to the school: The judges
of the criminal and police courts of the District of Columbia have
power to commwit to the school (1) any girl under 18 years of age who
may be liable to punishment by imprisonment under any existing law
of the District of Columbia; (2) any girl under the age of 18, with the
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consent of her parent or guardian, against whom any charge of commit-
-ting any crime or misdemeanor shall have been made the punishment
of which on conviction would be confinement in jail or prison; (3) any
girl under 18 who is destitute of a suitable home and adequate means
of obtaining an honest living and who is in danger of being brought up
or is brought up to lead an idle and vicious life; (4) any girl under 13
who is incorrigible or habitually disregards the commands of her father
or mother or guardian, who leads a vagrant life, or resorts to immoral
places or practices, or neglects or refuses to perform labor suitable to
her years and condition, or to attend school. The president of the board
of trustees may commit such girls as are mentioned in the foregoing third
and fourth classes upon application or complaint in writing of a parent
or guardian or relative having charge of such girl, and upon such testi-
mony in regard to the facts stated as shall be satisfactory to him.
Fifty-one girls have been committed by the police court; nine girls by
the president of the board of trustees; two girls by the supreme court
of the District of Columbia. When the president of the board commits
girls to the institution, it has been the custom to take a sworn statement
from the parent or guardian, or relative having charge of such child,
and then to place said papers in the hands of the police, who investi-
gate the matter and report to the trustees whether the statements made

by the applicant are true.
Girls, unless sooner discharged, are committed to the institution until

21 years of age. i

It is earnestly desired that Congress should appropriate $50,000, in
order that ninety or more rooms could be added to the school. At
present the institution is built to accommodate twenty-seven girls only.
The building is ill adapted to its uses in every respect. When it was
handed over to us by the Commissioners of the District there were
no gratings upon the windows, no fire escap?s upon the building, the
system of plumbing and heating was as bad as it could be—so much so
that for the year ending June 30, 1897, Congress appropriated for erec-
tion of fire escapes $500; for changing from Smead heating systemn to
steam heating and changing the plumbing, $2,200; there were no proper
locks upon the doors ot the building. In fact the trustees have been
compelled from time to time to spend a great deal of money in making
the institution one from which it is impossible to escape. At present
there are four women oflicers in the institution and four men connected
with the place. It is absolutely impossible to separate good from bad
girls. Innocent children who have never committed crime are thrown
with criminals. The building is constructed in such a way that the
girls can not be separated. If Congress will appropriate $50,000, the
same forcp of officers, with possibly two additional teachers, could run
the entire institution. Though the number ot girls is small at present,
it is imnpossible to leave them alone, and some one of the women con-
nected with the institution have to be on hand at all times. At present
I can not say that the institution is run economically, owing to the
small number of inmates, but if the school can be increased, the cost per
capita would be reduced, so that it would be no more expensive to sup-
port girls in this institution than in other reformatory institutions in
this cguntry.

The school has the reputation of being a colored girls’ reform school,
but is for the reception of both white and colored girls. There is no
way of separating white and colored girls, and thus only colored girls
have been committed to our cate. 1 am informed by the judges of
the police court that there is great need for an increase in the capac-
ity of this school, and that arrangements should be made so that white
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a8 well as colored girls could be received. At present, many white
girls who, provided the institution was large enough, would be sent to
the Reform School are sent to the jail or the workhouse, where they
associate at once with criminals, and where the chaunce for reformation
becomes less and less, probably, each day they are there. The House
of the Good Shepherd in Washington and the House of Mercy have
for some time been active in their efforts to reform white girls, and
each year receive a large number of these girls who otherwise would be
sent to the jail or workhouse. Until the Girls’ Reform School was
established no effort was made in the District of Columbia to reform
colored girls, as these institutions above referred to have no means for
accommodating them. If this appropriation should be made by Con-
gress, as requested, I would suggest that the plans for such an addition
to the school, when caretully prepared by an architect under the direc-
tion of the board of trustees ot the school, be submitted to the Attorney-
General of the United States and the Engineer Commissioner of the
District for their approval. The plans of the present building, as pre-
pared by the inspector of buildings and approved by the Commissioners
of the District of Columnbia (though the trustees took infinite pains to
find out the best system followed in the country for such an institution,
submitted such plans to the Commissioners and urged their adoption),
have been proved to be as bad as possible.

On October 28, 1896, a treasurer was appointed by the trustees,
which appointment was approved by the Commissioners of the District
of Columbia on December 18, 1896, on condition that no liability for
salary be incurred until an appropriation is made therefor by Congress.
The salary was fixed by the trustees at $600, as this appeared to be a
fair compensation, particularly in view of the fact that the treasurer is
obliged to give a bond with two or more sureties, to be approved by the
First Comptroller of the Treasury, in the sum of $20,000, conditioned
that she shall faithfully account for all money received by her as treas-
urer. This bond is the same as the treasurer of the Reform School gives,
as the same law in this respect applies to both schools. On June 8,
1896, in the general deficiency bill, an appropriation wac made to pay
the treasurer a salary of $50 per month, from January 1 to June 30,
1896. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 1897, Congress has failed to
make an appropriation, and numerous efforts have been made to obtain
an appropriation of $50 per month in the deficiency bill to pay the
treasurer, which thus far have not been successful. For the year end-
ing June 30, 1898, Congress has appropriated $300 only to pay the
treasurer.

In view of the law establishing the office of treasurer, it seems to be
unjust that the salary of the treasurer should have been reduced one-
halt. Up to the time the treasurer was appointed by the school, the
funds of the institution were disbursed by the Commissioners of the
District. The reason why a treasurer was not appointed, in the first
place, was owing to opposition on the part of the Commissioners of the
District and the commissioner of charities, and it is quite evident that
during the three years preceding the appointment of the treasurer the
funds were disbursed by the Commissioners of the District without any
authority of law. The trustees were powerless to do anything in regard
to this, as the appointment could not be made without the approval of
the Commissioners. The delay in approving the appointment of a treas-
urer wo'1ld seem to show how desirable it is that the law, as requested
above, should be altered so that the appointments are approved by the
Attorney-Geueral, : a

.Sq DOO. 185'—"—4
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- Representative NORTHWAY. Are the girls permitted to go out of
doors, to roam at will?

Mr. ENpicoTT. No, 8ir; except under the eye of some one,

Senator MARTIN. Has the president of your institution the power to
commit girls without some legal process?

Mr. Enpicorr. No, sir; he has not that power, but there is commit-
ment after a careful examination of all the facts in any particular case.
For instance, before I commit a child I see his or her parents or guard-
ians; and I take their sworn statement. I inform myself as best I can
of the merits of the case, and put the papers in the hands of the police
to wake a report about it. So far as 1 know, since 1 have been presi-
dent of the school, or since the opening of the school in November, 1893—
1 have committed nine girls—there has never been any difficulty about
commitment. The girls committed certainly were girls who ought prop-
erly to have been committed.

Representative NORTHWAY. Are most of the commitments for crimes?

Mr. EnpicorT. Yes; most of the inmates are incorrigibles. 1 might
better give information on that point by veferring the committee to this
report, which gives the statistics as to commitments and the causes for
which the girls have been placed in the school. (Mr. Endicott submit-
ted here the annual report of the Reform School for Girls for the year
1896.)

Representative NORTHWAY. Read us some of the cases.

Mr. ExpicoTrT. Well, I find here, for instance, in the list of offenses
since the opening of the school, 27 for incorrigibility, 1 for malicious
mischief, 1 for assault, 13 for vagrancy, 1 for horse stealing, 19 for lar-
ceny. I think that the saddest thing about the institution is that girls
are placed here who have committed crimes and who come often from
very bad places in Washington. These criminals so committed are
thrown in contact with little girls who may be wild but who have never
committed a crime.

- Representative NORTHWAY. Have you no power of separation, no
\\iay of ’preventing this contact of the fairly good with the criminal
classes

Mr. ENDICcOTT. No, sir; it would take some time to explain that.
The building was originally erected, in accordance with a law of Con-
gress, under the supervision of the inspector of buildings of the District
of Columbia, and it was turned over to——

Representative NORTHWAY. My question was directed only as to
whether you had the power of classifying and separating the various
grades of criminal, or rather, as 1 said, to separate the fairly good from
the very bad.

Mr. ExpicoTT. I was just coming to that. The building was handed
over to the trustees by the Commissioners. The trustees had investi-
gated the matter of buildings and had inquired into it very carefully.
They obtained plans which they considered the best for the purpose in
hand, and they urged upon the Commissioners that these plans be
adopted. Instead of this the inspector erected a building that is per-
fectly useless for the particular purpose to which it is put. When it
was handed over to us, it had no gratings on the windows; no locks on
the doors that were of any use; the locks were the sort we have in
private houses. In fact, the building was put up in such a way that it
i8 impossible to separate the good from the bad girls.

Representative PITNEY, What is the maximum capacity of the school ?

Mr. Enpicorr. Twenty-seven girls.

Representative PITNEY. 1s it full ail the time?

'Mr, END1COTT. Yes, sir.
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Representative PITNEY. How much ground have you?

Mr. ENDICOTT. About 19 acres.

Representative PITNEY. Surrounded by a wall?

Mr. ENDICOTT. No, sir; there is a lot in which the girls are allowed
to play, and they work in the fields, as they have done more or less
before coming to the school; and besides, someone connected with the
institution is always watching them. There are four men on the place—
overseer, engineer, night watchman, and laborer.

Senator FAULKNER. Have you been able to make any progress with
these girls—any moral progress?

Mr. ENp1coTT. Yes; I think we have been doing something toward
their reformation. Since the school has been opened, 62 girls have
been admitted and 38 have been released. Of the 38 some have been
returned to the school—I don’t know the number; but a great many of
them have turned out well. I think some of the ladies have kept track
of them and can give you more definite information on this point.

Senator MARTIN. Do you need a capacity beyond that which you
now have?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir; what we have been urging is that Congress
shall give us $50,000 to increase the room and efticiency of .the school.
1f Congress will do that, we can build a building in such a way as to
be able to separate the criminals from the other girls; and then we
could admit white girls. All there now are colored, although it was
designed as a reformatory for both whitc and colored.

Representative NORTHWAY. They regard it as hard punishment to
be there, do they not? _

Mr, ENDICOTT. Yes, sir; with the exception, perhaps, of those who
like the institution.

Representative PITNEY. What do you teach them?

Mr. EnpicorT. Well, they are taught to do cooking, wasbing, iron-
ing, and all that kind of thing. I might say that in the work and in
every other way we do separate the bad from the good as far as possible.

Representative NORTHWAY. What becomes of the white girls? You .
say the iustitution was intended for both white and colored ?

Mr. EnpicorT. Yes; the white girls go to jail or to the workhouse,
A great many are receivod in the House of the (GGood Shepherd in
Georgetown, and a great many in the House of Mercy.

Representative NORT:iWAY. How are they treated in jail?

Mr. ENDpicoTT. Just as other prisoners are, you know.

Representative NORTHWAY. Incorrigibles, merely incorrigibles; girls
who are not guilty of any criminal act are not sent to jail, are they?

Mr. ENpicorr. I think, up to the time the school was established,
that as fast as even the little girls were brought before the courts they
were sent to jail, and they are sent there now sometimes, I am informed.

Representative NorTHWAY. White girls, too?

Mr. ENvicorT. Yes, sir.

‘Representative NORTHWAY. Well, that is barbarous.

Mr. ExpicorT. That might be remedied; and it could be, as I said,
because the school is an institution for both white and colored, if the
school were increased. We have already gone to great expense, but if
the accommodations were increased so that we could receive 90 or even
100 girls, or 125 or 130, we would have to add but very few extra ofticers;
probably two teachers would be all the additional help required to run
it. Some extra force is necessary, because you see these girls are per-
fectly crazy to escape; they like to get away; you have to watch them
all the time,
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Representative PITNEY. You have heard to-day something about the
system and management of the Boys’ Reform Schoolt

Mr. ENpIcoTT. Yes.

Representative PITNEY. It does not appear that it is necessary to
keep the boys under this constant restraint you speak of at the girls’
school.

Mr. ENp1corT. Perhaps not. I do not know how it would be if we
had to deal with white girls, but it is impossible to adopt any other
means with colored girls.

Senator MARTIN. Are they low in intellect generally?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, but I think they are very quick to learn.

Senator FAULKNER. But that is only to a certain extent?

Mr. ENpIcoTT. Yes. -

Senator FAULKNER. What are they taught?

Mr. ENpicorT. They teach them to read, to write, geography, and
the elementary things that are taughtin school. Besides, theyare taught
to cook. They divide the school into different sections, which work at
different times. Thus for a certain time a number of the girls would be
in the kitchen, others in the laundry, and others at various other kinds
of work, '

Representative PITNEY. You teach them sewing?

Mr. ENpicotrT. Of course; and from what I have heard about girls
who are put to housework they are considered to be well trained.

Representative PITNEY. But a good many of them were originally
vicious?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, a great many of them; for when the school was
first opened there was very little to prevent them from escaping, and
every year we have had to guard more and more against it; te provide
more precautionary measures. It is still necessary, for only the other
day two girls got over a fence that was about 10 feet high, with five
rows of barbed wire at the top.

Senator FAULKNER. That beats the boys’ school.

Representative PITNEY. Yes; it does.

Mr. Enprcorr. What I meant was to show the constant desire for
escape. I don’t think the school will accomplish the intended results
until enlarged as I have stated. But asitis, I regard it as a good insti-
tution.

Representative NorRTiiwaAY. What is the cost per capita?

Mr. ENpicorT. About $300. This appears to be very high, and I
presume it is, because I do not think that the average cost is more than
$125 at other institutions. Of course, it will be understood that under
the same conditions the cost per capita could be tremendously reduced.
If the accommodations could be enlarged, we could accommodate prob-
ably four or five times more than at present and at the little extra cost
I have said. Besides we have been obliged to spend a great deal of
money in making repairs, '

Representative NORTHWAY. About how much?

Mr. ENpicorr. About $25,000. I might mention that in case of fire
there had been no fire escapes, and our system was a very slow one.
The other day I recommended a plan by which the doors could be opened,
all of them at once. We could not do that, however, because when the
doors are opened they lap over about 3 inches. That is the kind of a
thing they built. I would snggest, therefore, that if Congress does give
the increase we ask for, the board should have the authority to build on
plans approved by the Attorney-General and the Engineer Commissioner

of the District,
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Representative NORTHWAY. In case of fire someone has-to run to
open each door?

Mr. Expicort. Yes, sir. I think that if our suggestions are carried
out we would have a building to suit all purposes. The trustees are
interested in it, and they are taking pains to inform themselves.

Representative 'ITNEY. 1 wish to get now at your system of organ-
ization and discipline. In the first place, you are the president of the
board? )

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir,

Representative P1rNEY. And you have a superintendent?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir.

Representative P1rNry, What are his duties? Is it a man or a
woman ¥

Mr. ENpicorr. The superintendent is a woman, sir,

Representative PITNEY. And her duties are——

Mr. Exp1corT. She has control of the whole thing, All the officers
are under her. There are two teachers, one of them a school-teacher
and the other a sewing teacher., Then there is the matron, who has
charge of all the cooking; and the superintendent also works in the
laundry, which makes her labors rather hard. -

Representative P1rNEyY. Now, there has been some comment, whether
in the newspapers or not I don’t remember—some criticism—I- don’t
know what, relating to the great number of changes at the institution.
Can you make any statement about it?

Mr. ENDICOTT. We have Lad a great deal of difficulty with regard to
the ofticers of the school. I think that since the school was opened we
have had five superintendents. Three resigned, one died, one went
away,and one was made to resign, I think,toward the end of last August;
and since then there has been a lady at the head of the institution who
was a trained nurse and whom we got throngh Dr. W. W, Johunson here.
1 think she is doing the work very satisfactorily to the trustees.

Representative P1TNEY. What has been the cause of these very
many changes?

Mr. END1coTT. Well, incompetency, principally.

Representative PITNEY. On the part of the superintendents?

Mr. Enpicorr. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Does that include the matron?

Mr. Enbicorr. No, sir.

Representative PITNEY. What have been the other changes, then?

Mr. ENpIicoTT. I think we have only had two matrous, although we
have had several teachers. I don't remember the exact number.
Probably Miss Loring, one of the trustees, who is here, can give the
information.

Miss LorRING. We have had three teachers. One was promoted to
the superintendency. The first trial of one was not satisfactory, and
she left; and we had one teacher who resigned on account of trouble
in her family. One was removed on account of friction. Then the
former teacher, who left on account of illness, returned to us. She was
very satisfactory before she left, in fact, and she is so now, as the
superintendent tells me.

Representative PITNEY (to Mr. Endicott). What salaries do you pay?

Mr. Expicort. To the superintendent, $1,000; to the matron, $600,
and to the teachers, £480.

Representative PITNEY. And their board in each case?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir. I should have mentioned also the over-
seer’s salary, He gets $720; the engineer, $480; the night watchman,
$365; the laborer, $300, and the treasurer, $600.
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Representative PITNEY. Is that the case, the treasurer’s, in which
we incorporated an appropriation for the first time?

Mr. EnpicoTT. Yes, sir; the treasurer was appointed with the under-
standing that the Distr:ct should have no liability in regard to the
salary until an appropriation therefor was made by Congress. The
trustees, under the law, had authority to fix the compensation, and did
fix it at $£600. The work is very laborious, although the sum to be
disbursed last year was only $10,500. Under the law, however, the
treasurer is obliged to give a bond of $20,000, which is to be approved
by the First Comptroller. So she had to give this bond of $20,000,
and Congress for the last fiscal year made an appropriation of $30 a
month to pay her. No; she did not enter upon her duties until the 1st
of January, 1895, and Congress made the appropriation to pay her from
the 1st of January to the 1st of June. I don’t think they have made
an appropriation since then.

Representative PITNEY. The deficiency bill will show all that.

Mr. ENDICOTT. My impression is that it failed to get through, so
that the treasurer is at present serving without compensation, and for
the year ending June, 1593, you have appropriated only $300. I think
this is a hardship, because if Mrs. Dean had not a friend to go on her
bond she would have been obliged to go to a trust company, and the
premium would have amounted probably to $300, the sum appropriated
for her.

Representative PITNEY. You think, then, that this salary ought to
be larger?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir.
Representative P1r'NEY. What is the sanitary condition of the school ?

Mr. ExpicorT. I think it is very good now. When the school was
first built, they had a system that was very bad, as they had to keep
three furnaces running on account of' it.

Representative PITNEY. To keep the place dry? :

Mr. ENpIcoTT. It was what they call a system of dry closets, and it
was considered unhealthy. Last year we gotan appropriation of 32,200,
and have made the place as sanitary as we could with that amount,
and the very best proof of that is that there has been no sickness to
amount to anything.

Representative PITNEY. Is there a system of sewers there?

Mr. ENpDICOTT. Yes; our sewer, I believe, connects with the sewer on
the Conduit road.

Representative PITNEY. What relation does the work of your school
hold to the general charitable work of the District? Do you cooperate?

Mr. ENpICOTT. No, sir; not unless we have to. There has been a
great deal of friction, 1 understand, with the commissioner of chari-
ties in relation to this school.

Representative PITNEY. You mean the superintendent of charities?

Mr. EnpIicorT. Yes, sir. In the early days of the school there was
a great deal of trouble, owing to the fact that the accounts were passed
through the hands of the Commissioners. In fact, we never knew
where we stood. . Tradesmen were conplaining because their bills were
not paid, and other payments were not met for four and sometimes five
months. Now things run much more smoothly. What I would like
to see done would be that ‘“he trustees—there are nine of them, and
they take a good deal of interest in the school—visit it more frequently.
They visit it now once a week, I think, except, of course, during the
summer months, when a good many of thein are away. 1 think that
the officers ought to be confirmed by the Attorney-General. Iaminthe
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Attorney-General’s office myself. All the business is done there, and
Ithink t he more concentration the better.

Representative ’I'TNEY. I8 there any cooperation between the Board
of Children’s Guardians and your school?

Mr, Enbicorr. Yes; we have several times released our girls to them,
and we have taken gir]s whom the agent of the Board of Children’s
Guardians has recommended.

Representative NORTHWAY. But you have no supervision over it or
the board over you?

Mr. ENDICOTT. No, sir.

Representative NoRTHWAY. The cooperation, then, is entlrely vol-
untary.

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir; whenever it is asked. Only to-day I wrote
to the Board of Children’s Guardians, for instance, and said that a girl
ought to be released; that there was a good home for her in Philadel-
phia. We have no fund for transportation, but we would——

Representative NORTRWAY. Did you say that the Board of Children’s
Guardians have nothing to do with placing girls in your school ?

Mr. EnpicorT. I don’t think they have, directly., They have sent
people to recommend that girls be committed.

Representative NORTHWAY. That you might be instrumental in hav-
ing the court pass upon such cases? A

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Did you hear my inquiry addressed to Colonel
Clay with regard to the relation that ought to exist, or might exist,
between the boys’ school and the general clmlty work of the DlstnctT
What is your opinion as to the relation between that charity work and
your school?

Mr. ENDICOTT. It scems to me that in a case like this, a government
by trustees, the more the control is concentrated and confined to one
subject the more forcible it is. I think the only difficulty we have had
was from the clash with vutside people, who thought they had the
authority to act, and which they had not. Our trustees are perfectly
capable of looking aftter this institution, and the less they have to do
with other people the better. After all, the control of the Attorney-
General is merely nominal. The annual report is made to him, and he

makes recommendations as to both of the reform schools. _

Representative NORTHWAY. He occupies the same relation, then, to
the schools as the governors of States do to reformatories?

Mr. ENDICOTT. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Is there any one else whom it would be
desirable to hear?

Miss HARRIET B. LORING. Ido not care to say much, but I don’t think
that justice has been done to the girls. They are well trained, and they
do everything they are taught extremely well. They are industrious.
They work a great deal in the garden, but there are a half a dozen
who are the ringleaders of the school, and who are troublesome. These
are the ones who wish to escape. A great many of the others, { should
say, are excellent in their conduct. They have improved very much,
and, as I said, are well trained. I know this, because several of the
glrls who have gone away and come back have been recommended for
good conduct. They report and say they are coming on finely. I have
asked the girls if they found difficulty in getting places, and they
invariably have said, ¢ Oh, no; because we are so well trained.”

Representative NORTEWAY. You would say, then, that most of these

are tractable girls?
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Miss LorING. Yes, sir; cunsidering what colored people are in these
days. We all know that a good deal of what was good in the race has
gone, and that they are now in a transition state. The mothers of
several of these girls have come to me and said, ¢ You can’t do anything
with such children as these;” but we have done a great deal with them

according to our means, .
Representative NORTHWAY. Do they have any conception, any great

conception, of right and wrong?

Miss LORING. Yes; they have—many of them. I think a great deal
of the trouble has come from the officers themselves; but that is the
story of all reformatories. The officers are there for their own interest,
and that interest is often outside of the institution. Itisalonely place
out there, and they complain of it. Of course, as I say, they always
want to be coming to town, and you know that has a tendency to make
the girls restless; but for all that a good deal can be said of them
that is good. They are clean; they learn to keep themselves clean.
The girls have two hot baths a week. They take pride in making
themselves attractive. They would prefer to have any punishment
rather than to be put out of their cells, which they have made to suit
themselves. It is by tenderness, good food, regularity of habit, and
kindness that we are reforming them. The police court, however, has
sent us some cases who would not hesitate to use a red-hot iron to hurt

the others.
Representative NORTHWAY. But as a general rule they will not sub-

mit to teaching?

Miss LOoRING. Oh, no; not all the time. There was one of the girls
the other day who bit the watchman. In another case, there was a poor
child who screcamed when she was brought, and exclaimed “ Why was
1 ever sent here?” I think the police court understands, and Judge
Miller does not wish to send out women of 19 to this school, because a
colored girl of 19 is more experienced than a white woman of perhaps
25 or 26. I think it is all wrong to send these old girls out there.

Mr. CHAPIN BROWN. I would like to emphasize the fact that this
girls’ school is a reformatory. Schools in the North may be considered
as charities and may be so conducted, but I think so far as the South
is concerned, where we have this colored element to deal with, the in-
stitution ought decidedly to be a reformatory. That is my experience.
We have discussed.this a great deal, and we have reached the con-
clusion which I have only thus briefly intimated. We started in, for
instance, by not allowing any corporal punishment; but we found, with
this element to deal with, that it required severe punishment, and that
it was just as necessary as it is sometimes in prisons.

Representative NorRtHWAY. In the State of Ohio they thought that
they could get along without it.

Mr. EnpIcoTT. I wouid like to say here that Judge Miller and J udge
Kimball, who are judges in the District police courts, that Judge Miller
said the other day that he would be very glad to appear before the
committes at any time and show the necessity of increasing the accomo-
dations at this school. This necessity is certainly very apparent, and -
the system, 8o far as a reform school for girls is concerned, is quite a
poor one for this District. -

Representative NORTHWAY. The school ought to be commensurate
with the needs of the District, or entirely abolished.

Miss LORING. One or the other.

Representative PITNEY. Do you wish to say something to the com-

mittee, Miss Rawlins?
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Mr. EnNpicoTT. I would like, if Miss Rawlins is to make any state-
ment, that the trustces should be present.

Representative PITNEY (to Miss Rawlins). You may have heard
something of what has been said as to the organization of the school,
the control of the chief officers over the employees, and of the employees
over the girls, the inmates of the school; and I understand you wish
to make some statement on these matters. How long were you con-
nected with the school?

Miss RAWLINS. Seven months. The first of last July, I was requested
to resign, and this was a few days after the appropriation was passed
by the House. I was asked to resign by letter.

Representative PITNEY. In what capacity were you there?

Miss RAWLINS. As teacher. Before that I had supervision of the
laundry, and had charge of the girls.

Representative PITNEY. Where did you get your experience and
where did you come from ¥

Miss RAWLINs. I went to the institution indorsed by Doctor Lincoln
and Mr. Stilson Hutchins. I had done teaching myself in the South.
My father was killed in the civil war.

Representative PITNEY. How long have you been in Washington?

Miss RAWLINS. For the past tweuty-five years. :

Representative PITNEY. Had you any previous experience before
going to this girls’ school?

Miss RAWLINS. Not in reformatory work. I went out there to teach
the girls, and help to reform them if I could. I understood exactly
what the work was to be, for I was raised in the Southern States. I
knew the characteristics of negro girls and felt that I was qualified,
mentally and morally, to teach them and lead them to a better life. I
went out there for that purpose, and I did not think that any charge
could be brought against me for inefficiency in the schoolroom work.

Representative PITNEY. YWhat were you discharged for?

Miss RAWLINS. Lack of harmony.

Representative PITNEY. Between whom?

Miss RAWLINS. I suppose it was the oflicers out there.

Mr. ENpICOTT. Wasn’t it between you and the superintendent?

Miss RAWLINS. It might have been.

Repwesentative PITNEY. Were you under the control of the superin-
tendent?

Miss RAWLINS. Yes.

Representative PITNEY. And you understood that at the time?

Miss RAWLINS. Yes. -

MI" ENDICOTT. Was there anything said to you about insubordina-
tion

Miss RAWLINS, Yes; in one instance, I believe.

Mr. ENpicorT. Perhaps you might give all the reasous relating to
the request for your resignation.

Miss RAWLINS. I know that there was no charge of inefficiency in
the school, or waste in the laundry, and there was no charge of disre-
spectful language, except in one instance.

Represeutative PITNEY. No matter about those details for the moment.
They wrote you a letter asking you to resign?

Miss RAWLINs. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. And they specified a lack of harmony?

Miss RAWLINS, Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Perhaps they did not want to say things
specifically. What success did you have in controlling and instructing

the girls?
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Miss RAwLINS, If T have to speak for myself, most excellent success.
I think I was as popular as any other officer, and more than some, and
I think all the trustees will admmit that they never had a better teacher.

Representative PITNEY. Now, you may make a brief statement of
what the lack of harmony consisted.

Miss RAWLINS. Well, the superintendent gave us a young woman by
the name of Miss Rooney, who came there invested with unlimited
power—a dangerous thing in the hands of older people. To her the
printed rules that were given to the other officers to guide them were
practically dead letters, because she did as she thought best. She
altered, amended, and suspended them, so that when we went to bed we
didn’t know what rules we would have the next day.

Representative PITNEY. Give specific instances of a practical differ-
ence between yourself and the superintendent.

Miss RAWLINS. Well, it was the lack of cooperation as to myself and
the other officers. It was next to impossible for me to have her assist
in keeping the girls under control. Then again, her punishments were
excessive, The girls became very turbulent, and to me it was always
preterable to make them submit pleasantly than by any punishment.
On Saturday nights she made a rule that the girls could remain out of
their rooms one hour Jater as a reward for good conduct. Yet on some
Saturday nights there weren’t over six of them out. The rest were
being punished. Then the othergirls were learning crimes that they——

Representative PITNEY. What do you mean by that?

Miss RAWLINS. I mean that they permitted the criminals to mingle
ith the younger and better girls.

Mr. ENDICOTT. Now, was it possible to Have separated these girls?
I think you should take that into cousideration.

Miss RAWLINS, No; I don’t think so, but I think the younger girls

should be sent to the orphan asylam.
Representative PITNEY. You did not then work on the lines of the

superintendent ?

Miss RAWLINS. I presume you could put it in that way. But as to
the superintendent, instead of being at prayers in the morning that
lady would be just leaving her room, and it would not have bothered
me or the other teacher to hold these prayers. Consequently the
children were left to themselves, as they should not have been; but there
is other evidence of the way in which she acted. I used all the tact I
could but——
~ Representative NORTHWAY. Did the same difficulty exist between
the other teachers and the superintendent as between you and her?

Miss RAWLINS. Yes, sir; in a measure,

Representative NORTHWAY. Were the others asked to resign?

Miss RAWLINS, No, sir; I was the onlyone. They were more depend-
ent, and fell into the same line of action with the superintendent.

Representative PITNEY. Irrespective of any objection, except a per-
sonal one, I would like you to say in what general respects the work
could be improved ?

Miss RAWLINS. 1 think an improvement ought to be made in the
habit of keeping the girls so long. And, then as to the younger girls,.
they ought to be put out into a colored orphan asylum; the good girls
to be sent to their parents, as one was sent the other day. I think it
was wrong to take in a child of 10 years of age on a charge of incorri-
gibility, and yet I found her to be an excellent child, obedient, respectful,
and no fault to find with her. Aud yet there she was; there with girls
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of 20 and 21 who were hardened criminals. Again, they have kept girls
there for three years; from the time the place was built. Now, you can
not judge of the reformation of one of these girls in the same old sur-
roundings. They onght to be taken out, given their liberty, and give
them a chance to show what they really are away from the institution.
They are bound to behave themselves, of course, in confinement,

Representative PITNEY. How many years do you think it would be
proper for these girls to be kept in the Reform School, on an average.

Miss RAWLINS. I don’t know; but I know that girls are there who
should have long since gone.

Representative PITNEY. Your idea is to keep them there only long
enough to give them a chance?

Miss RAWLINS. Yes, sir. I think that homes should be found for
them, and then they would not be discontented and disobedient. By
keeping them always in the same condition they get discouraged and
bad. And then as to their being taught. It is not being done prop-
erly. I notice that the Senate has made an appropriation for a cook.
Why, there are girls there 19 years of age who should be out cooking
for families,

Representative PITNEY. Does not the matron teach that? Is she
the superintendent of cooking also?

Miss RAWLINS. No; she was employed as a matren, but she does
superintend the cooking of the food. My idea is that these girls must
be taught as servants. There is no reason why a half a dozen of the
girls who are there now should not be taken into the kitchen and taught
to cook. Butout at that institution they say the easiest way is the best
way, and I think that is really their method. I belicve one of the trus-
tees has said that.

Representative PITNEY. Have you any other snggestions?

Miss RAWLINS. Well, I think that the board should consist of one-

halt women.
Representative PITNEY. And that I suppose would produce more

harmony?
Miss RAwLINS. I don’t know. Last year there were but three women

on the board.

Representative PITNEY. We, of course, know that the work out there
must be very difficult, but it has been suggested by. the officials that
they have not been given the adequate means to do the work, and I
presume you agree about the state of the building and the difficulties
of the management. Now, let us get such suggestions as you may have
to make so as to show how these difficulties may be met, how a better
system could be employed, and anything that may occur to you.

Miss RAWLINS. Do you mean as to the separation of the girls, and
the bringing of white girls there?

Representative PITNEY. No; [ mean, can you in general terms sug-
gest a better system by which the girls can now be better trained and
reformed ?

Miss RAwLINS, I have said that 1 thought that the younger girls
should be sent to a colored orphan asylum. They are not fit subjects
for reformatories. Again, I have said that the girls should not be kept
there too long a time; that they should be put out into service, and
they should keep only there the incorrigibles. By this means they
would have half of the cells vacant. Again, white girls should be sent
out to this institution, and not sent to the jail. It was built for both

black and white,
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Representative P1TNEY. To divide the white and colored girls, it
would be necessary to have more buildings, would it not?

Miss RAWLINS. Not at all. You could remove the older girls, and
those longest there from that institution, and thus keep some of the
rooms vacant, .

Representative PITNEY. Have you any further suggestions?

Miss RAwLINs. I think I have stated all that occurs to me now.

Mr. ENpicort. The girl referred to as only 10 years of age 1 inves.
tigated very carefully. I found that she was a very notorious character,
and had been known to the police for a year or more,



THIRD HEARING.

THE INSANE; THE DEAF AND DUMB; THE FEEBLE-MINDED.

APRIL 8,-1897—4 o’clock p. m.

Present: Hon. C. J. Faulkner, presiding; Hon. Thomas S. Martin,
Hon. Mahlon Pitney, and Hon. S. A. Northway.

Senator FAULKNER. Gentlemen, the subject of this hearing is “The
Insane; The Deaf and Dumb; The Feeble-Minded.”

Those to be heard are Dr. Godding, of St. Elizabetl’s; Dr. Gallaudet,
of Kendall Green; Mr. Lewis, of the Board of Children’s Guardians.

The topics are (1) the provisions for the care of the District insane
and the method of commitment; (2) the deaf and dumb of the District
at Kendall Green; (3) the fecble-minded—in what institutions placed,
comparative cost at various institutions, increase or decrease in the
number of cases; (4) the need of an institution for inebriates.

The CLERK. Statements as to the insane and the deaf and dumb
have been submitted in writing, as follows:

THE INSANE.

GOVERNMENT HOSPITAL FOR THE INSANE,
' Wushington, (. C., April 8, 1897.

Sir: At the request of your committee, I would respectfully submit
the following statement in writing: :

The indigent insane of the Distriet of Columpia, including the tran-
sient class, are admitted to this hospital upoif the order of the Com-
missioners of the District under the provisioys of the organic act of
Congress creating the hospital. (See U. S./Rev. Stat., secs. 1844~
4850.) At the close of the last fiscal year-the total number of persons
so committed remaining in the hospital June 30, 1896, was 794, of
whom 106 were of the transient class. The sum of $104,049 appropri-
ated in the District bill for the support of her insane for that year has
been paid to the bospital authorities for their support in monthly
checks from the Commissioners of the District, on vonchers submitted.
This is the extent of the connection of the District authorities with the
hospital. The Government Ilospital is under the control of the Secre-
tary of vhe Interior, the hospitgl superintendent being appointed by
him, and the Board of Visitors by the President of the United States.
The interests of the District of Columbia are protected by the provi-
sion of the law which limi: : nembership of the Board of Visitors to
citizens of the District. No distinetion is made in the case of the
insane tvom the District over other classes that are provided for by law
iu that institution, The provision is humane and liberal, recognizing
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that the indigence dependent on the misfortune of insanity is entitled
to something more than a mere almshouse care.

The law of commitment of insane persons from the District, including
the determination of their insanity, is cumbersome and antiquated, and,
in-the judgment of the District authorities, as well as those of the hos-
pital, might be revised to advantage. I would respectfully request that
your committee designate a convenient time when William A. Maury,
esq., late Assistant Attorney-General, who is a member of the board of
visitors of the hospital, and familiar with the whole subject, may appear

before you.
I venture to call the attention of your committee to the large propor-

tion of patients of the transient class remaining in the hospital June
30, 1896, viz, 106 out of 794 District patients, together with my remarks
on the same in the report of 1896, page 19, a copy of which report is

herewith inclosed.
There is no doubt that the neighboring States of Maryland and Vir-

ginia profit by the humane provision of the United States law that is
intended to give a temporary shelter to insane persons who have wan-
dered away from their homes, by securing thereby permanent care for
many of their defective class at the expense of the District of Columbia

and the United States.

If your committee intend to seriously consider a proper provision for
the inebriates in the District of Columbia, I want to record myself as
unqualitiedly in faver of such provision for a social blight that passes
beyond habit, and a vice that, punishment failing to benefit, becomes

disease, ,
I do not wish to extend this paper with its discussion, but will gladly

submit my views on this subject at any future time,if they would in any
way aid you in your deliberaticns.
Very respectiully,
W. W. GODDING, Superintendent.
Hon. JAMES MCMILLAN,
Chairman Joint Committee to Investiqate Charities
and Reformatory Institutions in the District of Columbia.

[From the report of the Government Hospital for the Insaue, 1896.)

Of all classes provided for, the one for which the law evidently intended the pro-
vision should be merely temporary seems likely to be the most permanent, viz,
the tramp insane found within the limite of the District of Columbia. United
States Revised Statutes, section 1850, says, ‘“ It being hereby designed to give the
super:ntendent thereof authority to take charge of snch insane persons until the
governor (District authorities) can discover who his friends are, or whence he came,
with a view to the return of such person to such friends, or to the place of his resi-
dence.” Of the 794 from the District of Columbia remaining June 30, 1896, 106, or
about one-seventh of the whole, were of this class. The seat of Government
attracts Presidential aspirants, crank inventors, persons with a gricvance, the great
army of the unemployed, wild-eyed fanatics, and dusty tramps, and it is only to be
expected that quite a number of these will cach year find rest under the shadows of
St. Elizabeth; but why should it become their permanent home? Only 20 of the
nonresident remaining at the close of the last fiscal year had been received within
the year; 23 had been in the bospital more than ten years, and the remainder for
varying terms of less than thirteen months to over nine years. Any view of their
case that implies a return to their friends or the place of their residence is still a
distant one. Often no friends nor residence can be found, and, if the insanity is
active, the District authoritics have no choice but to let them remain. But, after
making due allowance for this, it can hardly be doubted that there is a considerable
number of assisted emigrants from neighboring States, where the hospital has
almost too good a reputation, and in far too many cases correspondence with near
relatives of the unfortunate man in the State of hie residence shows no vearning on
their part for his return. These would plainly seem to be cases where the District
authorities should actively interfere, and thus, in the language of the statute,
‘“‘relieve the District of the expense and charge of such indigent iusane nonresidont.”
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THE DEAF AND DUMSB.

CoLUuMBIA INSTITUTION FOR THE DEAF AND DUMB,
KENDALL GREEN,

Washington, D. C., April 8, 1897.

DEAR SIR: As requested by Mr. Moore, I have the honor to present
certain statements in reference to the admission and support in this
institution of deaf and dumb persons from the District of Columbia,
and their discharge from the institution. Section 4864 of the Revised
Statutes will show how such persons are admitted. The cost of their
support and education is estimated for from year to year and covered
by an appropriation iu the District appropriation bill. The appropria-
tion last year for this object was $10,500, and the number of pupils
provided for was 31 makmg a per caplta mst of $338.70. An appropria-
tion of the same amount has been made for the next fiscal year, and it
is expected that this will be sufficient to meet the expense of our bene-
ficiariesfrom the District. Pupils received fromthe District areretained
80 long as they give evidence of mental improvement, when they are dis-
charged by the action of the authorities of the institution. None are
retained beyond the period of our collegiate course of study.

May I be permitted to add that this institution is not considered to
be one of the “charities” of the District of- Columbia, but is regarded
as a purely educational institution, not being classed with the « cham-
ties” in the appropriation bill.

Very respectfully, yours, E. M. GALLAUDET,
President.
Hon., JAMES MCMILILAN,
Chairman Joint Select Committee, ete.

THE FEEBLE-MINDED.

Senator FAULKNER. Mr. Lewis, we will bear from you in regard to
the feeble-minded children of the District.

Mr. LEwis. In the consideration of the care of the feeble-minded in
the District of Columbia, one is met at the outset by a total absence of
statutory provision which can be considered as doing more than permit
such care in the broadest and most general terms.

The Fifty-fourth Congress, when considering the sundry civil bill,
and upon the particularitem of an appropriation for the deat and dumb
approved and passed Senate amendment No. 120, as follows:

Current expenses Columbia Institution for Deaf and Dumb, for support of the insti-
tution: P’rovided, That when any indigent applicant for adnmsnon to the institution
belonging to the District of Columbia and being of teachable age is fonnd, upon
examination by the president of the mstltutwn to be of feeble mind, and "hence
incapable of receiving instruction among children of sound mind, the Secretary of
the Interior may cause such person to be instructed in some institution for the edu-
cation of feeble minded children in Pennsylvania or some other State, at a cost not
greater for each pupil than is or may bo for the time being paid by such State for
similar instruction, and the sum necessary therofor is appropriated out of the sum
above provided for current expenses of the institution.

Under this authority certain feeble-minded children were taken in
charge from time to time by the Secretary of the Interior, upon recom-
mendation of the president of the Columbia Iustitution for the Deaf
and Dumb, and provided for at the great training school at Elwyn, Pa.,
at a maximum rate of $250 per annum.
The Tifty-second Congress, considering the District appropriation
bill, and upon the particular itemn of an appropriation for the support of
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the work ot the Board of Children’s Guardians, approved a proviso as

follows:

Provided, That the authority for placing feeble-minded children of the District of
Columbia, heretofore given to the Secretary of the Interior, is hereby transferred to
the Board of Children’s Guardians. (See Public Document No. 115, p. 17.)

It would seem, therefore, from the language of these provisions, that
the duty and responsibility of certifying to the propriety of taking up
any feeble-minded child as a public dependent still rests where it was
placed by the act of the Forty-fourth Congress, and ihat the Board of
Children’s Guardians was simply substituted for the Department of the
Interior in permission to place such children in appropriate institutions,
and pay for their maintenance. The president of the Columbia Institu-
tion for the Deaf and Dumb, however, contends that it was the inten-
tion of the committee of the Fifty-second Congress, which secured the
transfer of tie authority to place such children from the Secretary of
the Interior to this board, to relieve him of every duty and responsi-
bility in the matter, and he has, therefore, continued to act as investi-
gator of such cases only because the anthority conferred upon the board
scemed to be defective in this regard.

Upon the creation ot the Board of Children’s Guardians it was found
that there were 23 feeble-minded persons at the Pennsylvania Training
School, at Elwyn, Pa., for whom the Department of the Interior had
been paying a maximum rate of $250 per annum; 19 were maintained
at the maximum rate, 1 at $150, and 3 at $100. This number was added
to from time to time as cases of urgent necessity arose.

At the beginning of the fiscal year 1896 an urgent appeal for a reduc-
tion of the rate mccr with refusal. It was found impossible to arrange
with any other institution within reasonable distance for the care of all
such dependents from the District. An ofter of $200 per child per annum
was declined, for the reason that it was found upon investigation by a
committee of the board that the institution would have been overcrowded
by the transfer of all, and for the further reason that the institution
making the offer declined to receive any colored children, several of
whom were on hand. On January 1, 1896, an arrangement was eftected
by which the maximum rate at Elwyn was reduced to $225. In the
meantime an additional arrangement had been made with a small private
institution at Falls Church, Va, for the care of a few children at rates
to be agreed upon in each case.

The following table exhibits just what has been done in this branch
of work by the Board of Children’s Guardians:

ELWYN AND FALLS CHURCH.

Nine
1804. 1895. 1896. months of

1 1897
On Band from 1ast YOar . -« weeneeeeaeeeeeeeeeeennns | 23 2 24 27
Placed during the year......cooimiiiiieniiiniinnnes | 3 1 3 7
Total oo e 26 ! 26 27 f 34
Rates paid..coveeenronniiieniiniiionircernncnnnns 21 at $250 , 21 at $250 | 21 at $250% 28 at $225
4 at £l 4 at $110 4 at $100 3 at $250
1 at $150 1 at $150 1 at $1H0 ! 3 at $100
Transferred to Government Hospital for the Insane.'............ ) I ; 2
¢ [P R et ) A R
Returned toparents.........cc.oeiivenrnreianennedaniaaana.. feeereesnans taeneaaanans 1
Eloped. ..o oottt eive e aaaaas 1 iieaiaenanans s L eeeeaeceann
Remaining........oovieiiiiiiieiiieianienn Cveesse- 25 R 27 31
PO$5,264.25  $5,098.50 ' $5,567.25 |  $4,645.87

Expense forthe year....coveeivviiiieenieaienanan.! § ’
| i |

-

*At $250 rate reduced to $225 J anuary 1, 1806, with three exceptions,
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An arrangement has just been eftected by the terms of which the
maximum rate paid for the support of feeble-minded children will not
in any case exceed $225 per annum.

Appended hereto will be found a proposed bill, to which your atten-
tion is invited, and it is suggested that unless some other and more
comprehensive measure is originated and made effective some such
arrangement as that proposed should be enacted into law,

The causes, the preventives, and the cares of idiocy, if studied with
that end in view, would help to answer the question as to whether it is
expedient for the State to educate and foster the imbecile at public
charge or whether it be better that he should be vicariously cherished
at all, as well as the related question as to how great is the value to
the community at large of his protection from suffering and his possi-
ble rescue from total mental darkness, Such a course is recommended
for three principal reasons: First, the welfare of the subject; second,
the relief of the afflicted home; third, the benefits aceruing to soci-
ety. The first two fall within the field of the philanthropist; the last
that of the legislator. Does society receive an adequate return for its
generosity expended upon an abnormal, unwholesome, imperfect class—
one, from the standpoint of race improvement, wholly and totally unfit?
I answer that it is not a question of present benefit, but ef the defense
of our pesterity against the rising tide of idiocy, which we already feel
to be a very appreciable burden. Eudemic and accidental causes of
idiocy are rare, as compared with hereditary and parental causes, As
an instance of the public cost of nonattention to the idiocy at large in
a commuuity, I refer to a history, hitherto unwritten:

In 1878 Robert R. Cross assigned to the Washington City Protestant
Orphan Asylum his two girls, aged 7 and 9 years. In 1886 they were
declared feeble-minded and sent to the ’ennsylvania Training School
by direction of the Secretary of the Interior. Last September one of
them was transferred to the Government ITospital for the Insane.
Tracing back their history, I am intormed that their tather was the
illegitimate child of a feeble-minded girl, begotten and born in an alms-
house. Ile was a man of herculean strength, a great tighter, and gave
the police of this city much trouble. He was a drunkard, in old age a
pauper, and died two years ago in the Almshouse Hospital. Besides
the two girls referred to, he had one son, who has married and has
children. Three years ago this son was charged with drunkenness and
nonsupport and his two children were taken from him and placed under
the protection of public authority. Considering the expense of police
supervision of Robert IR. Cross and his son, John Cross, the expense of
trials, convictions, and imprisonment for numerous otfenses, the damage
done by assaults and brawls, the money spent in giving temporary
relief to families during imprisonment ot the meun, the money wasted
in drunkenness and licentiousness, the entailment of pauperism upon
the children of John, and the physical degeneracy resulting from
specific disease of both father and son, the liability of the reappearance
of idiocy or insanity in the progeny of John, and his continued ability
to bring forth after his kind, and last and least the direct expense of
the lifelong sequestration of the two girls, it would seem that we have
borne rather a heavy burden for the neglect of the almshouse girl of
sixty years ago.

Any plan which this commission inay devise for the purpose of making
plain and definite the duties and powers of someone regarding feeble-

minded children will be timély.
Finally, I urge that in whatever hands you leave the management of

8. Doc. 185——35
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this branch of the charitable work of the District of Columbia you pro-
vide a separate and distinct appropriation for its maintenance. I know
of no possible reason for keeping it confused and involved with the ap-
propriation of the Board of Children’s Guardians, given for the care of
children simply dependent for the time being, and with respect to whom
it is expected they will speedily become self-supporting citizens.

PROPOSED BILL.

That the Board of Children’s Guardians of the District of Columbia is hereby au-
thorized to receive applications on behalf of children under sixteen years of age,
alleged to be of feeble mind, and who have resided within the District of Columbia
for not less than one year immediately preceding the filing of such application, and
to cause such children, accompanied by their parents or guardians, to be brought
before the Board for examination touching their mental condition; and whenever,
upon such examination, it shall be shown to the satisfaction of the Board that any
such child is of unsound mind, or is an epileptic, or is idiotic or imbecile, and, there-
fore, incapable of receiving instruction among children of sound mind, the said Board
may cause such child to be placed in an institution conducted for the special care
and training of such children, at such rate of ;;aymeut as may be found necessary,
not exceeding two hundred and twenty-five dollars per annum,

That whenever it shall be made known to the Board of Children’s Guardians that
the parents or guardian of any feeble-minded child, who is for the time being sup-
ported at public expeuse, or on behalf of whom an application for ﬁublic support is
under consideration, is able to contribute toward the support of such child, the Board
shall require such parent or guardian to show, under oath, the extent of his or her
income or property, and ability to contribute toward the support of such child, and
the Board may thereupon order and require the payment to the Board, monthly or
quarter]f in advance, of any sum less than the full amount paid for the support of

such child by said Board.



FOURTH AND FIFTH HEARINGS.

DEPENDENT CHILDREN,

APRIL 9,1897—2 o’clock p. m.

Present: Hon,James McMillan, chairman; Hon. C. J. Faulkner, Hon.

Mahlon Pitney, Hon. S. A. Northway.
Senator MCMILLAN. The order for to-day is as follows:

FOURTH HEARING,

Subject: Dependent Children.
To be heard: Officers of the Board of Children’s Guardians; officers

of the Humane Society; judges of District courts,
TOPICS.

1. What children are, properly speaking, dependent; and what are
the duties of the District toward such as are dependent?

2. Has the District a duty toward children not officially declared
dependent?

h:}. Methods of taking up dependent children; the limits of guardian-

ship.

4. The proper training for dependent children.

5. The disposal of dependent children; in homes; in boarding places.

6. The need of visitation in the case of children placed out.

FIFTH HEARING,

Subject: Dependent Children; Institutional Training.

To be heard: Officers of the Board of Children’s Guardians; officers
of the Industrial Home School; officers of the National Association for
the Relief of Destitute Colored Women and Children; officers of the

Humane Society.
TOPICS.

1. The facilities offered by aided District institutions to care for
dependent children.

2. What coordination of existing institutions and agencies is possible
and desirable (a) for taking up children, () for training children, (c) for
placing out and visiting children.

3. Changes in existing institutions necessary to adapt them for the
care of all dependent children, properly so called.

4. Industrial training for dependent children.

5. The possibility of securing homes,
67
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THE BOARD OF CHILDREN'S GUARDIANS,

Senator MCMILLAN. Are the officers of the Board of Children’s

Guardians here?

Mr, WiLLIAM REDIN WOODWARD. I am president of the Board of
Children’s Guardians.

Representative PITNEY. You are president?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; we understood that the committee desired
a paper in writing on this sui)ject. Such a statement L:as been prepared
and submitted to an informal meeting of the board of trustees so that
their views could be as nearly unanimous as possible and indicate the
ideas of the entire board. There are certain matters in the paper that
some of the members dissent from. The paper was prepared hastily,
and I will comment simply on matters that are objected to by certain
members as I proceed:

¢ What children are, properly speaking, dependent; and what are the
duties of the District of Columbia toward such as are dependent?

¢ The proper definition of dependency in children is, we believe, yet
to be written. The test to be applied, and which must be met as a con-
dition precedent to support and protection, as charitable cost, varies at
different institutions according to the mental peculiarities of founders;
so that, in this matter, we are compelled to consider what ought to be,
rather than what is.

““The following classes of children should be subject to the protection
of public authority, and should be supported at public cost, whenever
no parent or relative can be compelled to adequately support them and
they are not offered charitable care and support by private or religious
organizations, approved by the Government:

¢(a) Children under 16 years of age who are found exposed to such
immoral and contaminating influences as make it probable that they
will become morally depraved. It should not be necessary that the
condition of depravity be already set up. If it is imminent, the child
is entitled to authoritative removal to healthful moral surroundings.

“(b) Childrex whose personal habits, language, and manner of life
render them unfit for association with their kind under ordinary cir-
cumstances. A corrupt boy or girl has often been known to contami-
nate a whole neighborhood or school. The career of all such should be
cut short by their instant confinement in an appropriate institution.

¢(c) Children of habitual but unnecessary paupers or workers of the
charitable resources of a community. The pauper iustinct, in addition
to being transmissible from parents to children, is powerfully reenforced
by example, precept, and necessity, when children are allowed to remain
in the environment which such parents create.

¢(d) Children subjected to willful abuse by drunken parents, or those
whose brutality can not be restrained.

“(e) All children abandoned by their parents, all children found beg-
ging on the street or from door to door, and all children who, for any
reason, are deprived of the common necessities of life.” .

Senator FAULKNER. Do I understand that that is what you advise?

Mr. WoonpwARD. No, sir; that is the general practice now under the
act incorporating the Board of Children’s Guardians., In a little briefer
space the act provides just such classes of children. Reference to the
act will show that it was intended to comprehend those classes.

The next question is, ¢ Has the District of Columbia a duty toward
children not officially declared dependent?” We answer:

“Undoubtedly it has. The only way in which cases involving the
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welfare of children can be successfully and adequately dealt with will
be found to be by means of the maintenance of some agency to which
reports and complaints regarding such matters can be made, and which
will have for its specific duty the enforcement of the laws for the protec-
tion of children.

“The duty of making such provision that all cases of abuse, abandon-
ment, moral danger, and hurtful poverty shall be speedily brought to
light, and the children affected thereby promptly relieved, is by no
means the least of the duties of the District of Columbia.

“There should also be provision made for the temporary care of
children while the necessary legal steps toward commitment are being
taken, for instances will often be found wherein the rescue of the child
can not safely be delayed for a single hour.”

We have no place for temporary detention of children, We have to
use the agencies that are already in existence, such as orphan asylums,
homes, etc., but the board has no place under its control where we can
put a child under investigation.

Representative NORTHWAY. How do you get these children?

Mr. WoobpwARD. Through the police court.

Representative NORTHWAY. They eommit them to your charge?

Mr. WooDWARD. We are their legal guardians. Under the act the
police ecourt has power of temporary commitment, and we are empow-
ered to detain children a week pending investigation.

Senator MCMILLAN. You do that, of course?

Mr. WOoODWARD. Yes, Bir.

Senator MCMILLAN. You put them in private institutions?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; we have to do that, because there is no
suitable public institution.

“We know of no reason why all children who come within the scope
of the work which the Government can properly do should not be
officially declared to be under the protection of public authority.

¢(3) Methods of taking up dependent children; limits of guardian-

ship.
‘“There is only one process through which children may properly
become permanent public beneficiaries, i. e., through a commitment
had in a properly organized court of justice. The attempts at fraud
on the part of persons who wish to push off their children during the
years of their helplessness are so insidious and such persons become so
expert at invoking sympathy where none is due that only by the proc-
ess and among the surroundings of judicial examination can the truth
be ascertained. Again, if the doors of public support open only in
obedience to orders of the courts, they will remain closed to the hun-
dreds of children whose parents have been affected in imagination by
an imposing edifice, erected as a home for dependent children, and who
would appeal for admission thereto if it could be done practically in
secret, but who will struggle on to the end of life, bearing burdens which
they alone should bear, rather than appear in court in an attempt to
secure a share in the benefits provided for the children of the unfortu-
nate, the incompetent, and the depraved.

¢ We urge the legal and binding commitment as the only proper proc-
ess for the reception of children into public care and support, for the
additional reason that only by such means can their parents and rela-
tives be prevented from interfering with them to their damage. The
relations of a child-caring body with the parents of its wards are the
most annoying and the most unsatisfactory to the interests of the chil-
dren under care, of the whole round of its varied experience, Some-
body must have authority to, in the first place, take children away from
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unfit parents, and in the second place, keep such parents away from the
children, if good work is to be done.”

We find that a large proportion of cases, upon examination, are cases
of people who are measurably able to support their children, but who
under the law are not obliged to support them. For instance, the
District of Columbia is a favorite resort for people who want to get
rid of their children, who bring them here and desert them, and then
go back to their homes in the States, and we have to support them;
and we often find upon investigation that the parents are nonresidents
of the District or are able to support their children.

Senator FAULKNER. Can you state the percentage of children of
nonresident parents that you take carg of? .

Mr. WooDWARD. We are not compelled to take care of any.

Senator FAULKENER. I mean that you control, but that are placed in
these different institutions?

Mr. WooDWARD. We do not knowingly place them in institutions
where their parents are nonresidents.

Senator MCMILLAN. What do you do with them? ;

Mr. WooDWARD. We return them to the parents for them to take
care of, However, in many cases, where the child is absolutely deserted,
we take care of the child. Upon investigation, we sometimes find that
a mother has recently come here with the secret purpose of leaving her
child in the District and then returning home, and we do not take the
child. If we find the mother we provide her with transportation home,
if she will go with the child.

Senator FAULKNER. Is there any percentage, or considerable per-
centage, of children whose parents live outside of the District that you
have been compelled to provide for by reason of desertion?

Mr. WooDWARD. I can not tell you the exact percentage, but there is
seldom a meeting of the board that we do not have some such case, of
a child left at a railroad station or left with some person, and the parent
never returns,

Representative PITNEY. Little children?

Mr. WooDWARD. Babies.

Senator FAULKNER. How do you know that these parents of children
left at railroad stations are nonresidents?

Mr. WooDWARD. In many cases they have previously applied to us.

Senator FAULKNER. This preliminary investigation of your board
has a tendency to weed out undeserving cases?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. I understood you to read something in that
paper in reply to question No. 2, as to whether the District has a duty
toward children not officially declared dependent, to the effect that
relief ought not to be confined to those who have been adjudicated upon
by the court. Do you undertake any part of that work?

Mr. WoopwARD. We can not, for lack of means.

Representative PITNEY. Do you ever avail yourself of the work of
the Associated Oharities in making investigation and giving relief to
cases brought to your attention?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; and the Humane Society and other kin-
dred organizations.

Representative PITNEY. You keep in touch with them?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir; as I understand the second question, it
asks if there should not be some agency established or used, the Board
of Children’s Guardians or other society, by which investigation should
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be made of children that are not reported to us. There are many more
who ought to be attended to that are not reached.

I was reading from the paper the reply to question 3—methods of
taking up dependent children and the limits of guardianship, Wesay—

“We urge the legal and binding commitment as theonly proper process
for the reception of children into public care and support, for the addi-
tional reasoa that only by such means can their parents and relatives
be prevented from interfering with them to their damage. The rela-
tions of a child-caring body with the parents of its wards are the most
annoying and the most unsatisfactory to the interests of the children
under care, of whole round of its varied experience. Somebody must
have authority to, in the first place, take children away from unfit par-
ents, and, in the second place, keep such parents away from the chil-
dren, if good work is to be done.

“The objection to this as an exclusive process of reception is that it
is antiparental; that it excludes the children of worthy widows who
look with horror upon a judicial commitment placed between them
and their children, and that, being practically irrevocable, it prevents
the restoration to parents of children who might with safety, and
therefore should be, so restored. We reply that, in theory, it is no
doubt antiparental, but that in practice it need be no more so than is
found necessary. A child-caring association is invariably made up of
the most humane and kindly disposed persons in the community. No
matter how much authority they may have, they can not be accused
beforehand of maintaining absolute and permanent separation of
parents from children, unjustly and without regard to the interests
ot the children, whose welfare they have undertaken to promote.
Taere is nothing to prevent a properly organized child-caring associa-
tion from restoring children to parents, for such an organization can do
anything for and with a child, committed to its care, which may seem
reasonable and just. In case of such a restoration, if the parent
should again lapse into the condition which made it necessary to take
the child in tl:e first place, the legal guardianship, never surrendered,
will be found a most valuable element in the summary correction of
the mistake made in the tentative restoration; while the supervision
maintained over all placed-out wards will serve as a frequent reminder
to the parent to maintain a home of a high order of excellence, thus
preventing many relapses otherwise certain to occur.

“TIn actual experience we have never known a single case wherein
children have been allowed to suffer through fear of the effect of the
authoritative commitment. We have found that parents actually and,
necessarily in distress can always be prevailed upon to trust the child-
caring society to deal with them reasonably and justly, or that some
other appropriate resource was available.

“Lxtraordinary care should be exercised in the examination of cases
presented for commitment; in order, first, that the rights of parents be
not lightly set aside; and, second, that the public be not burdened with
the support of children not necessarily dependent. Once acquired,
guardianship should only be revoked for improper administration. It
should continue during the minority of the child.”

Senator FAULKNER. Well, does not the law provide all that?

Mr. WooDWARD. It does not provide for restoration of a child to
parents. It provides for our absolute guardianship.

Senator FAULKNER. What is the judgment of the court—that it be
committed to you until the child is 21 years of age?
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Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. Then have you power as a board to return that
child to his parents or guardian, if you think proper, at any time sub-
sequent to the child reaching the age of 21 years?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; but not releasing our guardianship. We
may apprentice a child to a third person.

Representative NORTHWAY. When a child is committed to your care,
you have no public institution in which you can place it as a matter of

right or law?

Mr. WooDwARD. No, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. You have to go to a private institution
and make a contract?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; or place them in homes.

Representative NORTHWAY. Homes provided by law?

Mr. WoopwARD. No, sir; homes which we secure.

Senator MCMILLAN, That is the primary object?

Mr. WoODWARD., Yes, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. Those placed outside of private homes;
you have to make contracts for them?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir; at so much per week or month.

Senator MCMILLAN. That is only a temporary matter, however, to
prepare them for the private home?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; but in many cases it is necessary to place
them in the institutions permmanently. For instance, some children are
unfitted for moral reasons to be put in private honmes and we have to
place them in some institution. We had a case yesterday that had to
go to the Reform School for Girls.

Representative PITNEY. Do you commit any to the Reform School?

Mr. WoopwARD. We have done it where boys are incorrigible.

Representative NorTHWAY. In placing them out, the children are
scattered around in different institutions?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; many of the institutions have them,

Representative PITNEY. How about the Industrial Home School?

Mr. WooDWARD. There are quite a number of cases there. I think
I have a statement showing that.

Representative PITNEY. Can you tell about how many?

Mr. WooDpwARD. I think about ten at the Industrial Home School.
The theory of the Board is to provide every child with a home. That
is the theory, and we desire to keep them at these institutions only until
they can be found homes.

Representative NORTHWAY. Does your statement cover the cost per
capita for keeping children at these institutions?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir, _

Representative ’'ITNEY. I notice in your returns to this committee
you report that you paid the Industrial Home School $1,447.15. How
many children will that provide for?

Mr. WooDWARD. I am unable to state that. It would depend entirely
upon the time they were there and the number of them. The cost at
the Industrial Home School is $10.25 per month.

Representative PITNEY. You have no right,as a matter of law, to
place them in that school at the present time without the consent of
the authorities of the school, have you?

Mr. WooDWARD. No, sir; not as I understand it; but we have no
diffizulty iu placing them.

Scenator MOMILLAN, You mean that they are never refused?

Mr. WoODWARD. No,sir; they are not refused unlessthe school is full.
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Representative PITNEY. Do you think it would facilitate the Board’s
work to have an institution of its own?
Mr. WOoODWARD. Yes, sir; where the Government pays part of the

support of the children.
Representative PITNEY. You have not had any trouble so far about

placing the children?
Mr. WOODWARD. No, sir; at least none since I have been a member

of the Board.

Representative NORTHWAY. If you place them in these different
institutions, do you have any control of them atter that?

Mr. WoopwARD. That varies; some institutions are more easily
approached than others,

Representative PITNEY. As a matter of law, you are constituted the
legal guardian of the children?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; and we can recover a child by writ of
habeas corpus.

Representative PITNEY. You can put a child in the charge of anyone
you please to put it, subject to your right to recall it?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. And you exercise that right by putting these
children in some of these public or institutional homes as well as in
private homes?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir.
Representative PITNEY. Do any of these institutions make it a con-

dition precedent that you shall surrender some of your rights?

Mr. WoopwARD. We would not do it.

Representative NORTHWAY. If a child is placed in one of these insti-
tutions, while it i there it is subject to the control of that institution,
is it not, and you have no control over it?

Mr. WooDWARD. Of course not; if we commit it to that institution
we have to abide by their rules, just as we would have to abide in that
respect by the rules of a private home, if the child were placed there.

I had finished reading the reply to question 3. The paper next takes
up questions 4 and 5:

“The proper training of dependent children, and the disposal of
dependent children,

“The trouble with children who become despondent is, that they have
never had or have lost the right sort of home and family life. The
thing to do with them would seem to be to supply, just as soon as pos-
sible, that which has been missed or taken away. When a man is
thirsty, we give him drink; when he is hungry, we give him food. In
like maunner, when a child is homeless we provide him a home.

¢ Therefore, since somebody’s home is the proper destination of every
child, that training which will soonest fit a child for reception into that
haven of comfort and protection is the proper training. Home life fits
a child for home life, and that alone, unless he has been injured by
want of proper home surroundings; in which case he has become
abnormal. '

“ Institution life, up to a certain point, corrects abnormality and
refits a child for home life. Beyond that point it fits him for institution
life and that alone, which is a misfortune. [or infants and very young
children the principal value of an institution is as a receiving and dis-
tributing point, such children being best provided for in selected family
homes as boarders while waiting the completion of arrangements for
their final reception by adoption or indenture.”

I will state that that clause of this paper is objected to by Mr. Miller,
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one of the members of the Board, who differs from the majority of the

Board.

Representative NORTHWAY, Please read that again, so that we may
clearly understand.

Mr. Woodward reread the paragraph last quoted.

Mr. WooDwARD. That gives you the theory of administration of the
Board of Children’s Guardians.

Representative PITNEY. Whois the member of the Board that objects
to that paragraph?

Mr. WooDWARD. Mr. William J. Miller. He holds that the rule is
not as general as we have stated it; that institutional life does not fit
a child only for institutional life, but that a child who remains in an
institution during minority mnay yet become a good citizen.

Representative PITNEY. That is a fundamental difference of opinion?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. You object to bringing children up by ma-
chinery?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; that is it.

ReI;resentative PITNEY. Youobject to bringing them up by artificial
rules

Mr. WOoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Senator McMILLAN. That is the experience in all States where it has
been tried, is it not?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; that is my understanding.

Senator FAULKNER. What is your arrangement when you put chil-
dren in homes. Do you pay for them?

‘Mr. WoopwARD, We do if it is necessary. We try—and it is our
policy—to secure them homes where people will take them as their own
children and see to their schooling, etc.

Senator FAULKNER. That is what you aim to do?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; that is our intention.

Representative PITNEY. You have to undertake the care of a good
many children with a moderate amount of money?

Mr. WooDWARD. As far as our appropriation goesfor the maintenance
of children we have no complaint to make, but so far as the appropria-
tion for investigation of children after they are placed out is concerned,
we are totally unable to do the work. We could place out all the chil-
dren that are committed to us and all that will be, place them in homes
that are probably free homes, if we had sufficient administrative force
and means to investigate these cases as the law requires us to do. The
law puts upon us the duty of visiting these homes in other States, and
we can not do it. This subject is taken up farther on in this paper. In
the latter part of this fiscal year we are unable to place these children
out in homes, because we have not the means to visit them.

Representative PITNEY. Can you give us the number of children that
you have taken into your charge since the board was created or founded ¥

Mr. WooDWARD. I think Mr. Lewis can give you that information.

Mr. HERBERT W. LEWIS. The number received the first year, 1893-94,
was 203; the second year, 110; the third year, 93, and the first three-
quarters of the present fiscal year indicate that the number received
will be about 80.

Represeutative PITNEY. Does that indicate, in your judgment, less
need of the work of your board, or not?

Mr. LEwis. In 1893, when the Board of Children’s Guardians was
created and began its work, the subsidized institautions of the District
had had their income cut by 40 per cent, and they could receive only a
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limited number of children; in fact, some of them found it necessary to
discharge those they had, as they could not maintain them on their
reduced appropriations. Then, for the next year, the amount given
direct to the institutions was increased; the next year again increased,
until now the amount given direct to the institutions is about as large
as it ever was; I believe wholly as large as it ever was, So fast as pro-
vision has been made in the institutions in which children can be
received without legal adjudication of their cases, just so rapidly the
commitments to the Board of Children’s Guardians have fallen off,
except in cases of children who could not be dealt with otherwise than
by the exercise of Government authority. Formerly many children
came to the Board of Children’s Guardians who were simply dependent.
Now not 80 many of this class are received.

Mr. Woodward proceeded with the reading of his paper:

¢Older children usually have acquired bad habits which need cor-
rection, or they are dull or slovenly, or indolent, or insubordinate, or
are of such doubtful character and disposition that they require watch-
ing and study before it can be determined what can and should be done
for them. To meet the needs of these, the modern institution is admir-
ably adapted. Its proper work is to eradicate the effects of bad envi-
ronment, to awaken the intellect, to teach habits of order, cleanliness,
and obedience, to lay the foundation for a common-school education,
and in generaf to impart a knowledge of and create a desire for a
higher and better physical, intellectual, and moral life than any known
to the children for whose benefit it has been created. That the better
managed institutions accomplish this by no means slight undertaking
is beyond doubt.

¢ All mention of manual and industrial training is purposely omitted
here, for the reason that it is set apart for special consideration at
another time.

“Finally, as to the disposal of dependent children, it is desirable
that there should be available sach variety of correctional, fostering,
and uplifting influences as will make it possible for the Government,
acting through an official commission, to do with each individual child
that which his disposition, history, and capabilities indicate as most
likely to bring forth the best results.

¢“Having assumed charge of children in obedience to orders of the
court having authority to commit, the child-caring commission should,
through an expert superintendent, at once decide what is to be the
situation of such children for the immediate future—whether to be
paroled and sent home, to be watched over by wise and skillful agents,
sent into a reformatory, placed in an institution created for the purpose
of receiving such children pending further study of their habits and
characteristics, placed at once in ioster homes, boarded out, or left in
the custody of one or the oth:¢r parent, such parent being placed, with-
out expense to the State, in a position to control and provide for his or
her child. The eourt of jurisdiction should also be authorized to order
the collection of a contribution toward maintenance from parents able
but unwilling to provide for their offspring, and to enforce such orders
by attachment issued against the property, wages, and person of such .
parent, the children remaining under the protection of public authority.
By the operation of such a system, children found in temporary distress
will be promptly removed to appropriate institutions or placed in selected
boarding homes until their parents have so far improved their condition
that the children can safely be restored to them. Consideration of
comparative advantages will not, however, control the reception or
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retention of children. The question to be decided will never be one
arising out of comparison between the wealth of the institution or the
comfort of the boarding home and the bare surroundings and meager
support of the parental home, but whether it is morally and physically
safe that those directly under consideration should continue to reside
with their parents.

“There should be no hard and fast rules laid down for the govern-
ment of cases wherein municipal or statutory laws have been disre-
garded by children. Such children should be committed to the care of
experts whose life’s work and profession it is to decide what should be
done in each case dealt with. Some should be at once released on
parole, returning to their former homes; some deported to distant fam-
1ly homes and carefully and judiciously guided into better ways, and
some should go at once to reformatory institutions, there to learn,
under more or less hard conditions, those lessons of industry, personal
honor, and self-control which alone will enable them to use wisely the
larger liberty to which they will, by and by, be restored.”

One point there that needs to be made manifest is that we have no
law in the District of Columbia compelling a parent to support a child.
An act was introduced, but it has never come to a finality,. We can
therefore simply use the threat of commitment—that the child will
have to be provided for or committed. There i8 no law to compel par-
ents to provide for their children, either legitimate or illegitimate

children.
Senator MCMILLAN. Have we not passed an act of that kind through

the Senate?

Mr. WooDpWARD. No, sir; I think not. It has just been introduced.

Senator MCMILLAN. I thought we had that up before.

Mr. MooRrE. It passed the Senate, but failed in the House.

Senator MCMILLAN. I was under the impression that we passed a
bill of that kind through the Senate. :

Mr. MoORE. It was Senate bill 2426, Fifty-fourth Congress, first
session.

Mr. WooDWARD. There is a Maryland law which provides for sum-
moning a father of an illegitimate child before a justice court and com-
pelling him to give bond for the care of it. I think the very first step
should be to see that an act of this character, compelling a parent to
support his child, is passed, because I believe that the expense to the
state would fall off from one-third to one-half if we had that law.

Senator MCMILLAN. That is very important.

Representative PITNEY. Yes, sir; it is very important and should not
be overlooked.

Representative NORTHWAY. Many of our States have statutes com-
pelling parents to provide for children. Have you investigated that?

Mr. WooDpWARD. The board has done so, and I think they have found
such laws to be efficient. I think this act which is before Congress
was introduced at the instance of our board. We have nothing here to
show how efficient it would be in the District.

Representative NORTHWAY. We have one in the State of Ohio, and
I know personally of two or three cases where it could not be enforced.

Representative PITNEY. We have a law on our statute book in New
Jersey and it is enforced. It prevents the abandonment of children.

Representative NORTHWAY. What is everybody’s business is no-
body’s business, and they are seldomn enforced.

Mr. WoODWARD. Mr. Lewis informs me that under the statute of
Ohio the proper body in Cincinnati collects $1,000 a month.
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Representative NORTHWAY. But not in the rural connties. That is
Cincinnati.

Mr. WooDWARD. What can be done in Oincinnati can be done here.
That is what we should aim at.

I will proceed with the reading of the paper:

“The State child-caring commission should select from among its
wards, whether in the institution used as a receiving and distributing
center, boarded out, or residing in their own homes on probation, such
children as show special aptitude in receiving industrial or literary
education, and place within their reach appropriate educational ad-
vantages. It should select,for indenture to farmers, tradesmen, and
others, those who will find in the homes of such persons the measure of
their several capacities for usefuluess., It should deliver to the reform-
atory those who exhibit liability to become decidedly refractory and
hand down for special training or lifelong sequestration those whose pro-
gressive degeneracy or incapacity renders them unfit for association
with their kind under normal conditions,”

The sixth topic is the need for visitation of placed-out children. We
answer:

“Ofallthe wrongs committed in the nameof charity thereisnotanother
so indefensible as the placing out of dependent little children and then
leaving them without recourse to those charged with the responsibility
of securing their welfare. Compared with this the whole process of the
reception, detention, and discipline of children’s institutions is of little
importance. Children are easily affected by their surroundings. Inan
institution they quickly respond to elevating influences and rapidly
become fit for transfer to such family homes as may reasonably be
approved. Removed from the institution and placed in indifferent homes
they as rapidly fall back into the condition from which they had been
lifted up, and all done for and with them is worse than lost. There is
not now in existence and never will be a set of officers who can read
human nature at first sight with such certainty as to be able to approve
or reject wisely the application coming to them for children to be taken
by families. Such applications demand the most painstaking investi-
gation. This sort of inquiry can be most successfully made in the locality
in which the applicant resides, and this calls for the services of a trav-
eling agent. It is amazing what good recommendations can be secured
by unfit families. Letters from the postmaster, principal merchant of
the town, or pastor of the church are of but little value if written at the
solicitation of the applicant. Even with the greatest care, a child will -
now and then get into improper hands, mistits will occur, and the neces-
sity for changes will constaytly arise. To depend upon correspondence
for information as to all that affects the welfare of a placed-out child is
to fail. Persons ought not to be expected to report their own short-
comings; the fact is, they never do. Children’s letters are usually dic-
tated or supervised, or at least written with the expectation that the
contents of them will be made known, therefore they never contain
complaints, except where no cause for complaint exists. We have found
that where children and foster parents are unsuited to each other it is
as often the fault of the family as of the child.

¢TIt is desirable that the progress and conduct of public wards should
be reported and recorded from year to year during minority. Only
through visitation by a careful and well-instructed agent can such
information be collected.

“It is desirable that the moral hold of the legal guardian should be
maintained upon all placed-out children. Its influencein keeping them
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steady and reliable is incalculable. It can be maintained in no other
way as effectually as by periodical visitation.” \

Senator McMiLLAN. How many children on an average do you have
out in these homes—to-day, for instance? S\

Mr. LEwis, In family homes, 262. \

Sena,tor McMiLLAN. Those are children who ought to'pe visited once
a year

Mr. WooDWARD. The act requires it.

Senator MCMILLAN. Is that often enough?

Mr. WooDpWARD. It ought to be twice a-year. A
Senator MCMILLAN. How much would that cost—visiting them twice

a year?
Mr. WooDWARD. Two thousand five hundred dollars more shan we

get at present. :

Representative PITNEY, Let us hear, Mr. Lewis, what territory is
covered by the places where these children are. Have you the number
of children in the different States?

Mr. LEwis. I can give it approximately. Ohildren residing in free
and paid homes outside of the District are distributed as follows:
Maryland, 50; Virginia, 73; Pennsylvania, 11; New Jersey, 5; New
York, 4; Delaware, 2; Alabama, 1, and Massachusetts, 1; in all, includ-
ing the District of Columbia, where we have 115, there are 262,

Senator MCMILLAN. They are all right around here.

Mr. WoopwARD. That is a matter that I want to call your attention
to. It is not good policy to place these children in free homes in the
locality from which they have been taken. They should be sent to
raral homes, where they will be absent from the surroundings they
have been used to, and not attempt to return. If we can place them in
Pennsylvania, New York, or Delaware they grow up among new sur-
roundings, and many of them absolutely forget their former conditions.

Senator MCMILLAN. Oould you send them to the far West?

Mr. WooDWARD. We could if we had a resident agent,say in Minne-
sota or Ohio.

Representative PITNEY. The territorial distribution is not what it
would be if they had their way. They can not properly visit them if
they place them out.

Mr. WoopwARD. I understand other boards have these agents.

Senator FAULKNER. That would increase your expense for visiting?

Mr. WoopwARD. Of course we would have to pay the expenses of
these agents.

Senator FAULKNER. You would pay them their expenses per diem
while engaged in the work of visitation? .

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; he would be paid for the services he per-

formed.
Representative PrrNEY. Then you would have to rely upon written

reports?

Mr. WoopwAED. He would be our agent in that territory. The idea
is that we should appoint Mr. Smith, who lived in Wisconsin, whom we
knew, as our agent, and pay him his expenses per diem for the time he
spent in visiting children in that State.

Representative PITNEY. Would it work well to have to rely on writ-
ten reports?

Mr. WoopwARD. I think it would be better to have our own agent.

Senator FAULKNER. As I understand it, your whole reason for that
visitation is to see whether or not the recommendations as w the
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character of the family and mode of living are correct, and to see

whether the child is being properly treated.

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. I do not see why a man in Wisconsin could not
do that as well as a man from the District.

Senator MCMILLAN. I think he could do it better, because he could
slip out at any time.

Mr. WoopwARD. If we had a resident agent in Madison, Wis., to
take charge of the visiting in the States of Wisconsin, Iowa, and Min-
nesota, he could cover that territory. It would be folly to place chil-
dren out there in homes and not be able to see them, and that is what
it would result in unless we had a resident agent.

Senator FAULKNER. Are the laws in those States adequate to cover
your guaardianship?

Mr. WoopwARD., They recognize the guardianship in other States.
‘We have a test case in Indiana, where the court returned a child under
writ of habeas corpus to the State of Ohio. Itis a recognized principle
of law that the guardianship extends beyond the State.

Senator FAULKNER. That is, where the guardianship is expressly
specified in the indenture.

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir,

Mr. Woodward continued the reading of the paper:

“As placed-out children become 14, 15, 16 years of age they nsually
begin to have serious thoughts about themselves and their positions in
the family and the community. A large majority of them, if they have
been properly dealt with, are deeply grateful for their improved condi-
tion, and they look upon the visiting and supervising agent as respon-
sible for that improvement. He is the personal representative of their
impersonal benefactor; they know of his kindness and they trust his
wisdom; and he therefore powertully influences their conduct.

“ Hundreds of persons whose homes are thrown open to dependent
children and who receive them with the very best intentions, have not
the experience and special skill for dealing with them properly. They
do not know how to begin, and therefore soon find that they are the
servants, while the child owns the home. Again, persons who have led
the quiet, orderly life of the rural districts are frequently appalled at
the precocious insubordination of a child suddenly released from the
machine-like routine and drill of an institution. A supervising agent
who spends his whole time in the study and adjustment of such rela-
tions and who has an intimate acquaintance with the children, both
generally and individually, becomes after a little able to apply the
proper remedy at once, and then to turn the judgment and common
sense of the foster parent to the task of preserving the adjustnent,
when without his assistance the whole arrangement would have been
broken up, to the mutual disadvantage of both child and home.

““Wherever the placing out of children has been accompanied by
adequate and skillful supervision of such children, the plan has
achieved notable success. Wherever it has been attempted without
such afterwork, it has been found to be liable to gross abuse, and no
one can speak with definiteness of its effect. There are reasons for
believing that it has sometimes proved a most lamentable failure.”

Representative PITNEY. How does visiting once a year result; is
one vigit a year of much service?

Mr. WooDWARD. Of course it is not as good as once every six

months or once every quarter.
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Representative PITNEY. The difficulty which you are trying to meet
is, that it very necessarily happens in many cases that the families
with which you place children do not know how to keep them in control ?

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir; if they have had children of their own,
they may find the one placed very different.

Representative NORTHWAY. Do you not meet with the difficulty in
making these visits that there is fear on the part of the family that you
are going to discover something? Do you not find sometimes jealousies
existing on the part of the family or fear that the child may be taken
away? Does that not lead to difticulty?

Mr. LEwis. Very rarely. 1 can now call to mind but one or two
instances of that kind in my experience. Generally the supervising
agent is received most cordially, and I count among my most dear and
lifelong friends those I have met in those relations.

Representative NORTHWAY. Take a family where the child has been
abused; don’t they try to cover it up and hide that from the visitor?

Mr. Lewis. Of course they will if’ they can.

Senator MCMILLAN. You can get'information from neighbors?

Mr. LEw1s. Yes, sir; and sit down and talk to the child as a confi-
dential friend, who has been intimate with himn before the child was
placed. Before they are sent out to these homes they are given
instructions to tell the agent everything that has occurred to them, and
there is no difliculty in getting at the child’s ideas.

Representative PITNEY. Can you rely on the child’s statements?

Mr. LEwIs. Of course you have to take the child’s statement with
some judgment, and if you are still suspicious after talking with him,
you can go out among the neighbors and make inquiries or of the
school teacher. '

Representative NORTHWAY. I know in Ohio and New York I have
known personally of difticulties encountered in that way.

Mr. WooDWARD. If the parent is unjust or cruel to the child, no
doubt they will try to hide it from public authorities. :

The conclusions of the Board are: A

“We suppose that the topics arranged for consideration at this timne
were intended to provoke discussion of a com.plete plan for the public
care of dependent children. It may be profitable, therefore, to point
out what ‘would be the most apparent effects of following the plan
herein outlined. They would be, we believe, as follows:

“The line between the duty of the church and the private association
and the duty of the Government would be sharply drawn and not
crossed. Parental rights would be adequately guarded and parental
neglect promptly dealt with. All temptation to relinquish to public
care children who should be kept at home would be removed. The bur-
den of support of children at public expense would not unduly increase,
for many would be prevented from becoming dependent, parents of
others would be compelled to contribute to their support, and rapid
placing out would prevent the crowding of the institutions. At the
satie time, it would not be necessary that any child should remain sub-
ject to abuse, moral contamination, or hurtful poverty for a single day
after his condition became known. _

« Intelligent selection of children for transfer to trade schools and
institutions of learning would provide opportunities for those who
could make best use of them. The tolerably good and the tolerably
bad would find appropriate conditions in family homes and reforma-
tories, and the melancholy residuum would also find its appropriate
level and cease to bring forth after its kind.”

.
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I think that is all the board has to present now as a board.
The statement in full follows:

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF CHILDREN’S GUARDIANS,

(1) What children are, properly speaking, dependent, and what are the duties of
the District of Columbia toward such as are dependent?

The proper definition of dependency in children is, we believe, yet to bo writwen,
The test to be applied, and which must be met as a condition-precedent to support
and protection at charitable cost, varies at different iustitutions according to the
mental peculiurities of founders; so that in this matter we are compelled to con-
sider what ought to be rather than what is.

The following classes of children should be subject to the protection of publie
authority and should be supported at public cost, whenever no parent or relative
can be compelled to adequately support them and they are not offered charitable
care and sapport by private or religious organizations, approved by the Government.

(a) Children under 16 years of age who are found exposed to such immoral and
contaminating influences asmakeit probable that they will become morally depraved.
It should not he necessary that the condition of depravity be already set up. If it
is imminent, the child is entitled to authoritative removal to healthful moral
surroundings,

(b) Children whose personal habits, language, and manner of life render them unfit
for associnution with their kind under ordinary circumstances. A corrupt boy or girl
has ofter. been known to contaminate a whole neighborhood or school. The career
of all sach should be out short by their instant confinement in an appropriate
insticution.

(c) Children of babitual but unnecessary paupers, or workers of the charitable
resources of & community. The pauper instinct, in addition to being transmissi-
ble from parents to children, is powerfully reenforced by example, precept, and
necessity, when children are allowed to remain in the environment which such

parents create.
(d) Children sabjected to willful abuse by drunken parents, or those whose bru-

tality can not be restrained.
(¢) All children abandoned by their parenis, all children found begging on the
street or from door to door, and all children who for any reason are deprived of the

common necessities of life.
(2) Has the District of Columbia a duty toward children not officially declared

dependent?

We answer, undovbtedly it has. The only way in which cases involving the wel-
fare of children can he successfully and adequately dealt with will be found to be
by means of the maintenance of some agency to which reports and complaints
regarding such matters can be made, and which will have for its specific duty the
enforcement of the laws for the protecticn of children.

The duty ot making such provision that all cases of abuse, abandonment, moral
danger, and hurtful poverty shall be speedily brought to light, and the children
affected thereby promptly relieved, is by no menus the least of the duties of the
District of Columbia. -

There should also be provision made for the temporary care of children while the
necessary legal steps toward commitment are being taken, for instances will often be
found wherein the rescuoe of the child can not safely Le delayed for a single hour.

We know of no reason why all children who come within the scope of the work-
which the Government can properly do, should not be officially declared to be under
the protection of public authority.

(3) Methods of taking up dependent children; limits of guardianship.

There is only one process through which children may properly becoie permanent
public beneficiaries—i. e., through a commitment had in a properly organized court of
Justice, The attempts at fraud on the part of persons who wish to push off their
children during the years of their helplessness are so insidious and such persons
hecome so expert at invoking sympathy where none is due that only by the process
and among the surroundings of judicial examination can the truth be ascertained.
Again, if the doors of public support open only in obedience to orders of the courts,
they will remain closed to the hundreds of children whose parents have been affected
in imagination by an imposing edifice erected as a home for dependent children, and
who would appeal for admission thereto if it could be done practically in secret, but
who will struggle on to tbe end of life, bearing burdens which they alone should
bear, rather than appear in court in an attempt to secure a share in the benefits pro-
vided for the children of the unfortunate, the incompetent, and the depraved.

We urge the legal and binding commitment as the only proper process for the
reception of children into public care and support, for the additional reason that only
by such means can their parents and relatives be prevented from interfering with

S. Doc. 185 6
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them to the'r damage. The relations of a child-caring body with the parents of its

wards are the most annoying and the most unsatisfactory to the interests of the

children under care of the whole round of its varied experience. Somebody must

have authority to, in the first place, take children away from uanfit parents, and in

‘t]he second place, keep such parents away from the children, if good work is to be
one.

The objection to this as an exclusive process of reception is that it is antiparental;
that it excludes the children of worthy widows, who lvok with horror npon a judicial
- commitment placed between them and their children, and that, being. practically

irrevocable, it prevents the restoration to parents of children who might with safoty,
and therefore should be, so restored. We reply that, in theory, it is no doubt anti-
parental, but that in practice it need be no moreso than is found necessarf'. A child-
caring association is invariably made up of the most humane and kindly disposed
persons in the community. No matter how much authority they may have, they can
not be accused beforehund of maintaining absolute and permanent separation of
parents from children unjustly and without regard to the interests of the children
whose welfare they have undertaken to promote. There is nothing to prevent a
properly organized child-caring association from restoring children to parents, for
such an organization can do anything for and with a child committed to its care
which may seem reusonable au::? just. In case of such a restoration, if the parent
should again Japse into the conditi:n which made it necessary to take the child in
the first place, the legal guardiansiiip, never surrendered, will be found a most valu-
able element in the summary correction of the mistake made in the tentative resto-
ration, while the supervision maintained over all placed-out wards will serve as a
frequent reminder to the parent to maintain a home of a high order of excellence,
thus preventing many relapses otherwise certain to occur.

In actual experience we have never known a single case wherein children have
been allowed to suffer through fear of the effect of the authoritative commitment.
We have found that parents actually and necessarily in distress can always be pre-
vailed upon to trust the child-caring society to deal with them reasonably and
justly, or that some other appropriate resource was available,

Extraordinary care should be exercised in the examination of cases presented for
commitment; in order, first, that the rights of parents be not lightly sct aside, and
second, that the public be not burdened with the support of children not necessarily
dependent. Once acquired, guardianship should only be revoked for improper admin-
istration. It should continue during the minority of the child.

h(_«liati) The proper training of dependent children and the disposal of dependent

children.

The trouble with children who become de{lendent is that they have never had or
have lost the right sort of home and family life. The thing to do with them wonld
seem to be to supply, just as soon as possible, that which has been missed or taken
away. When a man is thirsty, we five him drink; when he is hungry, we give him
food. In like manner when a child is homeless, we provide him a home.

Therefore, since somebody’s home is the proper destination of every child, that
training which will soonest fit a child for reception into that haven of comfort and
protection is theproper training. Home life fits a child for home life, and that alone,
unless he has been injured by want of proper home surroundings, in which case he
has become abnormal.

Institution life, up to a certain point, corrects abnormality and refits a child for
home life. Beyund that point it fits him for institution life, and that alone, which is

‘a misfortune. For infants and very young children ;he principal value of an insti-
tution is as a receiving and distributing point, such children being best provided for
in selected family homes as boarders while waiting the completion of arrangements
for their final reception by adoption or indenture.

Older children usually have acquired bad habits which need correction, or they
are dull, or slovenly, or indolent, or insubordinate, or are of such doubtful character
and disporition that they require watching and study before it can be determined
what oan and should he done for them. To meet the needs of these, the modern
institution is admirably adapted. Its proper work is to eradicate the effects of bad
environment, to awaken the intellect, to teach habits of order, cleanliness, and obe-
dience, to lay the foundation for a common-school education, and in general to impart
a knowledge of and create a desire for a higher and better physical, intellectual, and
moral life than any known to the children for whose benefit it has been created.
That the better managed institutions accomplish this by no means slight undertak-
ing is beyond doubt.

Al mention of manual and industrial training is purposely omitted here, for the
reason that it is set apart for special consideration at another time.

Finally, as to the disposal of dependent children. It is desirable that there should
be available such variety of correctional, fostering, and uplifting influences as will
make it possible for the Government, acting through an official commission, to do
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with each individual child that which his disposition, history, and capabilities indi-
cate as most likely to bring forth the best results.

Hg;ving assumed charge of children in obedience to orders of the court having
authority to commit, the child-caring commission should, throngh an expert super-
intendent, at once decide what is to be the situation of such children for the imme-
dinte future; whether to be paroled and sent homs to be watched over by wise and
skillful agents, sent into a reformatory, placed in an institution created for the
purpose of receiving such children pending farther study of their habits and charac-
teristics, placed at once in foster liomes, boarded out or left in the onstody of one or
the other parent, such parent being placed, without expense to the State, in a posi-
tion to control and provide for his or her child. The court of jurisdiction should
also be nuthorized to orler the collection of a contribution toward maintenance
from parents abl: but unwilling to provide for their offspring, and to enforce snch
orders by attachment issued against the property, wages, and person of such parent,
the children remninim{ under tho protection of melic authority. By the operation
of such a system, children found in temporary distress will be promptly removed to
appropriate institutions or placed in selected boarding homes until their parents
have so far improved their condition that the children can safely be restored to
them. Consideration of comparative advantages will not, however, control the
reception or retention of children. The question to be decided will never be one
arising out of comparison between the wealth of the inatitution or the comfort of
the boarding home and the bare surroundings and meager support of the parental
home, but whether it is morally and physically safe that those directly under con-
sideration should continue to reside with their parents.

There should be no hard and fast rales laid down for the government of cases
wherein municipal or statutory laws have been disregarded by children. Such child-
ren should be committed to the care of experts whose life’s work and profession it is
to decide what should be done in eaéh case dealt with. Some should be at once
released on parole, returning to their former homes; some deported to distant family
homes, and carefully and judiciously guided into better ways, and some should go
at once to reformatory institutions, there to learn, under more or less hard conditions,
those lessons of industry, personal honor, and self-control which alone will enable
them to use wisely the larger liberty to which they will by and by be restored.

The State child-caring commission should select from among its wards, whether in
the institution used as a receiving and distributing center, boarded out, or residing
in their own homes on probation, such childrenas show especial aptitude in receiving
industrialor literary education, and place within theirreach appropriate educational
advantages. It should select for indenture to farmers, tradesmen, and others those
who will find in the homes of snch persons the measure of their several capacities
for usefulness. It should deliver to the reformatory those who exhibit liability to
become decidedly refractory, and hand down for special training or life-long seques-
tration those whose progressive degeneracy or incapacity renders them unfit for
association with their kind under normal conditions. ‘

(6) The need for visitation of placod-out children.

Of all the wrongs committed in the name of charity there is not another 8o inde-
fensible as the placing out of dependent little children and then leaving them without
recourse to those charged with the responsibility of securing their welfare. Compared
with this the whoie process of the reception, detention, and discipline of children in-
stitutions is of little importance. Children are easily affected by their surroundings.
In an institution they quickly respond to elevating influences and rapidly become
fit for transfer to such family homes as may reasonably be approved. Removed from
the institution and placed in indifferent homes they as rapidly fall back into the
cgndiltion from which they had been lifted up and all done for and with them is worse
than lost.

There is not now in existence and never will be a set of officers who can read human
nature at first sight with such certainty as to be able to approve or reject wisely the
applications coming to them for children to be taken by families. Such applications
demand the most painstaking investigation. This sort of inquiry can be most suc-
cessfully made in the locality in which the applicant resides, and this calls for the
services of a traveling agent. It is amazing what good recommendations can be
secured by unfit families. Letters from the postmaster, principal merchant of the
town, or pastor of the church are of but little value if written at the solicitation of the
applicant. Even with the greatest care a child willnow and then get into improper
hands, misfits will occur, and the necessity for changes will constantly arise. To
depend upon correspondence for information as to all that affects the welfare of a
placed-out child is to fail. Persons ought not to be expected to report their own
shortcomings; the fact is that they never do. Children’s letters are usually dictated
or supervised, or at least written with the expectation that the contents of them
will be made known. Therefore they never contain complaints except where no
cause for complaint exists. We have found that where children and foster parents
are unsuited to each other it is as often the fault of the family as of the child,
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It is desirable that the progress and conduot of public wards should be reported
and recorded from year to year during minority. Only through visitation by a care-
tul and well-instructed ageunt can such information be collected.

It is desirable that the moral hold of the legal guardian should be maintained
upon all placed-out children., Its influence in keeping them steudy and reliable is
incalculable. It can be maintained in no other way as eftectually as by periodical
visitation.

As placed-out children become 14, 15, 16 years of age they nsunally begin to have
serious thoughts about themselves and their position in the fumily and the commun-
ity. A large majority of them, if they have been properly dealt with, are decply
grateful for their improved condition, and they look upon the visiting and super-
vising agent as responsible for that improvement. He is the personal representative
of their impurson“l) benefactor; they know of his kindness and they trust his wis-
dom; and he, therefore, powerfully influences their conduct.

Hundreds of persons whose howmes are thrown open to dependent children, and
who receive them with the very best intentions, have not the experience and special
skill for dealing with them properly. They do not know how to begin, aud there-
fore soon find that they are the servants, while the child owns the home. Again,
persons who have led the quiet, orderly life of the rural districts are frequeutly
appalled at the precocious insubordination of a child suddenly released from the
machine-like routine and drill of an institution. A supervising agent who spends
his whole time in the study and adjustment of such relations, and who has an inti-
mate acquaintance with the children, both gencrally and individually, hecomes,
after a little, able to apply the proper remedy at once, and then to turn the judg-
ment and common sense of the foster parent to the task of preserving the adjustment;
when withont his assistauce the whole arrangement would have beon broken up, to
the mutual disadvantage of both child and home.

Wherever the placing out of children has been accompanied by adequate and skill-
ful supervision of such children, the plan has achieved notable success. Wherever
it has been attempted without such afterwork, it has been found to be liable to gross
abuse, and no one can speak with definiteness of its cftect. 'Thero are reasons for
believing that it has sometimes proved a most lamentable failure.

CONCLUSION.,

We suppose that the topics arranged for consideration at this time were intended
to provoke discussion of a complete plan for the public care of dependent children.
It may be profitable, therefore, to point ont what would be the most apparent eftects
of foliowing the plan herein outlined. They would be, we believe, as follows:

The line between the duty of the church and the private association and the duty
of the Government would be sharply drawn and not crossed. Parental rights would
be adequately guarded and parental neglect promptly dealt with. All temptation
to relinquish to public care children who should be kept at hone would he removed.
The burden of support of children at public expense would not unduly increase, for
many would be prevented from becoming dependent, parents of others would be
compelled to contribute to their support, and rapid placing out wonld prevent the
crowding of the institutions. At the same time 1t wonld not be necessary that any
ohild should remain subject to abuse, moral contamination, or hurtful poverty for a
single day after his condition became known.

Intelligent selection of children for transfer to trade schools and institutions of
learning would provide opportunities for those who could make best use of them.
The tolerably good and the tolerably bad would find appropriate conditions in family
homes and reformatories, and the melancholy residuum would also find its appro-
priate level and cease to bring forth after its kind.

Representative NORTHWAY. Suppose the law should interfere with
your right to make contracts with these different institutions, what
could you do with the children? '

Mr. WoOoDWARD. Well—I simply give mny opiuion, because we have
never considered any such contingency—I should rent property or have
a home of our own.

Senator FAULKNER. Have you a right to rent property now under
the appropriation?

Mr. WooDWARD. I do not know whether we have or not. We would
have to do it on our own responsibility in such a contingency.

Senator FAULKNER. Which policy would you pursue?
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Mr. WoonWwARD. I should say that a small home of our own would
be the most desirable thing to have.

Representative PITNEY. A receiving and distributing home?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. You would not make that an industrial
home; you would rely upon other industrial homes to place them in,
would you not?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, 8ir; we use at present for that purpose the
Newsboys’ Home. We use that almost exclusively, Mr. Lewis, do we
not?

Mr. LEwis. Not exclusively, but to a large extent.

Senator FAULKNER. What do you put these children in these homes
for at all; you have a place?

Mr. WooDWARD. No, sir; we have none of our own,

Representative NorTHWAY. The District has been maintaining two
of these homes here, has it not?

Mr. WooDWARD. No, sir.

Senator McMILLAN. You would have to use these other homes?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir,

Senator FAULKNER. Or you would have to have a large institution
of yourown in order to keep them ?

Mr. WooDWAKD. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN, And at the same time use other institutions to
some extent?

Mr. WoopwARD. We have but a few children who are kept longer
than a few weeks or months.

Representative PITNEY. Is that long enough?

Mr. WoopwARD. Not long enough for investigation of children and
their preparation for going into a home,

Representative PI'NEY. Would you not prefer to keep them, if you
had a proper place to raise the children in?

Mr. WooDWARD., We think that can be done by institutions already
existing.

Representative PITNEY. What are the relations betwegn your Board
and the Home for Destitute Colored Women and Children? Do you
have any relations with them?

Mr. WooDWARD. I believe we have had; I am not very conversant
with that.

Representative PITNEY. How about that, Mr. Lewis? *

Mr. LEwis. We have a working arrangement with that institution
by which we send certain children there to be cared for at the expense
of the Board of Children’s Guardians.

Representative PITNEY. To what extent do you avail yourself of thut
arrangement?

Mr. LEwis. Less extensively than formerly, for two reasons. In the
first place, the little institution which is down in the city recives both
white and colored children, and it is very convenient for us.

Representative PITNEY. What institution do you mean?

Mr. LEwis. The George Maulsby Home. The principal reason why
we do not send more to the Colored Orphan Asylum is that they will
not take children over 10 years of age. They decline to receive them
over that age; and many of the colored children that we have to deal
with are below 3 years of age, the minimum, and over 10 years of age,
the maximum; so that we are to that extent excluded from using that

institution,
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Representative PITNEY. Do you mean to say that their charter puts

that limitation upon you?
Mr. LEwis. I do not know about the charter; that is the regulation

they enforce in regard to us.
Representative NORTHWAY. Do you avail yourself of the Industrial

Home School to any extent?
Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir; to some extent. We have 10 there, I

think.

Mr. LEwis, The number is smaller than formerly.

Senator MCMILLAN. Do they charge you a reasonable rate for taking
care of children?

Mr. WoODWARD, Yes, sir; I understand so.

Representative PITNEY. Do you think you could do it any cheaper
yourselves if you had a home of your own?

Mr. WooDWARD. Well, we have not tried that experiment.

Representative NoRTHWAY. Could you availyourselves of the Indus-
trial Home School to a greater extent than you do?

Mr. LEwIs. Not profitably; the rate paid is a little higher than at
the other home, and it is more inconvenient. It takes more time and
more car fare; we have to go back and forth very frequently. The
rate at the Industrial Home School is 25 cents higher on each child per
Eonth; $10.25 at the Industrial Home School and $10 at the Maulsby

ome,.

Senator MCMILLAN. The Industrial Home School is an institution
owned by the Government, is it not?

Mr. WooDWARD. Controlled by the Government.

Senator MCMILLAN. I suppose we could regulate that, could we not,
and say they could not charge you any more than at the other home?

Mr. WoODWARD. I presume you could.

Senator FAULKNER. That is a pretty high rate—$120 a year.

Senator MCMILLAN. I do not see why you could not tell these gen-
tlemen to take them for $8 a month.

Senator FAULKNER. I know of an institution in this city where it
costs but $94 a year for each inmate.

Representative NORTHWAY. Is that difference in the cost at those
two homes because of bidding to get business?

Mr. LEwis. 1t did not cowe about in that way. When the arrange-
ment was made with the Industrial Home School, it was upon the basis
of cost of maintaining children at the Industrial Home School in former
years. It had been $130 a year, and that was the rate agreed upon
when the first arrangement was made. The Maulsby Home was not
then in existence in its present form; it was then the Newsboys’ and
Children’s Aid Society. We first had an arrangement with it providing
for a rate of $8 per month, and we were to furnish the clothing, We
afterwards raised the rate; they furnished everything.

Representative NORTHWAY. Your written report gives the names of
all the institutions?

Mr, LEwIs. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. Doesit give the cost at the different institutions?

Mr. LEwis. I think it does.

Representative PITNEY. Let me ask you a question, Mr. Lewis.
What stipulation do you make with regard to religious training when
you place children out?

Mr. LEwis. We do not attempt to make any stipulation. In the
approval of applications for children, other things being equal or nearly
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equal, we always place the child with persons of the same religious
faith as the child’s parents. We try to maintain that distinction, and do
so as far as we can. If we have an application from a family who are
communicants in the Catholic Church, and there does not seem to be
any child on hand who has been baptised in that faith and there is one
that has not, if the horae can be approved on high moral grounds, we
do not allow the religious consideration to stand in the way, and we
place the child.

Representative PITNEY. And vice versa?

Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir,

Senator FAULKNER. I would like you to read the figures in the last
column of this table showing the rate charged per year for caring for
children at the different institutions.

Representative PITNEY. For what year?

Senator FAULKNER. 1896,

Mr. LEwrs. Newsboys’and Children’s Aid Society, $131.27; National
Association for the Relief of Destitute Colored Women and Children,
$91.45; Industrial Home School, $123.06; House of the Good Shepherd,
$94.82; German Orphan Asylum, $95.77; Association for Works of
Mercy, $96.57; Hope and Help Mission, $96.32; and Young Woman’s
Christian Home, $94.46.

Senator FAULKNER. Is that a fair comparison? In other words, do
all of those institutions not only board but educate and clothe the

children?

Mr. LEwis, Yes, sir.

Senator McMILLAN., They range from $96 to $1311

Mr, LEwis. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. Are they all supposed to be based upon the
actual cost to the institution?

Mr. Lewis. I can not say as to that. The rate at the House of the
Good Shepherd is $8. The rate at all of these institutions, excepting
the Industrial Home School and the Maulsby Home, is $8 per month.

Representative PITNEY. Eight dollars per month?

Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir. The board never knew whether it was based
oa the actual expense or not. It is almost impossible to tell the actual
cost per capita.

Representative PITNEY. Some of those institutions have a force of
matrons, attendants, etc., who are not paid, have they not?

Senator MCMILLAN. Yes; I think they have.

Mr. WoODWARD. Mr. Lewis will make a statement showing the
difference in price or cost to the board for children in institutions and
children placed out in homes. His statement will give us an average
of $113 a child in institutions as against an average of $20 a child when
pllaced out if we had the means to place thewnr in homes and investigate
them,

Mr. LEw1s. In regard to the history of the administrative funds of
the Board of Children’s Guardians: The first appropriation bill provid-
ing for the support of this work was approved early in 1893 and made
an appropriation of $24,200, 5,900 of which was for administrative
purposes and was immediately available. With this amount the work
of preliminary organization was accomplished, furniture purchased,
office rooms secured, records originated and putin use,and tbe current
work of the fiscal year 1894 completed. The board began the year
with but one employee and with no children on hand. It was, there.
fore, for the first half of the year free of the duty imposed by law of
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visiting and supervising placed-out children. Six hundred and fifty-
one dollars and thirteen cents was returned to the Treasury as an
unexpended balance of the $5,000 appropriated.

The next appropriation act cut down the amount given for adminis-
trative purposes to $4,000 and forced the board into a violation of the
agreement made with its principal agent by limiting his salary to
81,5600 per annum. The second fiscal year was begun with 126 children
in family homes, and therefore subject to supervision, 90 ot whom
were not on expense for maintenance, and with three employees in the
service of the board. The placing out of children continued during
the year, and an effort was made to comply with the requirements of
the statute requiring the supervision of the placed-out children and the
recording of all that transpired affecting them. The $4,000 was not
sufticient, but was made to serve.

For the fiscal year 1896, $4,000 was again appropriated. The year’s
work was begun with 201 children in homes, subject to supervision.
During the year it became apparent that it would be impossible to
properly look after the placed-out children unless more money was
spent upon that sort of work; in fact, the effects of looseness of super-
vision became painfully apparent. The requirements of the affairs of
the board in Washington were such that nearly all the time of the prin-
cipal agent was absorbed at the home office, and the supervision of the
children would have been difficult even had there been on hand money
with which to pay traveling expenses. The year closed with 262 chil-
dren in homes. Many of them bhad been 12 years old and upward when
placed out, and had been very difficult to settle. Many of them had
been denied admission to any institution in the District of Columbia,
and had therefore been sent out without any preliminary training
whatever. Some of them were leaving their homes and drifting about
the country. Special cases required much time and attention.

The amount of fixed charges to be paid from administrative fands
had been reduced, and the closest economy practiced at every point.
Administrative charges are not such as can wait for a deficiency appro-
priation, and the year therefore closed with much important work
undone. The number of children in homes had largely increased : the
number doing well in their homes had remained stationary; the » .nber
doing fairly had doubled, while the number not visited, and about whom
little was known, was three times as great as ever before. The board
had‘ urged the Congress to increase the amount, but its urgency availed
nothing. '

For the fiscal year 1897 the same amount ($4,000) was again given.

There being no possibility of doing the work properly with that
amount, the finding of free homes for children was proceeded with much
more slowly after thie beginning of the present fiscal year, and since
January 1 has been wholly abandoned.

Since it seems to those in authority better to cripple the work of dis-
tribution, the children are now accumulating in the asylums.

Last year the cost per child for those kept in asylums was an average
of $113.15, while the cost of the entire administrative work of the board,
including ail salaries, all office and sundry expenses, all travel and
transportation was an average of $16.99 per child for those in family
homes subject to supervision. Leaving out of the question all con-
siderations other than this financial one, it resolves itself into the
inquiry as to whether it is cheaper and better to keep the children in
the institutions at $113 per child per year or support an official board
which will place them out and supervise them at $20 per child per year.
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The following tables show the relative cost of the two plans:

Aotual results of plan pursued.

1804, 1895. 1896. 1897, Total.

On hand from last year............ B 85 103 100 |............
New commitments .......c.cecceees cosan 203 110 93 80 486

Total number dealt with.......... 203 195 196 189 ooeeeoeaeen.
Deaths and discharges................. .l 28 | 39 27 23 BETY;
Net increase of number in free homes. .. 90 53 60 30 233

Total deductod.eeseeeencanenannnn. ! 18 | 92 87 53 350
Remaining on expense.............. cone 85 | 103 109 136 ...l
Expense of maintenance................ $7.941. 00 | $12,600.00 | $13.967,00 | $15, 000,00 ; $49, 508. 00
Per capita of maintenance.............. $124. 10 $118. 66 $113.15 $113. 00 b,

Resulls of the commitment of the same number of children had they been provided for
solely in institutions.

1894, | 1895 1896. 1897. 1898.-
I
| ;
On hand from 1ast year cooeeeaueneeenienano. ... | 175 248 | ) I
New commitments ..............c.een.. 203 110 93 | 80 486
Total number dealt with.......... 203 25 339 | 392 |.oeeennn...
Less deaths and discharges............. 28 | 39 27! 23 117
Remaining on experse....c....... 175 : 246 312 [ 369 |.o.........
Expense of maintenance.. ’ $21,717. 50 $29,190.36 | $35, 302.80 @ $41, 897. 90 | $128, 807. 66
Per capita of maintenance. ceeen l $124.10 $118. 66 $113.15 ‘ $113.00 [..co...... .-
i

Estimates and appropriations for administrative purposes.

N i
1804 ’ 1805. ' 1896. ] 1897, ’ 1898.
z : i |
Board's estimates .coooenvenneinaneeifeaeannana.. ;. $6,500.00 | $5,240.00 , $4,700.00 | £6,130.00
ADPrOPriated . ovnnmnosmnessseeeeeno $5, 000, 00 ‘ 4.000.00 | 400000 4,000.00 | 4,000.00

If to the $49,508 actual expense for maintenance for four years be
added the total expense for the entire administration of the affairs of
the board for those years ($15,933.72) and the sum ($65,441.72) sub-
tracted from the amount ($128,807.66) which would have been required
for maintenance had no children been provided with free homes, the
remainder ($63,365.94) may fairly be claimed as the saving resulting
from the home-finding work done in three and one-half years by the
Board of Children’s Guardiaus.

These are the financial advantages of this method of providing for
dependent children, and while they are important, and while all laws
should tend to economy and not extravagance, it is upon its sociolog-
ical side where we find its most pronounced and incontrovertible benefits.

Representative PITNEY. The figures given in the tables in this state-
ment of Mr. Lewis show what you pay for children in institutions and
in private homes?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes,sir; with estimated traveling expenses, assum-
ing that we had months to visit them all if they were placed out.

Senator MCMILLAN. How much are you allowed for visitation per

anpum ¥ ;
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Mr. WoopwARD. Four thousand dollars for administration expenses.

Senator MCMILLAN. That includes what?

Mr. WoopwARrD. That includes salary of the agent, clerk, type-
writer, stationery, rent, and incidental expenses.

The CHAIRMAN. And traveling expenses?

- Mr. WoODWARD. Yes. sir; it must include that.

Senator MCMILLAN, The 84,000 includes all you have for doing the
work of administration, including the expense of visiting these children,
which you are obliged to do under the law?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir,

Senator MCMILLAN. And you say that is not enough?

Mr. WoODWARD. No, sir; it is not enough, if we are to put these
children out in private homes, which, as you can see, works a great
saving,

Senator MCMILLAN. I tried to have it increased once. You ought
to have for the expense of visiting these children a certain sum,
entirely different from your other expenses.

Mr. WoobpwARD. Yes, sir, If we had $2,000 added to our adminis-
tration fund, it is estimated that we would be able to return about
$4,000 of the maintenance fund.

Senator MCMILLAN. You need your administration fund increased?
That fund includes your running expenses, such as clerk hire.

Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir. We are obliged to have, and ought to
have, a clerk in the office all the time; we have to have a typewriter
and somebody to see to the records. We ought to bave a man who
can investigate cases in the District and in the police court.

Senator FAULKNER. All your expenses would amount to about $3,400
outside of traveling expenses.

Mr. WoopwARD. Yes, sir; our present expenses are about $3,500.

Senator FAULKNER. Then you want added to that about $2,000 for

visitation?

M-, WOoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Kepresentative PITNEY. By making the appropriation $6,000, that
would give you a little more for clerk hire and what you need for
visitation,

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. It is my idea that we should add to this fund
about $2,000.

Representative PITNEY. Mr. Woodward, let me ask you a question.
It has been suggested, and 1t is being urged upon Congress, that there
ought to be a board of charities, to have general supervision of all
charitable work in the District. If that plan,or anything similar, were
adopted, what suggestions can you make looking to bringing your work
into the control of such a board and into harmonious relations with all
the other charitable work of the District so far as publicly supported ?

Mr. WooDpWARD. I do not know that I can answer that question. I
do not think there would be any difficulties so far as our board is con-
cerned of arranging our work to meet any such provision. I think a
majority of our members are in favot of such a scheme, and believe that
if some comprehensive scheme were adopted by Congress it would
result beneficially to us as well as to other charities.

Representative PITNEY. Would it be proper to have certain board
of charities members, ex officio members, of your board or provide that
your board should be represented?

Mr. WoopwARD. I think that would be an acceptable plan.

Representative PITNEY. So that you could keep in touch with the

details of the work in general?
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Mr. WooDWARD. Yes, sir. Now, I would like to state that during
this last quarter of the fiscal year we have withdrawn entirely from
placing children out in free homes. We have a deficiency, and can
therefore do no more visiting until the new fiscal year. The children
must be placed in institutions and kept there; until there is money
available to visit them they can not be placed out. Instead of the Dis-
trict paying $20 a child, they are paying in many cases $113. Some-
body is losing that much money, to say nothing of the interest of the
children.

Senator McCMILLAN. They are simply kept there instead of putting
them in private homes?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir.
‘We have a tabulated statement here showing the amounts appropri-

ated to the different institutions for the past fifteen years, which I will

file.
The statement follows:

LPubdlie appropriations for maintenance of private institutions for children,

| 1| Washing- .
Indus- |\ ional l‘St. Ann's StIOMD'S ) Hos. | Colored | Associa- |y, 0 o
Years trial Colored | I Church | _% : Found- | tion for [, s od
. I Colore nfant Orphan. pital for lings' | Works of The Go
LVMe | Home. | Asylum, | VTPUAI | TG g, nga Irks O Shepherd
School, . ‘| age. lings. | Home. | Mercy. pherd.
£5, 000 $6, 500 $5,000 looeeeiioerecennneicenncnacidiecaannnn.
10, 000 7,000 5, 000 { $1,500 {..euun.... P PR
12, 500 9, 000 5, 000 1,000 |iceearenncfecncanaacafossanceanss
12, 000 6,500 5, 000 1,500 oeenn.... £100
10, 400 6, 5% 5, 000 b IRRT1. 1 PR RPN PR
10, 000 7, 000 6, 000 1, 500 B7,000 [ooeeeeidinennaann.
10, 00V 8, 000 6, V00 1, 500 7,000 1,500
10, 500 9. VU0 6, VU0 1, 500 6, 600 2, 500
13,500 10, 000 8, 560 1,500 7,000 2, 000
11, 500 10, 000 7,079 2, 500 6, 000 3,000
13, 000 10, 000 6, 500 2, 000 6. 000 2, 000
7.6G80 7,680 3, 840 1,181 6, 000 1,181
9, 900 9, 900 5,400 1, 800 6, V00 1. 800
9, 900 9, 900 5,400 1, 800 6, 0v0 1, 800
9, 900 9, 900 5, 400 1, 800 6, 000 1, 800
Fifteen years.| 154,380 | 127,870 | 83,119 | 23,080 | 63,000 | 9,000 18,381 I 16,270

. o St.Jo- | St. Vin- | Home for » News-
St.Roac’s c.rman | seph's | cent's | Friend- “};‘:"::lﬁs!boys' aful

Total.

¥ Orphan Male Female leas |\ VBE0 S
S:l?;:»ll Asylum.| Orphan | Orphan { Colored Ch ":)t;“n dren's Aid
: Asylum. | Asylum.| Girls. " | Society.

' 000
1896 oierininas| 4,500 1,800 1,800 {eeeeennaertoeancnnnns 1,000 | $1,000 45, 600

................ jeevemeenes

Fitteen 5ears.‘ 19, 453 6,781 6,781 |.ccceen... 400 ’ 2,000 1, 000 531, 615

The Industrial Home School became a public institution in 1897.

Six of the institutions whose subsidies are listed above are adminis-
tered by religious orders whose members wear a distinctive garb,
namely: St. Ann’s Infant Asylum, St. John’s. Church Orphanage, Asso-
ciation for Works of Mercy, House of The Good Shepherd, St. Rose’s
Industrial School, and St. Joseph’s Male Orphan Asylum,
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The investment of public funds in the real estate of the above insti-
tutions is $179,000. Notwithstanding this investment, and the appro-
priations for maintenance as shown above, there is no public official
and no court of justice which has authority to admit or discharge a
single child.

Mr. WooDWARD. Mr. B, Pickman Mann, secretary of the Board of
Children’s Guardians, is here to make a statement in answer to the
questions mentioned in the topics.

Mr. MANN. Gentlemen, I will reply to the questions in their order.

First. Those children should be considered dependent who have no

natural guardians or legally constituted guardians, even though pos-
sessed of adequate means ot livelihood; for without guardians they are
without protection. The duties of the District toward such children
include the obligation to provide them with legal guardians, If they
be possessed, by inheritance or otherwise, with means of livelihood,
such means should be used for their support and education; but if they
be not so possessed, the duty of the District is to provide them with
adequate support, care, and training, so that they may become health-
ful, moral, and useful citizens; for upon the character of its future
citizens depends the welfare of the people. As a mere matter of econ-
omy in a pecuniary sense, it is better to bear the cost of the proper
rearing of citizens than to incur the burdens of maintaining protect-
ive, reformatory, and punitive institutions for such as by neglect may
bt;come paupers, misdemeanants, or confirmed criminals in advanced
life. ‘
Second. The government (the District) owes a duty to all children,
as to its other citizens, that they be protected from abuse even by their
natural or legal guardians. Where the relation between children and
their care takers is not that of legal guardianship much stricter care
should be exercised by the government, and much less liberty allowed
to the exercise of discretion on the part of the care takers than in case
of the relation between children and their legal or natural guardians.
Therefore supervision should be exercised by the government over
children not officially declared dependent, whether in homes or institu-
tions,and for practical reasons, drawn from experience,such supervision
should be exercised particularly over children placed in institutions.
No institution should be allowed to claim exemption from governmental
supervision, whether it be partially or not at all aided by public funds
or endowed with legal power under public charters or be entirely vol
untary in its character.

Third. The duty of the Government toward dependent children being
established, the Government itself should determine what children are
to be classed as objects of its care in the various aspects in which that
care is to be given. No children should be regarded as dependent with-
out careful and authoritative determination of the question of their
status, which determination is impracticable in its most adequate sense
without recourse to judicial inquiry and decision. The courts alone
have power to elicit that full information which is requisite to a proper
determination of the status of the citizen. In all cases, therefore, in
which the dependency of the children is in question, the question should
be determined by the courts. Guardianship, if adjudged proper to be
conferred, should be made full and effective, and to last during the minor-
ity or legal incompetency of the ward; otherwise, upon the termination
of such guardianship, the child will find itself unprotected and without

legal rights.
Fourth. Children differ so greatly in natural qualities as well as in
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the eftects of their environment upon them that no uniform rule, based
upon age, education, nor moral condition, can be laid down for their
training. This should be determined in every individual case by the
character and abilities of the child. It should, therefore, be left to a
competent tribunal for decision.

Fifth. As inregard to the previous question, so in regard to this—the
needs of the individual should be considered, rather than the execution
of any stated rule.

Sixth. Institutions having to a large extent an established character
and a uniformity, within each, of methods and discipline need super-
vision mainly along general lines; but the homes of the people are so
various that constant and vigilant special supervision should be exer-
cised over children placed in them.

Mrs. H. F. B. MACFARLAND. As to the administrative fund of the
Board of Children’s Guardians, I think it should be put in the control
of the board to use as is best in their judgment. I do not think that
the salary of the agent should be limited by the law; the board should
have some leeway. The chairman spoke of putting the children in
the institutions, as I understood him. They probably could be, but that
is not the only point. If we had an institutior of our own, it would be
very much better. We could work along those lines which we believe
to be wisest. I do not think we want just a little temporary clearing-
house. I think the Board of Children’s Guardians ought to have an
institution something after the fashion of the Michigan State school,
perhaps not so comprehensive, but somewhat along those lines.

Then in regard to the Western agency, I wish you would ask Mr,
Lewis to tell you what he knows of the New York Juvenile Asylum in
its work in placing children in the West and maintaining a Western
agency. 'That is what we ouglht to have developed on proper lines., I
think it would be a great advantage to have such an agency.

Representative PITNEY. We shall be very glad to hea Mr. Lewis on
that or any other topic which the board desires to present.

Senator MCMILLAN. In this connection, how does the number of
children here compare, for instance, with the number in Michigan or
Maryland? What comparison can be made? I understand that we
have in the District an unusually large number of children to be taken
care of,

Mr. LEwis. The proportion of dependent children to population in
the District of Columbia is 1 child to less than 400 of population.
In the State of Minnesota, in the State of Michigan, and one other
State, Rhode Island I believe it is, where the matter has been under
State control, and placing out has been practiced for a series of years,
the proportion is 1 child to 10,000 of population,

Senator McMILLAN. That is just what I thought.

Mr. LEwIs. In other words, to make the comparison correct between
the District of Columbia and the State of Minnesota, the District is
contributing to the support of upward of 600 children at the present
time. It is appropriating upward of $60,000 for the maintenance of
those children. The State of Minnesota is contributing to the support
of about 200 children, and is appropriating about $45,000 a year for the
maintenance of the whole work. That is to say, whereas the popula-
tion of the State of Minnesota is five times as great as the population
of the District of Columbia, the number of children dependent upon the
State for support and protection is one-third.

Senator MCMILLAN. I think that is a very important point.
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Representative PITNEY. It is. It comes close to the practical
question.

Senator FAULKNER. Can you give us a practical comparison—a com-
parison of a city against a city? What you have given is the compari-
son of a city against a whole State. Take city against city. Take Now
York, for example, or Boston, or Baltimore. That is the way to arrive
at a fair comparison.

Senator MCMILLAN, Take Detroit, which is about the same size, or
Milwaukee, or Cleveland. Have you any statistics as to those cities?

Mr. LEwis. I can now recall only the statistics for the State of
Massachusetts in comparison with some other State, which perhaps
would be a fairer comparison than the one I spoke of.

Take the State of Massachusetts in comparison with the State of New
York, each having a great seaport with its mouth open to the world,
and each handling this matter under practically the same conditions,
but on radically different plans. In the State of Massachusetts the
ratio of child dependents to general population is 1 to 1,100 and some-
thing, and in the State of New York it is 1 to 370.
~ Representative PITNEY. You know they have a very much greater

flood of immigration into New York., 1 think that must account
largely, or to some extent, at least, for that variance. The character
of the population in New York is very different.

Senator FAULKNER. Can you make any comparison between Wash-
ington and any other city, not a State? .

Mr. LEwis. I can not.

Senator FAULKNER. That would be the only fair comparison.

Mr. LEwis. It is almost imp ssible to get statistics as to cities.

- Senator MCMILLAN, Because the States do the work?

Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir,

Representative PITNEY. We are contributing to the support of 600
children in the District of Columbia on the ground of dependency, or
some other grounds. 1Is there any method by which we can find out
how many children are really dependent, and are really and properly
the subject of public charge?

Mr. LEwis. No, sir; there is not.

Representative PITNEY. Is there anybody who can tell what is the
extent of the charitable work which should strictly and properly be
done here? : .

Mr. LEwIs. No one can tell, so far as I know.

Representative PITNEY. Yau can not do it without putting into opera-
tion some weeding-out process, and finding out how it works?

Mr. LEwis. That is the only way I know of.

I was asked to speak of the Western agency, maintained by the New
York Juvenile Asylum, The home of the agency is at Englewood, 111,
The New York Juvenile Asylum forty years ago established the W est-
ern agency and began sending children to the State of Illinois to he
there placed out. It has maintained the agency ever since, and the
number of children sent West has averaged about one hundred a ycar.
The work has never excited any svecial opposition in the State ot Illi-
nois, for the reason, in the first place, that it has been very carefully
done, and, in the second pldce, there has always been a resident agent
there on the ground who attended to it and to whom all complaints and
transfers and returns were referred.

For instance, if a child became unruly and undesirable in the home
in which it had been placed, it was only necessary to-tefer the matter
to Mr.. Wright, the resident agent, who took charge of the child and
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took it to the receiving station at Englewood, where it was taken care
of. The child was not allowed to be driven into the poorhouse or one
of the reformatory institutions of the State of Illinois. It is regarded
by persona throughout the country who are informed as to matters of
this kind as an extraordinarily successful experiment.

The expeuses of the Western agency, which now has on its rolls and
under its guardianship about 4,000 children, is less than $5,000 a year.
That sum takes care of 4,000 children under guardianship of the asylum
in Illinois, and it takes care of all returns and transfers, and furnishes
new homes for the 100 children sent West every year.

Representative PI'NEY. Do they not pay anything for maintenance
in the homes?!

Mr. LEwis. No; they are all free homes.

Senator MCMILLAN. How do you find out about the homes?

Mr. LEwIs. In this case I went myself to the place and stayed there
forty-eight hours with the superintendent. I talked the matter over
with him, and I also visited the institution in New York.

Senator MCMILLAN. I mean ordinarily, when you want homes for
children, how do you ascertain the facts as to them?

Representative PITNEY. Senator, do you mean private homes?

Senator MCMILLAN. Yes; private homes.

Mr, Lewis. Every institution that makes it known widely that it has
children who can be secured will be practically overwhelmed with appli-
cations for them. That has been the history of every one of which I
have had any knowledge. It has been the history of the Board of
Children’s Guardians. .

In the summer of 1893 when the Board of Children’s Guardians
begun its work in the city of Washington, notices were placed for four
weeks on Saturday of each week in four papers, two in Washington,
one in Baltimore, and one church paper. ' That is all the advertising
the board has ever done. There never has been a week since that day
that it has not had on hand from 70 to 150 applications for children.

Representative NORTHWAY. You investigate the family, I suppose,
80 as to know whetker it is a proper place for the child?

Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir.

I wish to make one other suggestion in regard to the increase of the
appropriation for the administrative expenses of the board. There is
a very small deficit in the administrative fand—less than $50. There
is a surplus of $2,400 in the fund for the care of children. " If it could
be done, and if it seemed a wise thing to do, simply to remove the bar
to the transfer from one of those funds to another, nothing additional
need be appropriated. There is money enough. The only difficulty is
that it is not properly distributed. For instance, if the board had
authority to use all of its appropriations for such purposes as might be
necessary, it would go through the year with a small surplus.

Representative NORTHWAY. Now the appropriation is made for a
specific 'object, and you are not permitted to use it for any other
purpose

Mr. LEwis. That is true. With the present arrangement we return
about $3,000 to the Treasury. The work required to be done will not
be done for the reason that there is not enough money appropriated
for the specific purpose.

Mr, JoBN F. Coox. At first it was $6,000,

Mr. LEwis. It was $5,000. That was sufficient, and $600 was
returned to the Treasury. But that was the initial year.

Representative NORTAHWAY. The amount usually returned to the
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Treasury had better be expended in traveling expenses, in investigating

homes, etc.
Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir; by far.
Mr. WooDWARD. The committee understands how this money is

expended; that we have to provide vouchers, and all that.

Senator MCMILLAN. Oh, yes. On the schedule of hearings I find
¢“Officers of the Nationa! Association for the Relief of Destitute Col-
ored Women and Childrea.,” 1sthere anyone representing that associa-
tion who desires to be heard?

STATSMENT OF JOHN F. COOK.

Mr. Cook. Dr. Purvis was here, but had to leave. I am one of the
trustees of that institution. The officers and managers are ladies, some
of whom are here.

Senator MCMILLAN. You have made a report?

Mr. Cook. Yes, sir; we have made a report,

Senator MCMILLAN. Do you wish to add anything to that report?

Mr. Cook. 1 do not know of anything that we need add, except as
to the questions submitted in your printed statement as to the capacity,
etc., of the institution.

Senator McMi1LLAN. That information your report gives.

Mr. Cook. Possibly it may. 1 have not seen the report lately, I
have some data with me, but if it is covered by the report it is not
necessary for me to take up your time. I am willing to answer any
questions which members of the comnittee may desire to ask.

I will state, in respect to one matter which has been suggested by
what was said by Mr. Woodward as to the number of children taken
from the Board of Children's Guardians, that at the present time we
have only five, and that the rule of taking children at 10 years of age
and keeping them until 12 has been a standing regulation of the insti-
tution for some time. It was not action taken to forestall—

Senator MCMILLAN,. That is your regular law on the subject?

Mr. Cook. It is a regulation of the hume. Wae have about 100 chil
dren at present and 10 old women. The home is said to be able to

—necommodate about 100 or 110 children annually.

Representative NORTHWAY. What is the name of your association?

Mr. Cook. The National Home for the Relief of Destitute Colored
Women and Children. W have had some older children sent by the
‘Board of Children’s Guardians, and they have proved rather detri-
mental to the home, containing such a number of younger children,
and therefore in a measure we have had to insist upon that rule—not
in antagonism to the Board of Children’s Guardians, but more as a
protection to the children we have there.

Representative NORTHWAY. You apply the same rule to children from
the Board of Children’s Guardians that you doin any other instance ?

Mr. Cook. Yes, sir. '

Representat've PITNEY. Do you place out children?

Mr. Cook. Yes, sir.

Mr. MANN. I understood Mr. Lewis to say that the Board of Chil-
dren’s Guardians had been notitied that the Colored Home would not
receive children over 10 years of age. Mr. Cook says the limit there
now is 12 years.

Mr. Cook. It is so short a time between 10 and 12 years that there
may be an error on my part, but that is our rule of action.

Senator MCMILLAN, What do you do with these children?

Mr. Cook. We seek homes for them and place them in as good
homes as we can possibly get.
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Representative PITNEY. How many children are in your institution
on the average?

Mr. Cook. On the average about 100,

Representative PITNEY. About how long does each child remain
there on the average?

Mr. Cookx. They come early and we send them away about those
ages a8 quick a8 we can get homes for them. With the exception of
two cripples, who are somewhat permanently with us, all have gone at
about 12 to 14 years of age—12. But at those ages as quick as we can
get homes for them, above 10 years, we send them to the homes.

Representative PITNEY. If a child comes to you at 6 years of age
you keep it four years?

Mr. Cook. We keep it until it is 10 years of age. We do not send
it away before unless there is some specially good home waiting,. We
give it training up to that time.

Senator MCMILLAN, Are the homes in this neighborhood?

Mr. Cook. They are principally in Pennsylvania aud New Jersey—
we have none, 1 think, either east or west of that—and a number

around here.
Senator MCMILLAN. Do you keep track of the children after they

leave your home?

Mr. Cook. As far as we are able. We have no regular visitation,
but the matron now and then goes to visit them, or some delegated
member of the body does. I am informed by one of the lady mana-
gers, Mrs. Baxter, that we have a lady visitor now especially provided.

Mrs. HATCH. That is not quite a correct statement. The board of
admission and dismission are all made a board to visit the children in
the District, and beyond that we have secured the services of a colored
minister, devoted to good work, who will be employed, so far as our
meaus admit, in visiting the children. There are some children in Mas-
sachusetts. Mr. Cook has perhaps forgotten that.

Mr. Cook. Yes. ‘

Mrs. HATcH. It was originally the intention, and, in fact, the law,
that children should not be put out in the District because of the indig-
nity to which they would be subjected—the days of slavery being so
lately passed. It was thought best never to put them in the District,
but of late years, hoping that that prejudice had somewhat abated, the
rule has not been so strictly observed, though it is still considered
desirable to send them farther away, if possible. They are all put out,
I think, at 12 years. In the list here there is but one over 12 now
there, except the two cripples of whom Mr, Cook spoke.

Representative PITNEY. Mr. Lewis, what do you do with the little
children? Do you board them out in homes in some way? I refer to
children 3, 4, 5, 6 years of age.

Mr. LEwis. There is no absolutely fixed age at which a child can go
to this place or the other. If a child is delicate and seems imperatively
to need lots of outdoor exercise and freedom if he has been injured by
the miserable crowding in poor places, from which many of them come,
we send him away to the country and pay board for him in the country
home. If it is an infant, we find some woman who will take it and
take care of it for pay right here in the District of Columbia, where
we can go to see it every month or every week if necessary, and where
the physician employed by the board can reach it. But ordinarily chil-
dren from 6 years of age upward go into institutions, to be maintained
until a free home is provided. It would be an exception if a child over

8. Doc. 185——T7
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6 years of age should be placed in a boarding home; that is, in a pri-
vate family at board.

Representative PITNEY. I should like to ask how many children from
the Colored Home there are who will necessarily be subject to the
visitation of the colored minister whom you have employed for the

purpose !
Mr. Cook. We sent out eighteen by our report submitted to you

during the last year.
Representative PITNEY. How many are already out?
Mr. CookK. I can not give you the figures.
Representative PITNEY., What territory will this minister’s work

cover? _
Mr. Cooxk. I daresay Virginia and Maryland, in the main, where the

larger number of children are placed.
Representative PITNEY. Have you not records to show how many

cbildren you have out?
Mr. Cook. The records may show, but I am noi sufliciently familiar

with them to state,

Mrs, HATcH. I am very sorry the secretary was not able to come,
because of a severe cold, for she could have answered some of these
questions.

Mr. Cook. I should like to say that the per capita cost is less than
20 cents—15 to 20 cents is the cost per capita all through for the main-
tenance of these children.

Representative NORTHWAY. The per capita cost for how long?

Mr. Cook. Fifteen to 20 cents a day.

Representative NORTHWAY. Your school is maintained entirely by
contributions? -

Mr. Cook. No; by the Government in the main, with some gifts.

Representative NORTHWAY, By taxation?

Mr. Cook. By taxation,
Senator MOMILLAN, Can you furnish us a statement in addition to

your oral remarks, probably from your secretary, giving the informa-
tion asked for during the course of your examination, showing where
the children are, how many are in the different States, and how often
they are visited. We should like to have that information. Your sec-
retary can probably supply it in writing, and then we will have it with
the papers in the case.

Mr. MANN. A question was asked in regard to the percentage of
children taken charge of by the Board of Children’s Guardians who
ought not to be supported at public expense, and I should like to say
in regard to that point that Mr. Lewis has reported to us every appli-
cation made and what disposition is made of it, so that if the commit-
tee wishes to have an exact statement of how many applications are
made and how many are complied with it can be put in writing.

Representative PITNEY. I think it would be well to furnish that, Mr.
Maun. I do not suppose anybody can answer the inquiry I made a while
ago. It was as to how many of the dependent or so-called dependent
ohildren to whose support the Government is now contributing ought
to be and how many ought not to be a charge upon the Government.

Mr. MANN. Isuppose by inquiry it could be ascertained where those
children were received and under what conditions they were received,
so that it would be possible to determine to some extent how many of
them really belong to the District. It has been testified to in former
years before committees of somewhat the character of this that many
children were received from outside of the District who were known not
to be dependent upon the District. It might be possible to distinguish
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between those who have some presumptive claim on the District and
those who have none. :

Representative PITNEY. Irrespective of the question of residence, are
there not a great many children taken into the several institutions who
might just as well be supported by their own parents?

Mr. MANN. I should not like to speak for any institution, but at the
time the Board of Children’s Guardians was established, and the appro-
priations to the other institutions diminished, many children who were
at that time in institutions were returned to their families, and it is to
be presumed that the families were able to support them.

It Las often been asserted that persons put their children into public
institutions to be taken care of and supported while the children are
unable to furnish any pecuniary aid to the family, and when they reach
the age at which they may be made useful to the family, they are taken
out and subjected to all the surroundings which are met with in the
poor families. But such statistics had better come from the institutions
themselves and not from others.

Unless judicial inquiry were made as to the condition under which
the children were received and their claims upon the District, I sup-
pose it would be impossible to answer the question which Mr. Pitney
has put as to how many are supported more or less at public expense

who are not entitled to such support.
- Representative PITNEY. What are the conditions for the admission
of children to your home?

Mr. CooK. I call your attention to the by-laws., They are children
who are destitute, as will be seen:

That said soociety may receive into a house or building, to be (frovidod by it, an
destitute child or children at the request of the parents or guardian, or next friend,
or the mother, if the father be dead or has abandoned his family, or does not provide
for their support, or is an babitual drunkard; such Xarentg. uardian, or next friend,
or mother making a written surrender of such child or children.

Representative PITNEY. That is the letter of the law. Now, what is
the practice of the institution?

Mr. Cook. That is the practice, to my knowledge. I think an inves-
tigation would show that the children there are fully within the
requirements of this section.

Representative P1TNEY. They are children who may be properly a

public charge?

Mr. Cook. Yes, sir. I will say to the committee, without any dispo-
gition in the way of an appeal to them, that in this community ot 250,000
people the colored people number, we will say, about one-third, about
33 per cent, and this is the only institution of the kind of the many insti-
. tutions, asylums, etc., for the beunefit of orphans that receives colored

children to any extent. T believe the Little Sisters of the Poor, and I
think St. Ann’s Infant Asyluin take a few. Now, since then there has
grown up the Maulsby Home, referred to by Mr. Lewis. I think that
institution may receive such children. Of its history and creation I

know nothing.
Representative PITNEY. How many old ladies are in your home at

present?

Mr, Cook. About ten, at present. That is up to the limit of the
accommodations. The building is not very large. They have four
schoolrooms, four dormitories, and a workshop now. I think that is
set forth in the report, and it is needless for me to repeat it.

Representative PIrNEY. Are you also a member of the Board of
Children’s Guardians?

Mr. Cook. I am,
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Representative P1TNEY. That board takes charge of colored children

as well as white children?

Mr. Cooxk. It does.

Representative PITNEY. What are the results of its work as to colared
childrent

Mr. Cook. As a matter of course the board are much embarrassed in
the placing of colored children. I think Mr. Lewis will sustain my
statement in that respect, but they do all they possibly can in that
direction, and do it bravely and well.

Representative I''TNEY. What have you to say as to that system of
work so far as concerns its results with regard to colored children?

Mr. Cook. Itis on trial, and I believe it is working pretty well.

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Lewis, what is the proportion of white to black
children that you take care of?

Mr. LEwis. IFor the first two years of the existence of the hoard the
proportion was about two colored to one white. Since that time it has
undergone a very decided change, which 1 have intended to explain in
the hearing which is to follow this one, but I will do so now if it is

thought better.
Representative PITNEY. You may as well go ahead with the expla-

nation.

Mr. LEwis. That was true for the reason that there is no institution
in the District open to colored children over 10 years of age, or colored
children of any age if they are especially difficult to manage, except
the Reform School. The Board of Children’s Guardians, when it was
created, was a tremeundous relief to the courts of the District, and they
began to commit colored children. to the board very freely. The board’
immediately found itself in very deep water with them. It had no ade-
quate outlet for them. They were entirely unfit for immediate transfer
to family homes. They had never known any home life. Many of them
had known neither father nor mother. They were fresh from conditions
80 horrible that they must be seen before they can be believed to exist;
and to place those children immediately in family homes was simply to
- impose upon people entitled to better treatment. But that was the
only thing that could be done, and it was done, and the result in many
instances has been the only result that could be expected from such
conditions—that is, failure.

Then, added to that has been the increasing difficulty of the super-
vision of the placed-out children. While the board had $5,000 for
administrative expenses for theinitial year, and it was sufficient, it had
only 84,000 for the second year, which year was entered with 90 chil-
dren in free homes, and while the £4,000 was not sufticient it was made to
serve. The next year the difficulty increased very much, because while
the work had greatly increased the appropriation remained the same.
The children began toleave their homes and to drift about the country.
They became iusubordinate and were returned to the board or they
disappeared. It must be obvious to any person who follows the details
of the matter at all what an embarrassing position the board were
placed in when a colored child 10 years of age was committed to their
care. Wae could sit down in the oftice and study what we would do with
him. No institution was open to him; no provision made tor him. If
we put him in a new suit of clothes he would look at us with a quizzical
grin, and if given an opportunity he would decamp before the trick
which he supposed was to follow, for a pure act of philanthropy or
charity was beyond his counception. He could not conceive of such a
thing. The only idea he had was that you wanted to get something
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out of him for nothing, He never entertained the idea that anybody
would desire to help him, to lift him up.

Representative PITNEY. And a charitable act made him suspicious?

Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir; and he got away as quickly as he could.

Last year, coming back to the year from now, the board objected to
the reception of colored children from the courts—whenever we could
do so reasonably or decently. We have stated the situation to Judge
Miller and Judge Kimball in the police, court. We have been sum-
moned over there time and time again. The court would say ¢ What
can you do with this boy or girl?” We have been compelled to say,
“There is no institution in the District open to him or her, and the
court will take into consideration that fact in deciding whether or not
he or she is to be committed to the guardianship of the board.” Under
those circumstances the matter has gone back partly to where it was
before the board was created. These little tellows and girls go to the
Reform School or to jail or to the workhouse. That is the reason why
the proportion of white to colored children now is very much greater
than it was during the first few years.

Representative PITNEY. The arms of charity are open wider to white
than to black children.

Mr. LEwis. Very much wider.
Senator McMILLAN, Opn the schedule next come the ofticers of the

Humane Society. Is there anyone present representing that society.

THE HUMANE SOCIETY.

Mr. PRATT. T represent the society as president. I am here to
answer any questions. Mr. Wilson, the officer of the society appointed
by the District Commissioners, who attends to the work, and whom we
have asked to appear here to-day, is present. Perhaps 1 may be per-
mitted to read a short synopsis of the law under which we act. Shall
Iread it?

Senator McMILLAN. Yes. . .

Mr. PrAarr. The law for the protection of children (act of February
13, 1885) provides that any person who shall torture, cruelly beat, abuse,
or willfully maltreat any child under the age of 18; or any person having
the custody or possession of a child under the age of 14, who shall
expose or aid and abet in exposing in any highway, street, field, house,
or other place, with intent to abandon it; or any person having in his
custody or control a child under the age of 14, who shall employ or
exhibit it, or in any way dispose of it with a view of its being employed
as an acrobat, gymnast, contortionist, circus rider, or rope walker, or
in any exhibition of like dangerous character, or as a beggar, mendi-
cant, street singer, or street musician, shall be liable, upon conviction,
to a fine of not more than $250 or imprisonment not exceeding two
years, or both. _

1t also provides for bringing before the police court any child sub-
jected to cruel treatment, willful abuse, or neglect, or any child under
16 found in a house of ill-fame, and for its commitment to an orphan
asylum or other public charitable institution, with the consent of the
authorities of such institution.

I will say, that until the Board of Children’s Guardians was organ-
ized this was the only society which had authority under the law to
take charge of children and protect them.

Representative PITNEY. When was your society organized !
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Mr. PRATT. In February, 1885, ufider an act of Congress.

Representative PITNEY. Did it commence the child-caring work
immediately after its incorporation?

Mr. PRATT. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. How many children has it cared for annu-
ally during the past twelve years?

Mr. PRATT. Last year 268 was the number that our agent reported.
Of course a great many cases were disposed of by amicablf'e adjustment.
so?epr(;sentative PI1TNEY. What is the system of work of the Humane

iet, .

Mr. %’RATT. Officer Wilson will explain it. He can do it better than
Ican. We receive nothing from the Government. We are supported
entirely by donations, by memberships, and by the fines collected in
the police court; that is, in the case of avimals. Mr. Wilson is the
officer who attends to this work,and he will answer any questions.

Senator McMILLAN. You are connected with the police force?

Mr. WiLsoN. Yes, sir. I am a police officer, detailed as agent of the
society. Applications are made to me by the parent or guardian of
dependent children to obtain admission for their children to the difter-
ent homes. I investigate the cases and make application to the home

for admission.
Representative PITNEY. How long have you been engaged in that

work !

Mr. WiLsoN. I was detailed in 1890. My predecessor, Ofticer O’Neil,
was detailed soon after the passage of the law,in 1885, I think he was
detailed in 1886. .

Representative PITNEY. Can you give us a statement ot just what
relation the work of your society bears to the other charitable work,
and especially child-caring work in the District of Columbia?

Mr. WiLsoN. The class of children with whom we have to deal are
usually those of parents who have formerly been in better circum-
stances and have become reduced, possibly through getting dismissed
or not being able to find employment, or something of that sort; and
very often the father has deserted the children, or the father is dead.
Some of them are complete orphans.

Representative PITNEY. What authority do you have over a child
when you get it? Does the law confer authority ?

Mr. WILSON. No, sir.

Representative PITNEY. What do you do with a child?

Mr., WILSON. We merely act as an agent for getting it admission into
8 home.

Representative PITNEY. What home?

Mr. WILSON. Any home.

Representative PITNEY. Into an institution?

Mr. WiLSON. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Do you place children out in private homes?

Mr. WiLsON. No, sir.

Representative PITNEY. Not at all?

Mr. WILsON. In some cases we do, but it is seldom.

Representativée PITNEY. You began your work in 1890. Give us the
pumber of children whom you have cared for each year.

Mr. WiLsoN. On an average 1 have placed about 150 in homes.
From that time up to the present I have averaged about 150,

Representative PITNEY. In what homes have you placed them?

Mr. WiLsON. In all the charitable institutions—the Washington
City Orphan Asylum, the Industrial School, St. John’s Orphanage, the
German Orphan Asylum, St. Vincent’s, St. Joseph’s, and St. Ann’s.
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Representative PITNEY. Have you a table showing the number of
children taken charge of each year by your society and the institutions
in which they have been put?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. I wish you would furnish that to us in such
form that it can be printed in the report of the hearing. I should like
to see it if you have it in your annual report here.

Mr. WiLsON. Every year from the date we took charge? This |indi-
cating] is the first year. They are all marked there [exhibiting book].

M. PrarT. 1 wish to state that Officer Wilson, at the monthly meet-
ings of the executive committee, makes a report on printed blanks
which we furnish him of every child he has visited and that he has put
into any home.

Mr. WiLsoN. Every case is investigated.

Mr. PRATT. Every case is investigated.

Representative PITNEY. What I should like to have Mr. Wilson do
is to reduce the several tables into one.

Mr. WiLsoN. Consolidate them?

Representative PITNEY. Yes; into one table. You can first put
them separately, year after year, and then put in a summary, showing
how many children in the aggregate have been taken up by your society,
and what disposition has been made of them. And now, while you are
here, I should like to hear from you a statement as to how you are
guided in your action as to the institution in which you put a child, ete.
How do you know where to put it; what rules do you follow?

Mr. WiILsON. Most of the applicants prefer some particaular home.

Representative PITNEY., Most of the applicants prefer it?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; the parents or the guardians prefer some par-
ticular home. A great many of them prefer the Industrial School, a
good many the Washington City Orphan Asylum, and so on.

Representative PITNEY. What do you do with a child who has no
parent or gaardian, and who is not old enough to have any discretion
about the matter.

Mr. WILSON. I choose the home myself., I make application to
some particular home. I have to make application for the admission
of a child at the regular Board meeting.

Representative PITNEY. What are the expenses of your work?

Mr. WiLsON. There is no expense attached to it. I am paid by the
Metropolitan police department $90 a month.

Representative P1rNEY. 1 understand; but I inquire as to the
expenses of caring for the children. Does that put you under mno

expense?
Mr. WiILSON. There is no expense. We put them in homes and char-

itable institutions.

Senator MCMILLAN. The children come to you through the courts?

Mr., WiLsoN. No, sir. -

Senator McMILLAN. Through the police?

Mr. WILsON. No, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. How do they come to you?

Representative PITNEY. He is a police officer detailed to the work of
the Humane Society.

Mr. WiLsoN. The law for the protection of children provides that a
Metropolitan police officer shall be detailed as agent.

Senator MCMILLAN. Yes; I understand. You are asort of inspector
to find out cases of children who need the care of charitable institutions?

Mr. WiLsoON. Yes, sir.

Senator McMILLAN, You place them in charitable institutions?
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Mr. WILsON. Yes, sir. A great many applications come to me
through the police department from the ofticers on the beats where the
children live.

Representative PITNEY. What regulations are you guided by in
_eliminating those children who ought not to be made the subject of
public charge?

Mr. WiILsoON. I carefully investigate the cases before I make appli-
cation for their admission. Of course the children have to be destitute.
Probably they have been deserted by their father, or he is a drunken
or worthless man and does not contribute anything to their support.

Representative PITNEY. I wish you would give any suggestions you
may have in your mind upon the possibility or advisability of consoli-
dating your work with that of the Board of Children’s Guardians.
Why is it necessary to have these two systems of work going on in the
same territory? )

Mr. WiLsoN. There are here a great many cases of children who are
in destitute circumstances in which the parent or guardian or relative,
whoever has charge, would not think of having them committed to the
Board of Children’s Guardians at all. They would not think of relin-
quishing the children. They think that at some future time they can
resume charge of them.

Representative PITNEY. They are not willing to surrender their
parental or other control

Mr. WILsON. No, sir.
Representative PITNEY. So far as applications come to you from

parents, they come to you in preference to the Board of Children’s
Guardians, because of that feeling on the part of the parents?

Mr. WiLsON. Yes, sir.

Representative PITNEY. What other reason is there, if any, why the
work your society is doing might not be done by some such organiza-
tion as the Board of Children’s Guardians?

Mr. WiLsoN. I know of no other reason, but I think that is a suffi-
cient reason.

Representative NORTHWAY. Could the Board of Children’s Guardians
be enlarged to cover your work?

Representative PITNEY. Enlarged as to its powers?

Mr. WiLsoN. I do.not think so. I do not think the law governing
the Board of Children’s Guardians would enable them to do that, at
least as to this class of children with whom I have dealings. The fact
i8 the parents would not have them taken into court and committed to

the Board of Children’s Guardians.
Representative NORTHWAY. Where can you draw the boundary line

between the two?

Mr. WILSON. A great many of the parents have seen better days,
and are in circumstances, and probably within a year or two they can
take charge of their children again.

Senator MCMILLAN. Have you a statement showing exactly what
has been done with these children every year? :

Mr. WiLsoN. I have not. ’

Senator MCMILLAN. Do you not make a report monthly and annually
to the Humane Society? 1Is not that in writing? Is it not printed?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; showing how many have been placed in the
different institutions.

Senator MCMILLAN., That is what I mean. You have such a

statement?
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Mr. WiLsON. I think it is all here. I can have these reports consol-
idated if you wish,

Senator MCMILLAN. I wish you would make a brief statement show-
ing how many children you have cared for—take last year, for instance—
and where they have been placed. :

Mr. WiLsoN. I made a report last year, I think, to the subcommittee
on charities of the Senate District Committee.

Representative PITNEY. In the first place, what authority of law do
you have for taking hold of these children?

Mr. WILSON. We have not any. ‘We merely consider it an act of
humanity to attend to that sort of work.

Representative PITNEY. Do you do it in all cases with the consent of
the parent or the guardian of the child?

Mr. WiILsON. In all cases.

Representative PITNEY. You simply have their authority$

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir.

Representative PrrNeY. What authority do you have for committing
the child to an institution or to any other control?

Mr. WiLsoN. We have not any authority, We merely place them
there. :

Representative PITNEY. For how long?

Mr. WiLsoN. Until the parents can take care of them again. .

Representative PITNEY. Do you not have any written agreement
with the institution? » N

Mr. WiLsoN. The institution usually has an agreement that the par-
ent or guardian signs, but when the parent or guardian can prove
satisfactorily to the board that they are so situated that they can take
proper care of the child, they usually get him or her.

Representative PITNEY. To what board ¢

Mr. WiLsoN. To the board of managers or the board of trustees of
the institution.

Representative PITNEY. But at any rate, when you put a child into
one of these institutions it is your understanding, whether it is the
legal effect or not, that it is to stay there until the institution is willing
to surrender it?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, 8ir.

Representative PITNEY. Suppose the institution is not willing to do
that, how long does the child remain?

Mr. WILSON. They are usnally willing. I know of very few cases
where they find out that the parent or gnardian can take care of the
children that they have refused to return them. Probably there are
some few cases, but just now I do not remember any that have come
within my knowledge.

Senator McMILLAN. Do the institutions take care of the children
without any charge?

Mr. WILsON. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. And keep them without any charge or expense?

Mr. WILSON. Yes. Of course the greater number of the homes
receive regular appropriations from the Government.

Senator MCMILLAN. They take them on that account, of course?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. Is the Humane Society a creature of -
law, or an association of benevolent people to do good?

Mr. WiILsoN. It was created by law.

Representative NORTHWAY, Its duties are defined by law?
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Mr. PrATT. It was created under an act of Congress,

Senator McMILLAN. Do you look after animals, too?

Mr. WILSON. No, sir; 1 am detailed tor children.

Senator McMILLAN. There is an ofticer who looks after that branch
of the work?

Mr. WiLsoN, Yes,sir. He is not a police ofticer, but a special officer.

Representative PITNEY, The president of your association read an
extract from the law. I did not hear it distinctly. I wish to know
what are the legal limits of the work of the society?

Mr. PRATT. Here is the act.

Representative PIrNEY. What section is it?

Mr. WILSON, Section 3.

Representative PITNEY. Section 3 of the original act?

Mr. PRATT. In reference to children,

Representative PITNEY. I wish to know what section of law it is
that gives you authority over children. Is it this synopsis of the law
relating to cruelty to children?

Mr PRATT. Yes, sir. We can give you the full law. -

Representative PITNEY. The act that gives to the Humane Society
authority over children is an act for the protection of children in the
District of Columbia, and for other purposes, approved February 13,

1885, as I understand.

Mr. PRATT. Yes, sir.
Representative PITNEY. And that act provides, according to the

synopsis which you have furnished us, that ¢the law for the protection
of children (act of February 13, 1885) provides that any person who
shall torture, cruelly beat, abuse, or willfully maltreat any child under
the age of 18, or any person having the custody and passession of a
child under the age of 14, who shall expose or aid and abet in expos-
ing in any highway, street, field, house, or other place, with intent to
abandon it; or any person having in his custody or control a child
under the age of 14, who shall employ or exhibit it, or in any way dis-
pose of it with a view of its being employed as an acrobat, gymnast,
contortionist, circus rider, or ropewalker, or in any exhibition of like
dangerous character, or as a beggar, mendicant, street singer, or street
musician, shall be liable, upon conviction, to a tine of not more than
$250 or imprisonment not exceeding two years, or both. It also pro-
vides for bringing before the police court any child subjected to cruel
treatment, willful abuse, or neglect, or any child under 16 found in a
house of ill-fame, and for its commitment to an orphan asylum or other
public charitable institution, with the consent of the authorities of
such institution.”

This law gives the Humane Society two different branches of work;
first, the prevention of cruelty to children; second, the commitment
under adjudication of the police court, to an orphan asylum or other
public charitable institution.

I do not understand what authority of law you have for this general
sort of work which you seem to be carrying on, of picking up children
who are proper subjects for commitment to charitable institutions and
putting them there.

Mr. WiLsoN. I do not know that there is any law for it, but we have
always thought it was a good work to be engaged in.

Representative NORTHWAY. You have enlarged the statute.

Representative PITNEY. Here there seems to be a police officer
‘detailed for a special work, possibly with the best of motives, but it is

a loose way of doing business.
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Senator McMILLAN. If this man can take charge of 150 children,
whose parents can not, and put them into institutions, it seems to me
that for one man he is doing good work.

Representative PITNEY. Whether he.is doing it lawfully or not?

Senator McMILLAN, Yes,

Mr. WiLsON. We were the only such agency until the Board of
Children’s Guardians act was passed.

Representative PITNEY. The objection on the part of parents and
others to the operation of the law constituting the Board of Children’s
Guardians is that it puts an indignity upon the parents and puts the -
child permanently beyond their control; but the law that gives the
Humane Society jurisdiction of those children has practically the same
provision. They must be committed through the police court.

Senator McMILLAN. It is like the subject of charity. No doubt the
Assaciated Charities people in their investigations find lots of persons
who have been well off in their day and generation, and have lost their
money. We will say that a inan has lost his situation. He can not get
anything to do. The family are in great distress. They will not go to
the poor masters; they will not go to an institution ; but quietly they will
receive help. Now, so it is with the people who have children, just as
Mr. Wilson has stated. They are proud; they do not want to have it
known through the courts that they are in that condition, but they are
willing that the child shall be cared for temporarily, I have known
many cases of that kind, where children were cared for for six months
or a year, and then the parents took them back.

Répresentative PITNEY. It may be right in some cases, and wrong in
others; but the question is as to the authority of law to employ a police
ofticer at public expense to do that work. They cite this law, and it
does not cover it.

Senator MCMILLAN. It covers part of it.

Mr. WiLsoN. I have asked several of the judges of the police court
and they say they have no power to commit to charitable institutions.
There is no law for it. .

Representative NORTHWAY. You have been putting them in such
institutions.

Mr. WiLsoN. I have been placing them there.

Representative NORTHWAY. They are still there.

Mr. WILSON. A good many of them are.

Representative NORTHWAY. Have they taken any of them out?

Mr. WILsSON. Some of them remain only a few months until they
are taken out. .

Representative NORTHWAY. Who takes them out?

Mr. WiLsoN. The pareuts usually, or the guardians. The parent
will get employment.

Representative NORTHWAY. If a child is taken from its parent
becqu:e of cruelty, is the parent permitted to go and get the child
again

Mr. WILSON. No; the children to whom I refer are placed in the
institutions because of destitution.

Representative PITNEY. Do you place children in institutions outside
of the District of Columbia? _

Mr. WiLsoN. I have taken a few children to Baltimore.

Representative PITNEY. How many?

Mr. WILsON. I have taken children to St. Mary’s Industrial Institute
in Baltimore. I can not say how many.

Representative NORTHWAY. Under what law ¢

~
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Representative PITNEY. Does the report show how many have been

80 placed?
r. WILSON. Yes, sir; but I dono know the year. Ihave not taken

any for the last year or two years.

Senator MCMILLAN. The report which I ask you to make will show
exactly what has been done with those children.

Representative P1ITNEY. That is what I ask for also.

Mr. WiLsoN. Suppose I furnish the monthly reports from the date
of my detail up to the present time; would not that do just as well as
the consolidated reportt

Senator McMiLLAN. That will do.

Representative PITNEY. You had better put in the summary.

Mr. WiLsoN. Our annual reports will show that.

Representative PITNEY. I suppose we can make the caleunlation.

“Mr. PRATT. We can prepare such a table as you wish.

Representative PITNEY. If you please. [To Mr. Wilson.] Youmake
reports to the Humane Society *

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; monthly and annually.

Representative PITNEY. Who constitute the Humane Society?

Mr. WILSON. Mr. Pratt is and has been president for quite a num-
ber of years. I do not know all the members. There are quite a
number of them.

Mr. PraTT. 1 will say that the late Judgze MacArthur was instru-
mental in having this act passed. There was, at the time, nolaw in the
District to protect children, and this was the first society that was
empowered to act for children, and Mr. Wilson acted until the Hbard
of Children’s Guardians was ‘lppmnted

Mr. WiLsoN. All cases of cruelty and neglect under the law.

Representative PITNEY. But these cases you turn over to the Board
of Children’s Guardians?

Mr. WILsON. Yes; since that Board has been established. Itenables
us to reach children whom we could not reach before. For instance,
children kept in vicious or immoral association or surroundings, or
children known by their language or life to be vicious.

Representative NORTHWAY. Do you take children and dispose of
them without consulting the ofticers of the Humane Society?

Mr. WiLsox. The parents come and make application to me.

Representative NORTHWAY. And you dispose of the children with-
out consulting the society at all¥

Mr. WiLsoN. Yes, sir. It would take too long to call a meeting of
the Board in each case.

Mr. PrATT. I will state that we have never had a complaint from any-
one as to Mr. Wilson’s acts. He certainly helps a great many poor
people. :

Mr. WiLsoN. I try to use considerable judgment in those cases.

Mr. PraTr, We have every confidence in Mr. Wilson’s judgment and
ability to place the children where it is best.

Senator MCMILLAN. You have a board?

Mr. PrATT. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. Do you meet once a month?

Mr. PRATT. Yes, sir. The first Monday in every month Mr, Wilson
makes a detailed report of each child, where he has placed it, what is
the child’s name, etc. You have the blank there.

Senator MCMILLAN. Is this board to which you refer composed
wholly of gentlemen, or is it a mixed body?

Mr. PrRATT. There are a great many ladies on it.
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Senator McMiILLAN. You raise your money by subscription?

Mr. PRATT. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. And by memberships?

Mr. PRATT. Yes, sir. We get no assistance whatever from the Gov-
ernment. Wereceive bequests. We received a little bequest of 85,000
from a clerk in the Treasury Department, who was a bachelor. He had
no family, and had been a member of our board for years. We also
received a bequest ot land valued at $3,000. :

Senator }ICMILLAN. I think that is all, Mr. Wilson.

STATEMENT oF MR. WILSON.

WasHINGTON HUMANE SuCIETY, CRUELTY TO CHILDREN,
April 10, 1897.

Senator McMILLAN, . .
Chairman Committee on Chaurities, District of Columbia.
Sir: I respectfully submit the following report of the number and disposition of

cases investigated for the year ending December 31, 1896:
S. WLSON, .dgent.
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of policecourt ..o Feeoeee 50 8'...... 13 13
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BOARD OF CHILDREN’S GUARDIANS AND THE HUMANE SOCIETY.

Mr. LEwis. I think a question was asked of Mr. Mann in regard to
the number of applications. Information was asked in regard to the
number of applications on behalf of children to be taken in charge by
the Board of Children’s Guardians. Mr. Mann says such a statement
will be turnished. It is exhibited in full on page 21 of the annual
report. '

Representative PITNEY. The last annual report?

Mr. LEwis. Yes, sir. The number of applications was 371, of which
71 received approval upon tentative examination. The rest were all
refused,

Representative PITNEY. There is one other question: Look at the
schedule of the hearings: _

2. What coordination of existing institutions and agencies is possible and desira-
ble (a) for taking up children, (b) for training children, (¢) for placing out and
visiting children. .

Are you prepared to answer the question in regard to the relation
between the Humane Society and the Board of Children’s Guardians?

Mr, LEwis. Yes, sir; I think so.

‘“(a) For taking up children.” In my judgment there should exist in
every well-regulated city one official agency to which should be referred
all reports and complaints of the condition of children alleged to be in
any such situation as to make them proper subjects for public protec-
tion and support. This agency should make a tentative investigation of
the case, 80 as to ascertain whether it probably falls within the intent
of the law governing the public support of children. If in the judg-
ment of the agent it is properly such a case or might be such a case, it
should be his duty to present the case before the court designated for
that purpose for an authoritative examination. The court should sum-
mon before it the child and parents, if either are living, and should make
a thorough investigation, under oath, of the facts relating to the neces-
8ity of the child, and the judgment should rest with the court as to
whether the circumstances were such as made it absolutely necessary
for the protection and safety of the child that it should be placed under
public support and public guardianship. In my judgment the necessity
for public support carries with it the right of public guardianship.

Senator MCMILLAN. Is not that done now?

Mr. LEwis. Possibly in cases brought before the court, but the diffi-
culty is that more than half are not brought before the court.

Senator MCMILLAN. Would you have an agency outside of the Board
of Children’s Guardians to do that business?

Representative PITNEY. He says he would have one agency, but that
all cases should be brought betfore the court. How would you deal
with the prejudice, if it may be called a prejudice, on the part of par-
ents against going into court. The feeling has been referred to by
Mr. Wilson, of the Humane Society.

Mr. LEwis. | have never known a case where children were allowed to
suffer by reason of that feeling. People come to the office of the Board
of Children’s Guardians continually to inquire about the process for the
commitment of children, and they are told what is necessary in order
that the children may be placed in institutions. When theyare informed
that the road into the institutions through the Board of Children’s
Guardians is by a court, it is impossible to make any explanation to them
which is satisfactory. They object to that absolutely. They say ¢ I
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would work my fingers to the bone before I would allow my children to
go into court.” We reply, ¢ That is precisely what you should do. We
can not do anything for you in any other way.,” In my judgment there
ought to be no other way. -

The schemes resorted to by people who wish to push off their children

on the public during the years of their helplessness are amazing, and I
do not believe it is possible to ascertain definitely and reliably the facts
upon which a judgment of that kind should be based, except under the
conditions of a judicial inquiry. At least that is the only safe way to
do it.
Representative PITNEY. Would it obviate that prejudice to any
extent if inutead of having a police court constituted as a tribunal youn
had a tribunsl established which would be free from the prejudice that
exists against police courts? _

Mr. LEwis, That shovld be done.

Representative NORTHWAY. A court not connected with criminals?

Mr. LEwrs. That should be done. In New York there is a provision
of law by which it is obligatory upon courts to hear all cases involving
the welfare of children brought in by the Gerry Society. It is unlawful
to place any child under 16 years of age in any police station or van, to
be conveyed to court or from court, in which criminals are conveyed.
That should be done here.

Representative PITNEY. I wixh you would refer us to those laws.

Mr. LEwis, It has been a matter of paiuful regret that we have had
to go into police court with these cases. There are a spirit and air
about the police courts to which children ought not to be subjected.

Representative PITNEY. I wish you would refer us at your con-
venience to the laws in other States, if you know of any, creating
special tribunals for this purpose.

Mr. WILSON. 1 do not see why the cases of children put into insti-
tutions temporarily on account of destitution should not come as prop-
erly to us as other cases of destitution. Indeed, a good many do. Our
agents are all the time placing them temporarily in homes. In my
Judgment they should be put in private homes, and not be supported
by taxation.

Representative PITNEY. You mean the Associated Charities when
you say ‘“ust”

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; and our agents are doing that every day,
especially during sickness.

Representative PITNEY. You are speaking of providing for children
who would not become permanent public dependents ?

Mr. WILSON. Yes, sir; as to whom there would be no necessity for
public guardianship, but simply temporary relief. '

Representative PITNEY. A child whose parents are temporarily unable
to provide for it?

Mr. WILSON. Yes. sir. That is a common form of charitable relief,

Representative PITNEY. You know the problems which have been
before us in regard to child-caring work, as they have been developed
by the hearing. Suppose you give us in writing your views upon the
topics covered by the fifth hearing, and especially topic No. 2.

Senator McMILLAN. That seems to cover it.

b Representative PITNEY. Topics Nos. 1, 2, and 3, under the fifth
earing.

Mr. WiLsoN. I will include that in the general statement I was
requested to hand in.

Mr. MANN. I desire to supplement my remarks,
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The several institutions should state, each for itself, what are their
facilities to care for dependent children.

The Board of Children’s Guardians is provided with adequate legal
authority to extend to dependent children every kind of care—physical,
mental, and moral—which they need. Were it provided with the funds
required for the extension of this care in all needed directions, it might
alone care for all the dependent children of the District.

Existing District institutions do not provide all the facilities needed
for the care of dependent children, so that the extension of adequate
care to these children requires now recourse to institutions beyound the
limits of the District, and adequate provision for all the needs of these
children would demand an unreasonably large expenditure, which
might be avoided were changes which seem practicable introduced
into some of the existing District institutions.

So far as the exercise of public authority is concerned, and the
assumption of public duties toward the children is involved, it appears
desirable that there should be but one tribunal to determine the ques-
tion of what children should be taken up under public care, and that
the judicial tribunal. All interested parties, whether private or official,
should have the right to bring cases before this tribunal,

The several institutions existing or to be estiblished for the training
of children should be so specialized that each shall have its special
work to do, and shall have that work assigned to it. If special work
be found needed for which no provision has been made, the appropriate
institution for doing this work should be established, or some existing
institution should be induced to so modify its scope as to cover this
need. Duplication of agencies should be avoided.

Whether the duty or the right of placing out children be vested in
one only or in several institutions or agencies, the corresponding duty
of adequate visitation of the children placed out should be inevitably
imposed. If such placing out and visitation are to b» at public expense,
it should be, for the sake of economy and efficiency, performed py a
single ageuncy. If to be exercised by several agencies, it should be
either under common control or common supervision.

What changes are necessary in existing District institutions to adapt
them to the care of all dependent children, properly so called, are alluded
to above. It would appear inappropriate for any one institution to rec-
ommend special changes in any other. The facilities offered by existing
" institutions being known, and the ueeds not yet provided for being set
forth,inducements to change in existing institutions for the supply of the
needed facilities can be made in the form of provisos to appropriation
bills, or in the form of direct legislation for the government of ofticial
agencies.

The principal need at present appears to be for an institution, not a
reformatory, suitable for the detention and training of insubordinate
children awaiting transfer to homes or awaiting final disposition in
reformatories or elsewhere. Neither of the District institutions is will-
ing or able to take charge of such children, who either have to be sent
to jail or set at large when taken into custody. The jail is no proper
place for them.

It seems too obvious torequire comment that all children,“dependent”
or other, should require such training as to fit them to become useful to
themselves and to the community. This, in its broadest sense, is ‘“indus-
trial training.”

Experience in all countries and ages has shown that it is possible to
secure homes for children generally, but this can not be done without
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effort, nor well done without system. As the securing of such homes
relieves the public purse from all the burden of maintaining the chil-
dren, it is & matter of economy in money that adequate efforts be made
possible and required to be put forth to this end.

The experience of the Board of Children’s Guardians during the

resent year, when the lack of means to secure homes for the children,
its wards, has resulted in the considerable increase of the number of
its wards on expense for maintenauce, proves how short-sighted is the
economy which curtails the expense for administration of the work of
the board.

Mr. PRATT. I wish to state that the Board of Children’s Guardians
sud our society work in no conflict whatever. There is perfect har-
wony between them.

At 4 o’clock and 20 minutes p. m. the committee adjourned.

8. Doc. 185—8






SIXTH HEARING.

DEPENDENT CHILDREN; FOUNDLINGS,

ApPRIL 19, 1897—2 o'clock p. m.

Present: Hon. James McMillan, chairman; Hon. Charles J. Faulk-
ner, Hon, S. A. Northway.

SIXTH HEARING.

Subject: Dependent children; foundlings.

To be heard: Ofticers of the Children’s Hospital; officers of the
Washington Hospital for Foundlings; officers of St. Ann’s Infant Asy-
lum; officers of the Board of Children’s Guardians. '

TOPICS.

1. The work of the foundling institutions in the District of Columbia.

2. Extent to which public¢ aid may properly be granted.

3. Mortality.

4. Placing out and adoption of children.

5. Vigitation of children.

6. Private foundling asylums.

Senator MCMILLAN. Gentlemen, the committee is now prepared to
hear the officers of the Children’s Hospital. Who represents that
hospital ? )

THE CHILDRERN'S HOSPITAL,

Mr. M.W. GALT. Mr. Chairman, werepresent the Children’s Hospital.
Dr. Lovejoy is chairman of the executive committee, and, with your
permission, he will submit our views,

Scnator MCMILLAN. What is your relation to the Children’s Hospital,
Dr. Lovejoy.

Dr. J. W. H. LoveEyoY, I am one of the directors and chairman of
the executive committee,

In the programme published in the Evening Star we find that we are
expected to be heard to-day upon the subject ot ** Dependent children;
foundlings.” If our understanding of this subject is correct, it is one
in which we have no special interest in this connection, and we are not
prepared to discuss it. It seems from this that the Children’s Hospital
is regarded as an asylum. It is not in any respect an asylum, but a
hospital for the treatment of sick children under 12 years of age. When
they cease to be sick they can no longer remainin the institation under

116
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the provisions of the charter; consequently, when a patient is admitted
a parent or guardian or friend must bo responsible for its removal
when cured or when it is decided that no farther benefit can be derived
from its medical treatment.

On application by parents or guardians any child of the lawful age
and likely to be benefited by medical treatment is received, cases of
infectious diseases alone being by special law excepted.

It has been proposcd that the Government should take possession of
all the hospitals and that certain officials of the Government, as the
health officer and his assistants, or a board appointed for the purpose,
should have the power of directing what patients shall be admitted into
them. Such an arrangement we most emphatically protest against as
decidedly injudicious and impracticable. In our hospital, as in all of
the others, as far as we are acquainted with them, there are the members
of the attending medical stafls, all physicians of repute and ability, who
are, by their continued daily application and experience in their private
practice, a8 well as hospital duties, much better fitted to judge as to the
proper cases to be admitted into the hospital than any health officer
constantly occaupied with his official duties can be. Besides this, these
staffs are composed not only of general practitioners, but of the vari-
ous specialists in medicine. We think that by the proposed change
the hospitals would be more likely to be filled with improper cases than
by the present method.

‘When application is made for admission of a child the resident phy-
sician receives it, subject to the approval of the attending physician,
under whose care it is to be placed on his arrival at the hospital.

As for the Children’s Hospital, it is a corporation, owning a large
square of ground, upon which its buildings are erected. This property
i8 estimated to be worth $185,000, exclusive of furniture, medical and
surgical appliances, etc. In addition to this there is invested property
of the value of about $75,000, a legacy from the late Dr. James C. Hall,
who, from its organization until his death, was a director of the hos-
pital. The income of this legacy and the amounts raised every year by
the exertion of the board of lady visitors, and by contributions, with the
$10,000 usually appropriated by the Government, afford the sole means
of supporting the institation, much of which is precarious and of late
has been insufficient. Surely the Government would hardly desire to
control this large property and delegate to others than the incorporators
the management of it, merely upon the plea that it had been for a few
years donating $10,000 toward its support. It can not be supposed
that a board of directors and a board of lady visitors could be found
to work so assiduously and enthusiastically without salaries for the
Government, and under control, as when free and untrammeled. Peo-
ple who work for the Government expect, very properly, to be paid.

The resident physician and the pharmaceutist, who each receive
only $40 a month, and the superintendent, who receives $1,000 a year,
and who devote their entire time to their ixospital duties, are the only
employees receiving salaries, except the nurses, engineer, and servants.,

The services of directors and physicians are entirely gratuitous.

This hospital has been always purely free. None but patients whose
friends are unable to pay have been admitted. In fact, no fees have
ever been established with a view of receiving paying patients. No
distinction is made as to color in the reception or treatment or accom-
modation of patients, and the reports have always shown a large pre-
ponderance of colored over whites. The hospital is in no sense under

sectarian control,
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With regard to the important subject of maintenance of patients in
the hospital, the following extract from the annual report of the presi-
dent of the board of directors for the year 1891 may be of interest:

It is the common impression that the expense for maintaining a hospital for adults
is much greater than one for children, when in point of fact, in several important
plarticnlau, the reverse is true, and in nearly all the others the cost is substantiully
the same.

From a comparison of our reports with several of the hospitals in other cities, and
among them one for women and infauts, another for general service, and another
largely for men and women, I find that the percentage of expense for food, compared
with the total cost of maintenance, varies but little, being about one-third, whether
for children or for general service. The nursing and care, always a large itemn
of expense, is greatest with children. The reason is obvious. Beyond the actual
narsing, which averaged the same whether child or adult, the helplessness of the
child patient not being relieved upon convalescence, as with the adunlt, makes the
required attention twotold, and such service must be paid tor at the same rate in
each case. DBesides, in free hospitals men and women are required, when able, to
assist in light work, saving quite largely in expenditure for such service. In the
child’s hospital this factor can never be counted. In the laundry department for
sick children provision must be made for from one-third to one-half more labor than

for the same nuamber of adults.

The following statement from the treasurer of our hospital shows the
per-capita expense during the past year:

The cost per capita for 66 inmates in the hospital during the year 1896 was—

Per Per
annum. | diem.
FOr AUDSI Bt ENCO. .ot e cciiitiieecerencserennaneccencesnssessacnccconasasnsscasanaes $82. 67 $0. 226
For professional and domestic 8ervices. ..c.coaveeeeeiuaieiirercrecncenacccaronnns 147.56 . 404
For medicines «coeeeeeeerinieieireieieecnaccocseseccscsecconscssasasoncanncasans 14.96 . 041
FOr Clothing eueeceeeerneeeieieineareecinsnccsccrecersoncacesasccnsacncsacscsnans 23.50 . 064
TOtAl -.crneeuriciccecncnasacacecsconsccsenacssnscsercancnsonacsssscssonassnse 268. 60 . 785

The rate of mortality for the past ten years has been as follows:

1895. 1896.
Number treated........... e 418 481
Daily AVOrago..c.cvniiiiiiiiii it iiii i ictttaccticatiitaceteccactessccnantsons 66. 63 64,67
0 Y 28 30
Percentage of deaths. ... Sendesececescacsceceroancscssastsansasnosescsannsnntesans 6.60 6.96

In 1896, as seen, the dcaths from all sources were 30; of these 18 were from taber-
cular disease, making the percentage of deaths from all sources 6.90, but excluding
tuberculosis, only 2.78, showing a remarkable preponderance of cuses of this dis-
eased condition,

Dr. LovEJoy. When we asked permission to come before this com-
mittee it was with the purpose of discussing and of repudiating certain
things that bave been said before this committee and that have been
published in the papers with regard to our rule, & rule enforced by all
hospitals, as to the reception of contagious diseases. But on receivin
Your programme covering this hearing, indicating what was expecteg
from us, we struck out the portion of our statement upon this subject.
We are, however, ready to answer questions or to make another report
and seund it in to the committee with regard to that matter at any time.
We have regarded this matter as entirely misunderstood by the public
and I think, possibly, by the commit" &, and for that reason that mat-
ter I think ought to be ventilated by vhe committee. As the accusation
in this respect has appeared in the newspapers aud has been repeated
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hefore this committee I think it is hardly more than fair that we should
have an opﬁortunity to repudiate it.

Senator MCMILLAN., Where is this hospital located

Dr. LoveEJoy. On W street, between Twelfth and Thirteenth streets,
and occupies a whole square,

Senator MCMILLAN. You have the whole square?

Dr. LoveEjoy. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. How many children can yon accommodate?

Dr. LovEJoY. A year or two ago, on account of the scarcity of funds,
the board of directors limited the number to 80, but it was afterwards

increased to 92.
Senator MOMILLAN. But you have accommodations for more than

that, have you?

Dr. LoveJoy. We might accommodate a few more at present.

Senator MCMILLAN. You say a report has been circulated that you
do not receive children suffering from contagions diseases?

Dr. LovrioYy. Yes, sir; we do not receive children that are suffering
from those diseases, and on account of one or two children having been
refused—children brought there affected with diphtheria—we have
been, as well as other hospitals, considerably Llamed.

Senator MCMILLAN. You have no isolated wards in the hospital
where you could place these children?

Dr. LovEJoy. We have a ward of that kind, but it is one that is
intended for our use when children who are in the hospital and happen
to be taken with contagious diseases after they are brought there. It
consists of two smnall rooms, accommodating five children—five beds—
and it is the fact that we have this which has probably given the idea
that the Children’s Hospital is the one which should receive these cases
of contagious diseases. The last one that was sent there was sent from
another charitable institution here and was put in our hospital, in the
working room of the dispensary, without any of the authorities knowing
anything aboutit. The child was left there from a police ambulance; and
after some trouble and some hours’ exertion to find some place for it to be
taken—we felt obliged to take it—we gave it for the night a comfortable
place,acomfortablecot inaveryexcellent, dry, pleasantroom, thoroughly
warm and pleasant. We had a trained nurse attend to it during the
entire night, and our superintendent of nurses herself remained with it
almost the entire night. The following morning the isolated ward was
got ready for it and the child was placed in that ward and kept there
until the health department considered it proper to let it out. Now,
sir, we have come in for considerable blame for that particular case. 1
do not see where the blame lies. We did refuse to receive it because it
had come from another charitable institution, which ought to have by
all means—every charitable instivution should have—provision of a few
beds for these cases which happen to be taken with a disease of a con-
tagious nature while in the institution. In speaking of that I might
go a little further and say why we have that rule. It is a rule, I think,
that is universal with bospitals. I have a memorandum here of some
hospitals in different parts of the country in which that rule exists, and
it is a rule in all of them, 8o far as I know.

Senator MCMILLAN. I understand, then, that when these cases of
diphtheria or scarlet fever develop after children have been brought to
the hospital that you take care of them?

Dr. LOoVvEJOY. Yes, sir.
Senator McMILLAN. But if a child should be brought to you suffer-

ing from scarlet fever or diphtheria that you would refuse it admissiont
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Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir, ‘
Senator MCMILLAN. On the ground that you would endanger the

lives of the other children?

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, 8ir; we consider that by no principle of honor
or dictates of conscience can we admit into the hospital, containing, as
it does, 70, 80, or possibly 90 children, an infectious case from the out-
side that might spread the disease. For instance, a child was brought
to the hospital suffering from what they called croup, and at the time
it was almost expiring from suffocation, owing to the filling of the
larynx with membrane. They had it carried into the hospital and the
surgeon was telephoned for. When he arrived a more careful exami-
nation was made and it was found that the child had diphtheria. He
operated upon the patient and saved it. Of course such a case under
our rule, or under no rule, could not be tarned out into the city or into
the streets; we had to keep it. We put it into the isolated-ward, but
in spite of all the precaution we used five other children contracted
the disease and two.died, but this child got well and three of the five
who contracted the disease. :

Seuator MCMILLAN. I think the committee understands that your
rule is the same as in all the hospitals.

Dr. Lovejoy. They understand that it is a just rule, do they not?

Senator MOMILLAN. Yes, sir.  What would be the objection to your
building an isolated hospital for children on your grounds?

Dr. LoveJjoY. There are several reasons why that could not be done;
one of the reasons is that the hospital is too near inhabited houses and
it i8 too near a publicschool. Some years ago a society of young ladies,
called the Daisy Chain, raised a very considerable sum of money which
they proposed to give to our hospital for the purpose of erecting on its
grounds a hospital for the reception of contagious diseases, but the
board of directors decidedly refused to accept it, because they knew
that putting such a hospital on, our grounds would raise a loud com-
plaint among the people around, particularly on account of the large
public school immediately opposite.

Senator MCMILLAN. We understand that. Let me ask you how you
are organized ?

Dr. LovesoY. The body is incorporated by 100 incorporators, and
these incorporators, under the law, elect 20 directors. Those directors
are the governing body of the hospital, and they appoint all the subor-
dinate officers, all the committees, superintendents, and officers,

Senator MOMILLAN. Do you make any reports to the Commissioners
of the District? ‘

Dr. LoveEjoy. There is a report handed in four times a year to the
superintendent of charities.

Senator MOMILLAN. To the superintendent of charities?

Dr: LoveJoY. Yes, sir.

Senator MOMILLAN. Has any one officially any supervision over your
institution?

Dr. LoveJoY. No, sir; not farther than the supervision exercised
by the superintendent of charities,

Representative NORTHWAY. You have said, I believe, that you
decidedly object to the Government taking charge of the hospitals,
In what sense do you make use of the word “government$”

Dr. LoveEyoY. The Government of the United States, or of the Dis-
trict of Columbia. ’

Representative NORTHWAY. Either one?

Dr. Loveroy, Yes, sir.
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Representative NORTHWAY. You have spoken about $10,000 being
appropriated by the United States for the benefit of the Children’s
Hospital. That has been an annual appropriation?

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. Who has had charge of the expenditure

. of that fund?t
Dr. LoveJoY. The board of directors.
Representative NORTHWAY. Do you make any returns or account of

that mouey to the Government?
Dr. LoveJoy. Every bill with regard to that goes to the Auditor of

the Treasury.
Representative NORTHWAY., Has the Government of the United
States anything to say as to the application of the funds it appropri-
ates; that is, as to how it shall be applied or for whose benefit?
Dr. LovEJoy. No, sir; it is applied according to the judgment of

" the board of directors. .
Representative NORTHWAY. Why should the Government give any-

thing? .

Dr. LoveJoy. For the reason that it is not the business of the citi-
zens individually to take care of the sick poor of the District. Now,
there are a great many of the patients who are natives ot the different
States. We have there represented the natives of almost all of the
States, but not in large number, of course. The large majority are
natives of the District of Columbia, and we think that the General
Government, a8 well as private individuals, ladies and gentlemen
engaged in the work of the hospitals, should bear a portion of the
expense of taking care of these children.

Representative NORTHWAY. Is your hospital a charitableinstitution?

Dr. LovEJjoY. Yes, sir; there has never becn any fee charged for the

admission of any patient.
Representative NoRTHWAY, If the Government should give part,

why not pay the whole expense.

Dr. LovEJoY. If the Government chooses to take charge of it, it is
hardly probable that the ladies and gentlemen working for it would be
as enthusiastic in that work as they would otherwise be, I am pretty
sure that every individual employed nunder the Government, no matter
who he is, expects to be paid for his time and services.

Representative NORTHWAY. Now, this $10,000 is taken from the
Treasury of the United States, and how is it disbursed?

Dr. LovEJcy. It is in the care of the Treasurer of the United States.
The bills are gone over regularly every month by the executive commit-
tee of the hospital and sent to the Treasurer, who sends them to the
Auditor of the Treasury.

Representative NORTHWAY. What bills do you allude to?

Dr. LoveEJoY. The bills for the money expended out of the appro-
priation.

Representative NoRTHWAY. Those expenditures are made entirely at
the direction of the board of directors, are they?

Dr. LovEJoy. Yes, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. And the Government has nothing to say
about the matter? '

Dr. LovEJoY. No, sir.

Representative NoORTOWAY. Then it is a mere gratuity on the part
of the Government?

Dr. LoviEJoy. Yes, sir,
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Representative NORTHWAY, The Government does not give the
money to take care of this or that particular child?

Dr. LoveJoY. No, sir; it does not. )

Representative NORTHWAY. And the hospital renders account to.the
Government when it uses up the $10,000 which it receives?

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir. :

Representative NORTEWAY, And then it goes on to its own private

funds?

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir; and pays a great deal more than the Gov-
ernment does; far more.

Representative NORTHWAY. Far more?

Dr. LoveJoy. Yes, sir; far more,

Representative NORTHWAY., But the Government has no contract
with the institution? .

Dr. LoveJoy. No, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. It is simply a gratuitous appropriation
which the Government makes? . ‘

Dr. LOVEJOY. Yes, sir.
Senator MCMILLAN. Your report would show that the Government

pays toward the support of your hospital 10,000 and that you get
from private sources about $4.000,

Dr. LoveJoy. The expenses of the hospital are over $20,000. Those
sums represent only the actual expenses, but you must consider the
value of the property and——

Senator MCMILLAN. It is owned by this corporation, is it not?

Dr. LovEJuy, Yes, sir.

Senator MOMILLAN. Well, is there any debt on it?

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir; about 20,000,

Senator MCMILLAN. There is a mortgage, thent

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir; for money borrowed to make an addition to

the hospital. .
Senator MCMILLAN. What do you do with these children after they

are well? .

Dr. LovEJoY. Some are returned to their families. We have very
little trouble in getting rid of them. Some of the charitable institu-
tions take them after they are cured. We have always some one to be
respousible for taking the child when it is well. The Children’s Hospi-
tal, you understand, is not an asylum at all; it is only for the care of
gick children.

Senator MCMILLAN. You take care of them when they are sick, but
get rid of them when they get well? "

Dr. LovEJoy. Yes, sir.

~ Senator MCMILLAN.- Do you keep any charge of them after they are
given out?

Dr. LovEJjoY. No, sir.
Senator McMILLAN. What institutions take them off of your hands?

Dr. Lovejoy. Some of the orphan asylums. The great mass of these
children have homes of their own.

Senator MCMILLAN. But the parents are not able to take care of them
properly when the children become sick and they are seut to your
hospital ?

Dr. LovEJjoy. Yes, sir.

Representative NoRTAWAY. Do you know of any other institution in
the city where the same work is being performed as at yours?

Dr. LovEjoY. No, sir; 1 do not kuow of any other.
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Representative NORTHWAY. There is no duplication of this work
that you are performing that you know of? )

Dr. LoveJoY. No, sir; there is not.

Mr. GALT. Children from other institutions in the city are sent to
the Children’s Hospital when they are sick.

Dr. LoveJoY. We have children sent there from the orphan asylums.

" Senator MOMILLAN. I understood you to say that your hospital does
nl?t accept children as patients whose parents are able to take care of
them.

Dr. LovEJoY. It does not, sir. We have never accepted any when
we knew the parents were able to take care of them.

Senator MCMILLAN, Why should you not make them pay if they
are able to do so!?

Dr. Lovejoy. We have that right under the charter, but we have
never done so. The hospital is generally full without taf:ing auy pay-
ing patients. We think we are performing a better charity in taking
those not able to pay than we would be in taking those who are able
to do so.

Representative NORTHWAY. The city affords you no public support?

Dr. Lovejoy. There is nothing further thaun the $10,000 appropria-
tion.

Representative NORTHWAY. You mean the appropriation by the
Government?

Dr, LovEJOY. Yes, sir.

Mr. GALT. The city pays half of that.

Dr. LoveJoY. A good deal of money is raised by the board of lady
visitors as proceeds from fairs, balls, etc.—a large amount.

Representative NORTHWAY. Have you any visitation by boards, out-
side of your board of directors?

Dr. LovEJnY. Anybody can go there.

Representative NORTHWAY. I mean have you any systematized
visitation?

Dr. LoveEjoy. No, sir. _ .

R:present.ative NorTEWAY. How as to the superintendent of chari-
ties
Dr, LoveJoY. He goes to the hospital occasionally, from time to time.
Representative NORTHWAY. But he goes there simply on his own

motion, does het
Dr. Lovejoy. Yes, sir. If he sees anything out of order, of course

he can report it.
Representative NORTHWAY. But he has no control over the institu-

tion?
Dr. LoveEJoY. No, sir; the full control of the hospital is in the board

of directors. :

Senator MCMILLAN. The lady visitors that you spoke of; I suppose
they visit the hospital and make an examination?

Dr. LovEJoY. Yes, sir; some of them are there every day. They
meet there every month; they have their meetings in the hospital, and
they are most assiduous in examining the hospital every week, and
some of them, as I said, are there every day.

Representative NORTHWAY. Do youdo anything in the way of hunt-
ing up these children, or do yon just take them as they come to you?

Dr. LoveEjoyY. I do not know that there is any hunting up done.
They cowme and make application for admission of the children.

Senator MCMILLAN. ls there anything that you desire to ask, Sena-

tor Faulkner?
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Senator FAULKNER. No; I think not.

Senator MCMILLARN. I think we have all the information that we
uesire from you, Doctor, with regard to this institution. Now we will
hear from the officers of the Washingtpn Hospital for Foundlings.

Dr. LovEJoY. Shall we leave a statement in regard to the matter of
contagious diseases? .

Senator MCMILLAN. No, sir; we think we have all the information
we want. Who represents the Washington Hospital for Foundlings?

THE WASHINGTON HOSPITAL FOR FOUNDLINGS.

Mr. W. F. MATTINGLY. I am treasurer and one of the board of
directors, This foundling hospital has been in active operation for the
past ten years, having begun operations in 1887. It is located on
Fifteenth street northwest, between R and S streets, and owns one-half
of the square, comprising upward of 38,000 square feet of ground. It
acquired that ground through the will of Joshua Pierce, who left it for
the purpose of establishing a foundling hospital. Under the will, a
charter being necessary to be obtained by the institution approved by
his trustees, Congress chartered this institution. On its face Mr.
Pierce’s will provides in express terms that the institution shall be non-
sectarian. The charter was approved by his trustees and they conveyed
the property to the corporation. A long number of years elapsed
before they were able to obtain enough money to put up a building.
Finally they did obtain it, and the building was designed by Dr. Bil-
lings for the express purpose of a hospital. It was at that timne, upon
the completion of the building, that we began operations. Since that
time it has had 538 inmates. It has adopted 108 children, and it now
has, I think, about 34 inmates, but has accommodations for about 37,

Senator MCMILLAN. What do you mean by ‘“adopted?”

Mr. MATTINGLY. The children are adopted by various persons.

Senator MCMILLAN. That is, you have found them homes?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, sir. We have power under our charter to dis-
pose of these children, and I want to say right here that the great good
that this hospital has accomplished has been in the adoption of these
children. I do not think, in the ten years of the existence of the hos-
pital, possibly with the exception of one child, that any of the children
have attained over 6 years of age without being adopted, and the
vast majority of them are adopted at about 2 or 3 years of age.

Senator McMiILy- A" ;. Do you take white or colored children?

d Mr. MATTINGLY. Unly white. We have not sufficient accommo-
atious.

Senator FAULKNER. I understood you to say that youn had received,
in the ten years of your operations, 500 or more foundlings?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. And that you adopted 1081

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, sir.

Senator FAULKNER. What became of the balance of them?

Mr. MATTINGLY. The mortality amounts to about 70 per cent. The
history or statistics of all foundling hospitals will show you that that
is a low rate. It ranges in many of thew up to 90 per cent. They are
brought there often a short time after birth or a few days old, many of
them diseased, and it is a pretty difficult matter to keep life in them.
I was saying that the great good done by the hospital was the adop-
tion of these children. I am one of the adoption committee. This
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adoption committee consists of three members of the board of direct-
ors. When persons come to the hospital and apply for a child to
adopt they can go up and select the child they want. Then this com-
mittee makes inquiry about the people who want the child, and if they
are found to be proper persons to have the care of the child and are
satisfactory, the child is indentured; under the act of Congress this
power is granted. In the ten years of the hospitals existence there
have been only two cases where we have found that children were not
being properly treated, and in those cases the children wererecovered;
but the vast majority of them are adopted in excellent homes, some of
them in the homes of people of wealth in different sections of the
country; they are not only adopted here; we have them as far away as
Kansas and in the Southwest.

Senator MCMILLAN. You have nothing to do with the mothers of
these children; they do not come to the hospital?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Now and then a mother comes, but as a general
thing the children are left there either by the police or by somebody
that immediately leaves. It is seldom practicable to find out about the
parentage of children, and it is ordivarily impossible to do so. The
policy of the Foundling Hospital is to take charge of them without
in(lluiry as to parentage.

see that the second topic for this hearing, as given in the schedule,
is as to the extent to which public aid may properly be granted. I sup-
pose all that ix necessary in that respect is for me to remind you gen-
tlemen that the history of the civilized world demonstrates that every
civilized nation in existence supports foundling hospitals by appropria-
tion of State moneys, and of course the foundation of this policy is that
it is to the interest of the State to save life and to prevent infanticide.

Senator MOMILLAN, Is it not true that infanticide has increased in
the last ten years in the city of Washington?

Mr. MATTINGLY. I really do not know. I think a mother would
prefer to tarn over her child to a foundling hospital, where she knew
it would be taken care of, rather than strangle it.

Senator McMILLAN. How much money, Mr. Mattingly, do you receive
from the Govcernment?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Six thousand dollars a year.

Senator MCMILLAN. And how much does it cost to run the hospital
annually?

Mr. MATTINGLY. It costs over $7,000.

Senator MCMILLAN. Over $7,000¢ ‘

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, sir; we get the balance by private contribu-
tion; the bulk is from the Government. We have no private funds,
except voluntary contributions.

Se’nator McMILLAN. Your iostitution is not sectarian in any sense,
is it

Mr. MATTINGLY. No, sir,

Senator MOMILLAN. Does the Government have any control over it
in any way?

Mr. MATTINGLY. We make a report to the Secretary of the Interior
and we are required to report quarterly to the superintendent of chari-
ties. Ouraccounts are kept by the Treasurer of the United States and
audited by the Auditor of the Treasury, and when any disallowance is
made, I pay it out of my own pocket rather than contest it.

Senator MCMILLAN. Why should there be any disallowances?

Mr. MATTINGLY. They struck out an item for gas once because the
matron had not certified that gas was used in the hospital,
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Senator MOMILLAN, I believe you have spoken in respect to the
question of mortality?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, 8ir.

Senator MCMILLAN. And as to the visitation of children?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, s8ir. _

Senator MCMILLAN. I think that will answer for your hospital, unless
some of the other gentlemen desire to ask you something.

Senator FAULKNER. You have no representation of the Government
on your board, have you? :

Mr. MATTINGLY. No, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. Is there any law of Congress which
provides for your accounting for this money, or is it simnply an order
for the money ¢ .

Mr. MATTINGLY. It is just this: Congress made an appropriation—
I forget what the amount was at first—say it was $6,000, I was treas-
urer and went up to the Treasury Department, and I thought the
Treasurer would turn it over to me and that the institution would dis-
burse it; but I was told ¢ No;” that under the law I was a disbursing
officer, and would have to give a bond of $5,000; and this I had to do.
They put $1,600 to my credit as treasurer quarterly. When I drew a
check I put the object for which it was drawn on it, and they pay these
checks. My accounts are audited, as I stated before, by the Auditor
of the Treasury. Under the construction of the law by the Depart-
ment it was held that I was a disbursing officer, and that my accounts
had to pass through the Treasury.

Seuator FAULKNER. Under each appropriation?

Mr. MATTINGLY. Yes, 8ir.

Senator FAULKNER. I8 there any other institution in the city doing
the same work that you are doing? -

Mr. MATTINGLY. I think St. Ann’s Asylum takes in foundlings.

Senator MCMILLAN. I think that is all the information we waut from
your institution, Mr. Mattingly.

Mr. MATTINGLY, There is just one thing more. I understand that
some criticism was to be made of this foundling hospital here by the
Board of Children’s Guardians. If anybody has any criticism to make
I would like to hear it, so that I can answer it.

Senator MCMILLAN. There is nothing that I know of. We are seek-
ing for information and are desirous of receiving information in regard
to all of these institutions, especially those that receive support fiom

the Government,
Representative NORTHWAY. Others can criticise, but the committee

is not responsible for it.

Mr. WiLLIAM REDIN WOODWARD. We have no criticism to make;
we have a report to make. We have a comparison of statistics as
furnished by our reports and the reports of these other institutions. If
those statistics criticise, they will have to do so; but we have no per-
sonal criticism to make.

Senator FAULKNER. What has been the practical result of your work
as to age?

Mr. WooDWARD. What do you mean?

Senator FAULKNER. What has been the practical result as to the
very young children committed to you?

Mr. WooDWARD. Of children under 2 years of age, which comprises .
those covered by our comparison, our death rate has been but 20 per
cent, and five-sixths of these are colored children.
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ST. ANN'S INFART ASYLUM.

Senator MCMILLAN. Now, we will hear whoever is present on behalf
of St. Ann’s Infant Asylum. Dr. Loring, I believe, is here representing
that institation.

Dr. F. B. LORING. Yes, 8ir. -

Senator MOMILLAN. What is your relation, Doctor, to this institu-

tiont .
Dr. LoRING. I am on the consulting board, and am oculist and

examining surgeon.

Senator MCMILLAN. The first topic is the work of the institution.
We would like to hear something about the character »f the work done.

Dr. LorING. The work has already been very thoroughly gone over
by my predecessor, Mr. Mattingly. St. Ann’s Infant Asylum is a found-
ling asylum which is open to the reception of children up to the age of 6
years, and particularly to foundlings left upon the streets or abandoned
in such ways. I think it is the ouly institution of its character—that
is, that takes children of the character which it does—I am not sure
about the Board of Children’s Guardians, but it has been the only one
up to recent years, up to the establishment of the Board of Children’s
Guardians, that received colored children. Foundlings that are left in
baskets on the doorsteps or elsewhere, or found by the police, are brought
to St. Ann’s Infant Asylum and are received.

Senator MOMILLAN. Is this asylum under sectarian control?

Dr. LorING. It is under the control of Sisters of Charity, but is abso-
lutely nonsectarian in its management beyond the sisters taking care
of the children as nurses. Most of the staff are Protestants. Of course
these children are too young to think about matters of religion. They
are taken and brought up, and after they reach 6 {Zars of age they are
put into an institution. A large majority of the boys are sent out to
farms in the country, and the girls are taught trades. There is another
feature that is a commendable one, and that is the help it gives to the
Humane Society of the District of Columbia. If a mechanic becomes
involved in debt and can no longer support his children, the children
are taken and kept until the father—or, it may be mother—is again

able to support them.,
Senator FAULKNER. To what age do you take children under those

circumstances?

Dr. LoRING, Six years of age. After that they go to some other
institution, to one that is connected with the same order of sisterhoods.

Senator MGMILLAN. Where does the money come from to support it?

Dr. LorING. It comes very largely from Congress, and some from
private contributions. The asylum has no regular means of support
except from Congress, and from charitable people about the District.

Senator MOMILLAN. How many children can you care for?

Dr. LorING. 1 would like to ask Dr. Bovee about that. It is my
impression that it is about 315.

Dr. BovEE. I don’t know the exact capacity of the institution.

Dr. LoriNG. The daily average is about 130. They built an addition
two or three years ago, and the number has increased. Sister Agnes
is here within call, and could answer those questions better than I could

myself.
Senator MOMILLAN, What is the proportion of colored and white

children?
Dr. LorING. There is about the same number of each.
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Senator MOMILLAN. About alike?

Dr. LORING. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. Yc1 make no distinction as to whether they are
colored or white?

Dr. LoBRING. No, sir. I would like to state that the death rate, or
mortality, is large, as Mr, Mattingly has stated, with respect to the
other institution, and it is large at St. Ann’s for another reason that
does not affect the other institution as much as it does St. Ann’s, and
that is that the colored children brought there by the police are brought
there in baskets. They come from a much lower class than the chil-
dren of white people do, and from a class of society that knows little
of cleanliness. They are thrust into the world hurriedly, without any
care, and when they arrive at St. Ann’s Infant Asylum they are often
in a very desperate and distressing condition. But I can speak in the
highest terms of the health of the children that survive. Of course,
there is a large percentage that die on account of want of proper treat-
ment before they arrive at the institution, and the rate is much higher
among colored children than white.

Representative NORTHWAY. Your institution, in a seunse, is doing
the same work as the Washington Hospital for F’oundliugs?

Dr. LoRING. Yes, 8ir; except that we take colored as well as white
clildren. )

Representative NORTHWAY, What is the cost?! How does it com-
pare with the other foundling hospital?

Dr. LorING. To be frank, those are questions that I am not able to
answer. Sister Agnes, the matron, could give you the exact figures,
but how it would compare with kindred institutions [ could not tell.

Representative NORTEWAY, Can you tell what proportion is paid by
Congress?

Dr. LogiNg. Can you answer that question, Dr. Bovee? ,

Dr. BoviE. I do not know about other institutions, but here the
:gx;t(l)gl expense is about $13,000, and the appropriation of Congress is

9 .

Representative NORTHWAY, Is this institution incorporated?

Dr. LorING. It is incorporated, is it not, Dr. Bovee?

Dr. BovEE. It is incorporated by act of Congress and approved by
President. Lincoln. Sister Agnes asked me to appear here, but inas.
much as Dr. Loring has covered the case so well, it will not be necessar{
for me to add much. The location of the asylam you are no doubt all
familiar with. It is at the corner of K street and Washington Circle.
Its real-estate holdings to-day are valued at $100,000, on which there
ia no incumbrance. That money was collectéd entirely from private
sources; that is, to secure the site and erect the building. The United
States Government has not contributed one cent toward the erection of
the building or the purchase of the ground. It was incorporated in
1862 by special act of Congress, which was signed by President Lincoln,

Tlhe CLERK. February 11, 1863, according to the report of the
asylum,

Dr. BoveE. That is correct. For some years it was supported by
contributions from private sources, without any assistance from the
United States Government. In 1877 it received its first appropriation,
and from that year up to the present time it has been receiving appro-
friations by Congress. From 1877 to 1887 the appropriation made for
ts support annually was $5,000, after which it received $6,000 until
1891, when it was $6,500, In 1892 it received $7,079; in 1893, $6,5600;
in 1894 it was cut down to $3,840; in 1895 it received $5,400, and an -
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equal amount has been appropriated annually since that time. The
annual expenses are a8 high as $12,000 to $15,000.

The OLERE. As given here, the total cost of maintenance in 1896
was $10,989.86. _

Dr. BovEE. You probab'y have the fignres better than I have. We
claim that the asylum is essentially a nonsectarian institution, for the
reason that neither the religion or race of the pareuts are inquired into.
A cbild brought there by the police or left on the doorstep is received.

Senator FAULKNER. How is the board of directors constituted?

Dr. BoveE. The asylum is under the charge of the Sisters of Charity.

Senator FAULKNER. You have a corporation? You have a board of
directors, have you not?

Dr. LorING. There is & medical board.

Dr. BovEE. It is an incorporated body under the title of the St. Ann’s
Infant Asylum,

Senator FAULKNER. There must be a board of directors. I under-
stood Dr. Loring to say that most of the board were Protestants.

Dr. BovEE. Not the board of directors, but the medical staff.

. Re;;resentative NorTHWAY. Who has control to select these physi-
cians

Dr. BovER. The medical board by vote fills vacancies as they occur.

Senator MOCMILLAN. Who appoints the medical board?

Dr. BoveE. I do not know who did originally, but now the medical
board fills the vacancies. Three members of the medical board were
of the original staff.

Representative NORTHWAY. Then I suppose the asylum is under the
absolute control of the Sisters of Charity?

Mr. WELLER. Yes, gir; those who offer their services for the love of
God and who receive no compensation. I would ask your committee
to consider this fact, that if this institution did not exist the care of
these children would be a very serious burden on the people.

Representative NORTHWAY. Is there any endowment?

Dr. BovEE. None whatever. They depend upon poand parties, such
as they are having to-day, and festivals, etc., the proceeds of which go
to the institution. The appropriations of Congress would not be suffi-
cient to maintain it, and they are absolutely dependent upon such
things. Sister Agnes asked ine to extend to you an invitation to make
a personal inspection of the asylum, and they will be glad to see yoa.
The asylum is maintained in the very cleanest way, and just as clean
and neat as houses in the best of families are. It would carry convie-
tion with it if you wonld make a personal inspection of it. If you
would like to ask Sister Agnes anything she is here and will be glad
to answer any questions. .

Senator FAULKNER. I think the ground has been pretty well gone
over already and that will not be necessary.

Dr. BOovEE. There is this feature about the question of the Govern-
ment doing this work itself, and that is, the necessary buildings would
have to be erected and the ground purchased, and the interest on the
amount that would have to be invested would be considerably above
the amount you now contribute for the maintenance of this asylum.

Dr. LoriNg. I would like to add only a word. Before I became con-
nected in a professional sense with 8t. Ann’s I became somewhat
acquainted with the work of the police in regard to foundlings, and my

-attention was called to the absolute cleanliness of St. Ann’s and the
mathematical precision with which the work there was carried on, and it
is conducted in a thoroughly business-like manner. I have never heard
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a murmur of complaint from any of the sisters over a fretful child. They
are always kind and pleasant; and, I may say, itis the most healthy set
of children I have ever seen in a hospital of the kind.

Representative NORTHWAY. You say there is $100,000 worth of real
estate. How is that vested?

Dr. LorING. I am not familiar with those things.

Mr. MOORE. As shown in Return A of that institution, “in an incor-
porated body under the tille of 8t. Ann’s Infant Axylum.”

Senator FAULKNER. In the name of the institution?

Senator MOMILLAN. We will take up the next question. 1 think that
will be all we need from this institution.

Dr. BoveEE. There is one point that I wish to speak of, and that is as
to the mortality. I would say that the mortality in all foundling
asylums, no matter where they are, is very high on account of the rea-
sons which have been mentioned. Children are brought in in all kinds
of conditions—many in a distressing condition—and many of them die
within twenty-four hours after reaching the asylum. They may be
picked np, as they often are, on a rainy night by a policeman and brought
there, and they may not live three hours. I asked the sister to make
me a& iist- concerning mortality covering two years—1895 and 1896. For
instance, during the year 1896 the mortality was 62,

Senator MCMILLAN. Sixty-two per cent?

Dr. BOVEE. No, sir; 62. The average daily number of children is
130. 1 do not know just the total number treated. I take it for granted
that it would be something like 200 cases. They are coming in all the
time, and being sent out at the age of 6 to St. Josepl’s and St. Vin-
cent’s Orphan Asylums, male and female. 'I'he average daily number
has been about 130; so I take it for granted that it is about 62 out of
200, but the statistics are not complete on account of not having the
total number treated. In 1896 the mortality was 74. Of this namber
30 died at the age of 1 month and under; one child at the age of 14
months and one at the age of 17 months. The remaining number at an
average age of from 2 to 9 months. In 1896 the figures are about the
same—mortality, 62; of this number 23 that died were 1 month of age
or under, and 34 from 2 to 9months. They usually die in the first few
months, or in the summer time, from diseases peculiar to the weather,
Another thing, you know in these institutions you can not give a child
any food so strengthening and healthy as a mother’s breast milk; it is
pretty hard to get a valuable substitute for breast milk, and in these
institutions they have to be fed with artificial food, though they do get
wet nurses and put children out in the heated term with wet nurses,
and to that is particularly attributed the small mortality they have.

Then as to visiting children. That is limited, of course, to visitin
children who have been placed out with unurses, and they are visite«
two or three times a week, If they are not doing well they are taken
away from the woman who has charge of them. They have, so far as
they can, the physiciaus of the hospital staff go out to see the children
when they become sick. At the age of 6 the children are sent to
St. Joseph’s and St. Vincent’s Orphan Asylurus, down at Tenth and
@ streets, where they are trained in different directions until they get
to be about 15 years of age; and here is the best thing. They send
them out into the country—get themm homes in the country. I think if
we had less people coming from the country to the cities we would
have fewer peoplein the cities to take care of. The farmers are hunt-
ing to find someone to work for them; so they are sent out into the
country and secured homes there. If a girl shows any aptitude for

8. DOO. 185_9
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needlework she is sent to 3t. Rose Industrial School, which is at the
corner of Twenty-first and G streets, to be trained in that kind of
work. Other girls are algo found homes or go out working by the day.
I do not know whether you would be interested in knowing about the
variety of diseases from which the children in the St. Ann’s Asy-

lum die.

Senator MCMILLAN, No, 8ir; we do not care for that.

Dr. Bovee. I thought you would not be. I think that is all, then,
that I have to say. I will leave these few papers containing state-
ments prepared by Sister Agnes with you, so that they can be filed.

The statements referred to are as follows:

ST. ANN’S INFANT ABYLUM, WASHINGTON, D. C,

8t. Ann’s Infant Asylum receives from Government $5,400 toward its support.
The asylum has no other income only charity. It never refuses to admit a worth
object of charity, and there is no question of religion when the case is deserving. It
receives all children at any hour of the day or night from the police, many of whom
are colored. These children are generally in a very neglectful condition. We have
for years received children also from the Humane Society. The children in the asy-
lum are mostly orphans and half orphans. We also keep children for a time of
worthy parents who are out of employment and have no means. These are generally
the cases sent us by the Humane Society.
- The mortality of the infants may seem large, but a moment’s reflection on the con-
dition these infante are in when they are brought to the asylum will convince one
instantly that the number of deaths is not so great. We seldom ever lose a child
over 2 years of age. Our children, we can say, are among the healthiest in the
city. During the year 1896 we had daily an average of 130 children.

Number of deaths in St. Ann’s during the years 1895 and 1896.

Month, 1895.1 1896. Month. 1895. ; 1898,
4 7
3 (] 3
e 5 2
3 ] 6
g 5 6
8 Total ...... essscscsssenncssans a4 | b62

a Of this number, 30 died at the age of 1 month and under, 1 child at the age of 14 months, and 1 at

the age of 17 months; the remalning number average from 2 to 9 months.
b Of this vomber, 23 were 1 month and under; 34 from 2 to 9 montha; two 1 year, teething; one 1§

years, consumption; two 2 years, complication of

Pay roll of employees of St. Ann’s Infant Asylum of the Distriot of Columbia for the
month of April, 1897.

We, the undersigned, acknowledge to have received from Sister Elizabeth Relihan,
president, the amounts hereunto set opposite our names, respectively, in full pagyment
of our services for the time specified.

Term of servioe.
N Oocu Co “No.of) B0 vt Bigmer
ame. pation. me‘:nc; Expirs- |days. ng::h ount. igner's name,
tion
ment. ’
Nancy Rielly...... Wet nurse....| Apr. 1| Apr. 30| 30 | $8.00 $8.00 . Niim{l (her mark)
elly.
Rachael Mahoney..|.....do........ .wd0....f...do....] 30| 800 8,00 Bnchuyl(hor mark)
. oy.
Isabelle Carroll....|..... do ........ ...do....f...do....;] 80| 8.00 8.00 Inbellonfgor mark)
Sallie Witby.......]|..... do........ we.d0....|...d0....] 30| 8.00 8.00 &%:w(hat mark)
Mary Riolly .......)oeeo.80 oeeeees ] @0 u o d0....| 90[15.00| 15.00 | Mary (her mark)
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Pay roll of employess of 8t. Anw's Infant Asylum, eto,.—Continued.

Term of service.
Name. Oocoupation. | Com- No. of Pp?:‘ Amount.| Bigner's name.
mence- | EXpirs- days.' 00,
ment. on. .
Margaret Owens...| Wet nurse....| Apr. 1| Apr. 30 30 | $8.00 $8.00 M(a)rmt(bermnk)
wene.
Eliza Canton ......}..... 40 ........ ...do....]...do....] 80} 8.00 8.00 El({za (her mark)
“anton.
Ellen Tolar .ccceoeefececd0 caeeccecfescdo ...l....do...] 80| 8.00 8.00 Ellla(hermark)l‘o-
X ar.
Cora Dean.........|..... do........ eeecdo...|....d0...] 30| 8.00 8.00 CoDr:u(lhor mark)
Florenoe Kennedy .|..... do...ccc.n. veordo .. f....do ... 30} 8.00 3 00 Flﬁmné:d(ber mark)
ennedy.
Carrie Vanderpool.|..... do........ -ee.do...l....do...] 30| 800 8.00 | Carrie (hzr mark)
. Vanderpool.
Lucy Payne........|..... do........ veodo...l....do...] 30] 8.00 8.00 Lli;:y (her mark)
HyDe,
Louisa Bower......|..... d0........ eeedo...f....do...] 80| 8.00 8.00 | Louisa (her mark)
wer.
Mattie Gaffeny ....|..... do ........ eesdo....do . ] 80! 10.00 10. 00 M?;“}? (her mark)
afieny.
Maggie Winters...|..... 40 ........ veerdo .. f....do...] 30| 800 8.00 M%ﬁf': '(Vhor mark)
. ntors.
Elizabeth Brown ..} Nurse ........ ceedo .. f.c..do .. 30 7.00 7.00 Elizabe:b Brown,
Maggie Donahue ..|..... do........ ceedo..f....do...] 30| 800 8.00 | Maggie Donahne.
Emma Eldridge....| General work.|....do ...|....do...] 30| 7.00 7.00 | Emma Eldrid
Lizzie Beatzel .....|..... do........ ceodo.......do ...l 30| 6.00 6.00 | Lizzie Beatze
Ida Sorrell.........|..... do........ veedo .. |....do...] 80| 7.00 7.00 | Ida Sorrell.
Luoy Smith........ Cook.......... veeudo .. feeodo .| 30| 20,00 10.00 I.técyit l:‘lwr mark)
m
‘Winnie Mullen ....| Assistantcook|....do...[....do...|] 30| 7.00 7.00 W}i‘?nlile (her mark)
N ulien. N
Minnie McCullen..|..... do........ veeedo .. ioodo .. 30 T.00 7.00 | Minnfe ‘her mark) .
) McCallen.
Angela Benson ....| General work.|....do...{....do...[ 30| 3.00 5.00 { Angela (her mark)
nson.
Maria Downs......|..... do.cereeen .e.do...J....do...] 30! 5.00 5.00 Min)rgs (her mark)
- wns.
Bridget Fitzgerald.] Laundress....|....do...]....do...] 30 10.00 10,00 Bnii'rllget l('xle; mark)
tzgerald.
Ella Georgia....... Wet nurse....|....do...}....do...] 30 ] 8.00 8,00 El(l;a ‘:guer mark)
eorgia.
Joseph McLoughlin] Engineer,ete ./....do ...|....do...] 30 ] 1500 15. 00 Joie[}l'xo (bli:ll mark)
() u 1.
James McCormick.| Laborer ...... ceee@o .. diido .| 30 12.00 12.00 | James (his mark)
2900 McCormiock.

I certify that the services charged in the above roll were actually performed, and

that the compensations paid were just aud reasonable.
S1STER ELIZABETH RELIHAN, President.

THE BOARD OF CHILDREN’S GUARDIANS.

Senator MCMILLAN. We will next hear the officers of the Board of
Children’s Guardiaus.

Mr. WiLLIAM REDIN WOODWARD. I have a paper which I would
snbmit. It was prepared by Mr. Lewis, our agent and executive offi-
;:)er. " It has been considered by the Board and unanimously adopted

y them.

Mr. Woodward proceeded with the reading of the paper referred to.

Representative NORTHWAY (interrupting). Does {om- paper deal
entirel%vwith the internal workings of the institution

Mr. WoODWARD, No, sir.

Representative NORTHWAY. Do you deal with the business part of
your affairs in the paper?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir; farther along.

Senator MOMILLAN. I do not think we care anything about the rules;
it is not necessary to read that. You can just file it,
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Mr. WoopwARD. We have attached to this paper three tables of
mortality, compiled from the statistics in the report of the superin-
tendent of charities so far as figures have been reported to bim, for
the years 1889, 1892, 1894, 1895, and 1896,

Senator MOMILLAN. Where are the figures talzen from?

Mr. WuooDWARD. From the reports of the superinivndent of charities.

Senator MCMILLAN. I do not suppose it is necessary for us to have

that read now.

Mr. WooDWARD. It is simply a comparison.

Scnator MOCMILLAN. Leave the tables with the report.

Mr. WooDpwARD. We also wish to show by these the difference in
mortality of those in institutions and those in homes. Notwithstanding
the fact that five-sixths of our children under 2 years of age are colored,
our death rate is only 20 per cent.

The Board of Children’s Guardians has done the work of an institu-
tion for foundlings since its organization. The practice of the Board
in dealing with such children was modified at the end of the first pe-
riod of six months by the formal adoption of boarding out as a means
of caring for them, This process consists of the selection of a family
home for the infant immediately upon its reception, a bargain being
made with the head of the family by which the child is to receive such
attention as its necessities demand, to be fed according to directions
given from the office of the Board, to be suitably and sufficiently
clothed at all times, and is not to be dosed with medicines of any sort,
except in obedience to the orders of the physician employed by the
Board. Upon the tirst appearance of sickness report is to be made to
‘the office of the Board by telephone or special messenger, when a
physician is at once seut to take charge of the case.

The following rules, established for the guidance of the agent of the
Board in selecting boarding homes for infants and for the government

of nurses, have been strictly followed:
HOME CONDITIONS.

(1) The home must be on a fairly good street or in the country. No infants will be

placed in homes in the alleys or courts of the city.
(2) The homes must be clean, well kept, well ventilated, and so situated that sun-

shine will come into the rooms part of the day.

(3) There must be ample room for the number of persons living in the house, and
the preseuce of boarders and small children, other than those placed by this agency,
will be considered objactionable.

54) The income of the care taker, including the legitimate profit on the amount
paid by this Board for the care of its children, must be sufficient for reasonable sup-
port for herself and all dependent upon her. One-half of the amount paid will be
considered as psgment to the care taker for her trouble and labor, and the other half
is to provide food and clothing for the child.

(5) All that part of ““South Washington” lying east of Four-and-a-half street and
south of E street southwest, and all of ¢ West Washington” lying south of Bridge
street are considered objectionnble, and hereafter infants will only be placed in those
localities in special cases and for special reasons. .

(8) The following classes of persons are invited to apply for infants to be kept at
the expense of this Board, and will be givon preference in the order named: First.
Cleanly, healthy, and respectable women, both white and colored, who are in condi-
tion to wet nurse an infant; second, those who have experience, but who are now
without small children of their own, and are so situated that they can secure a steady

supply of fresh pure milk from cows kept for private use.
RULES FOR THE GOVERNMENT OF NURSES.
rsons applying for infants to board are expected to understand and agree to

All
obey the following rules:
(1) It is understood that the amount paid by this Board is to provide the child with
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everything necessary to its health and eomfort, except the services of a physician
and the necessary medicines in case of sickness., Nurses must see to it that the
children sre properly fed, well clothed, clean, and comfortable at all times, If chil-
dren are fonnd not snfficiently clothed or poorly fed, the neceuar¥ food snd clothin
will be furnished by the agent of the board, and the cost thereof will be deduc
from the amount due the nurse at the next monthly pay day.

(2) All persons taking children as boarders must submit to inspection of the chil-
dren, of the food prepared for them, of their clothing, and of the sanitary conditions
of their home by the agent or members of the board, as often as the board deems
such examination necessary. They must report in writing regarding the children
whenever requested to do so by the agent of the board.. They must also give fnll
and correct answers at all times to such questions as it may become necessary to ask
regarding their family, their income, the occupations followed, and all other matters
affecting the welfare of the children placed with them. The board reserves the right
to remove a child from the custody of any nurse without previous notice whenever
such action becomes necessary for the safety and welfare of the child.

(3) Narses must understand that when children are placed with them their first
duties are to those children, and nothing must be allowed to interfere with the per-
formanceof those duties, They must take the place of mothersto the children as far
as possible. They must be patient, good tempered, avd faithful, and willing to sac-
rifice their own comfort for the welfare of the children. i

(4) In case of sickness report must be made at once to this office, when a physician
will be sent to attend the child. Nurses are not expected to attempt to treat sick
children, except under the direction of a é»hysician. In case of accident or sudden
sickness at night or on Sunday, when the office of the Board is not open, the physician
designated to attend children in any given locality may be called withou t waiting
to report at the office of the Board; but in all cases reports must be made on the
morninﬁ of the first business day following.

(5) The nse of paregoric, Dover’s powders, or soothing sirup, or of toddy, beer, or
ofl..her_ alcoholic drinks is forbidden under any circumstances, unless prescribed by a

ysician.

P (6) Next to that provided by nature, good cows’ milk is the best food for an infant,
Nurses are hereby directed to procure, whenever possible, a supply of fresh milk from
reliable parties keeping cows for privateuse. Whenever such arrangements can not
be made persons taking charge of children must furnish such prepared food as may
be directed by the Board, under the advice of the physician in charge.

(7) Ctildren under 1 year of age must be given nothing but the milk or food
prepared for them. Those over 1 year old may have & small quantity of bread
with their milk in the morning or duriug the eariy part of the day. Those from 18
months to 2 years old may be given, in addition, boiled rice, breakfast food, strained
oat meal, or chicken broth as they become able to digest such food; but every child
must have milk or a reliable substitate, and plenty of it, until the end of the second

ear. Potatoes, starch, beans, bananas, tomatoes, sonr fryits, and candies must be
ept away from children under 2 years of age. To disregard this rule is to put the
child’s lite in danger.

(8) Nurses will not be allowed to use nursing bottles with long glass and rubher
tabes. The plain, short, dark rabber nipple, with any ordinary bottle, is decidedly
the best and the only arrangement allowed. Infants must not be given the bottle
und put down and left. Every nurse is expected to take the child upon her lap to
be fed and to give the meal and take the bottle away within twenty minutes. t-
tles must be scalded after each meal is given before being refilled for the next, and
nipples must be kept in a bowl of fresh water when not in use.

(9) All water used in the preparation of food for infants during hot weather must
be boiled. A small quantity should be boiled each morning and put aside to cool in
a covered vessel. The directions for the preparation of milk and barley water for
children of various ages, which are furnished by the board, must be carefully followed.

(102 Upon the first upgesrance of serious bowel trouble the case must be reported
at this office, or to the physician designated, at once. Doors and windows should be
opened on the shady side of the house and the child should be fgiven fresh air. A
fan must be used, if necessary, to keep the child cool. Give no food and nothing to
drink. If vomiting or purging sets in give five to ten drops of limewater in a tea-
spt;ggful 012 cold water gvery ten minutes until the doctor comes. Give no more and
nothing else.

(11) Every nurse must study these rules until she understands them perfectly.
Any doubt or uncertainty as to what is meant must be reported to the agent of the
board, who will construe and explain them. .

The rate paid for such service is $10 per mouth for one chfld and 818
per month for two. Usually where more than one child is placed with
a narse one is selected which is two or three years of age while the
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other is much younger. OColored children are placed with colored
nurses and white children with white nurses.

In operation this plan has been very successful, as will be seen by a
comparison of its results with those attained under the plan of keeping
the infants in an institution,

Three things are essential to its success: First, facilities for the exam-
ination of a large number of homes and the selection of those wherein
conditions are entirely favorable; second, first-rate medical attendance
employed by and responsible to the boarding-out agency; third, con-
stant vigilance on the part of wise and deeply interested inspectors,
who visit the nurses frequently, encouraging and instructing them and
providing for the transfer of the children from the homes of any who
neglect their duty in the slightest particular.

It has been found easy to get the infants placed in charge of the Board
into the hands of competent and careful nurses. They find the approval
of the Board of value to them, and are anxious to so discharge their
duty as to merit approval and secure continnous employment. They
are made to feel that it will injuriously affect their record and employ-
ment to allow a child to die, and they are always very anxious that the
physician and agent of the Board shall be able to give a good account

of them.
EXTENT TO WHICH PUBLIC AID SHOULD BE GRANTED.

There does not seem to be any valid reason why the reception of
“foundlings” at the expense of the whale body of the people should not
be surrounded by safeguards in all respects similar to those necessary
in case of older children. On the contrary, the conditions which cause
the presence of the classes of children so designated seem to call for
additional precautions lest they be encouraged and increased. Nearly
all “foundlings” are children of unmarried mothers. These mothers
are always away from their homes and friends and desire to conceal
the existence of their children. They find it easiest to seclude them-
selves in the large cities and they avail themselves of the free lying-in
wards of all hospitals which are not protected against them. Upon
their discharge from the hospital they wish to return to their homes,
and the foundling asylum offers convenient means for the abandon-
ment of the children. An applicant for the admission of a babe will
be asked a few conventional questions, which may be answered or not
without in any way endangering the success of the application. No
identification of the person presenting the child is required. No infor-
mation need be furnished which will make it possible to discover either
parent, will.reveal their residence, or show it to be necessary that the
child be provided for at public charge. The fact that a person wants
to give up a babe seems to be accepted as sufficient reason for taking it.

This makes it unnecessary for any person within reach of Washing-
ton to appeal to or seek the enforcement of wholesome laws for the
punishment of offenses against morality. It relieves the fathers of
illegitimate children of all trouble and responsibility at a minimum of
cost. They do not have to face the public censure due them in their
own howmes. Social prestige and eclat are not affected, and the right-
eous anger of fathera and brothers of the mother is turned aside. The
mothers return home and soon again regain their usual health and
spirits. Many of them repeat the experience. Larceny is an offense
against public order. The quickest, surest, and most common means
for its detection is through knowledge of the means and place of the
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disposal of the stolen goods. Detectives are trained and paid for its
suppression at public expense. Bastardy is an offense against the
community. The quickest, surest, and most common means of its con-
cealment is the foundling asylum, It seems anomalous that police and
detective officers should be paid at public cost to suppress and punish
larceny, and the foundling asylum at the same time be supported at
public cost to take fromn the other offense the penalty afforded by
nature.

It will be urged that the free reception of ‘foundlings” prevents
infanticide; that unless relieved of them many mothers would kill
their children. The sufficient reply is that the law provides a penalty
for infanticide, and should be enforced. A burglar will usually kill if
about to be caught in the act, but that will hardly be urged as a reason
for providing an easy means for his escape.

It will be urged that the mothers of this class of children are entitled

to sympathy; that the very distress of their condition when they arrive
in the city makes it imperative that they be provided with shelter and
the common comforts of life; that to insist upon their providing for
their own children would be both brutal and foolish; that to send them
out into the world with a child in their arms would be to heap upon
them lifelong disgrace, and a burden which they can not be expected to
bear.
The sufficient reply is that they should never have come to the city
in the first place, and would not but for the knowledge of provision
made for their reception, and for relieving them of their infants when
born; that such as do come should be at once returned to their homes;
that if they are unable to provide for their oftfspring, their remedy is
against the father of the child aud not against the District of Colum-
bia. The only disgrace worth considering comes as a result of dis-
graceful conduct; and there is vastly more hope for a person who frankly
acknowledges a wrong, honestly repents of it, and makes the best of the
hard conditions resulting therefrom, than for one who avoids the respon-
sibility and assumes a position which must be supported, if at all, by a
lifelong succession of falsehoods.

The following letter shows the mental condition and the ideas of the
mothers of nearly all ¢« foundlings” in this city. It was written by a
girl 21 years of age, who had, at the time of the writing, come to this
city from her home in West Virginia for the purpose of concealing her
condition and getting rid of her second illegitimate child. It was writ-
ten for another woman, who is from 25 to 35 years of age, who was here
for the same purpose from Virginia. So far as known she had not been

here before:
WASHINGTON, D. C., March 12, 1897.

Mr, LEwIs.

DEAR SIR: I understand that gou will take children whose parents are not able to
take care of them. I have a baby that is 2 weeks old to-morrow. I find it impos-
sible for me to keep it, as I want to go back home and can not go if I take the child.
I would be very glad if you would come and see the child as soon as you can, for I
would like to get rid of it as soon as possible on account of becoming attached to

the ohild.
Yours, in haste,

The child referred to in the letter was born on the 27th of February,
and was admitted to the Washington Hospital for Foundlings on the
13th of March. The mother has returned to her home in Virginia.
The second child of the girl who wrote the letter for her companion is
said to have been born on the 14th of February and admitted to the
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Washington Hospital for IFoundlings on February 26. This girl has
also returned to her home in West Virginia.

Lt is no part of the business of the Government to attempt to shield
any person from the natural consequences of wrongdoing; and in the
matter of dealing with the parents of illegitimate children the forces
of organized society should strike with and not against the great
forces of nature.

MORTALITY,

There are sufficient reasons why the death rate among infants sepa-
rated from their mothers must always be excessively large., Without
attempting to discuss such reasons at length, it seems proper to say
that in the light of information gathered from the general mortality sta-
tistics of the District of Columbia it would be expected that the death
rate among the colored children would be greater than among the white,
The report of the health department for 1896 gives the percentages of
deaths of children under 5 years of age as follows:

‘White. | Colored.

Percentave of total mortality of childran under 5 years of 8ge...ceeeceeeecenenn.. 46. 42 5;. 52
13. 8

Aunnuil death rate by color. o oaeeriireeiriin e iae it i ierecarraeenaaenas 5.74

By extensive comparison of statistics from many cities, both Ameri-
can and foreign, it has been found that practically 33 per cent of the
population of any city consists of children under 5 years of age. By
the application of this rule there will be found to be about 93,000 such
children in the District of Columbia. Of these 62,000 are white and
31000 are colored. Among the 62,000 whites there occurred, daring
13946, 972 deaths, and among the 31,000 colored there occurred 1,122
deaths.

Tlre associations whose special fates of mortality are computed wholly
for white children, or largely for children from 2 to 5 years of age would,
therefore, be expected to show much lower rates.

The Board of Children’s Guardians has considered as in the infant
class only those children under 2 years of age; and of such children
cared for by the board five-sixths have been colored.

At St. Ann’s Asylum children are admitted up to 5 years of age and
are kept until they reach the age of 7 years. At the Washington Hos-
pital for Foundlings the maximum age is 3 years. The average death
rate of children 2 years old and under is 3.33, and of children 2 to 5

years of age it is 0.31.
Mortality among infants, supported in whole or in part at public expense, in the District

of Columbia.
Washing- |
Colored ..! Board of
Found. | ton Hos- St Ann's ¢y 0y
lings' pital for | Infant Guard-
Home. Fl“‘;:g;d Asylam. | ons.
For the year 1891:
Whole number cared for........ccceiaicrininencnecene. 126
Daily average number cared for.....ccemeieiiacuenacanns 30
Numberofdeaths...........coiimiiiiiiiiinannes . 46
Percentage of deaths to whole number cared for 36.5
Percenvage of deaths to daily averags number........... 153.33
For the year 1892:
Whole number cared for....ceceeeeveeneicicinrciacennan. 64 105
Dai'y u\'ert:;;e number cAred for......coeiiieeneniiannns. 15.77 26.44
Numberofdeaths .....o.oneeeeeeeeiiiiiieaaa.ae, 37 66
Perceutage of deatha to whole number cared for 57.81 62. 84
Perceritage of deaths to daily average number........... 234, 62 261.39
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Mortality among infants, supported in whole or in part at publio expense, eto.—Cont’d.

Washing.!
oo | Aok sy aaua Zonrd of
lings’ pital for | Infant {~coorg
Home. li ;)'\llgll.d Asylum. | “5 0
For the year 1804:
Whole number cared for......ccceeveeecncccenccanannen.. 82 |eeerennenn 41
Daily average number cared for ......c.coceviamaeeaniaa. - 37 136 21
Numberofdeaths ............cciiiiiieanenninrnncnnan. 45 17 9
Percentage of deatha to whole number cared for.........liceeieees.]  64.87 |ooen...... 21.95
Percentage of deaths to daily average number........... 121.62 57.71 42.86
For the year 1895:
Whole number cared for........ceevevercrercnnnnneneren. (L T PO 52
Daily average nutnber cared for...c.cocvcenicciciannee.. 34 130 39
Deni‘{na ................................................. 23 82 13
31.07 [.......... 25

Percentage of deaths to whole number cared for
Percentage of deaths to daily average number...........

For the year 1896:
Whole numbercared for .........cceeveeeneecccecancienciliannaaenns 108 cecieences 52
Daily average number cared for......ccecceeeeeeecociiliiiaaa.. 32 128 39
Number ofdeaths...... . .. ..coiiiiiiiiiiiieciiieniifennnennans 70 72 14
Percentage of deaths to whole number cared for. ......../..cceuea.. 69.4 |.......... 26.78
218.75 56.25 35.9

Percentage of deaths to daily average number ........... o

Senator MCMILLAN. How many do you care for or take charge of in
the course of a year, or take the average!? ,

Mr. WooDwWARD. The daily average is about 42 or 43 of those under
2 years of age who are put in homes with nurses.

Senator MCMILLAN. Here in the District?
Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; we have one nurse for one child in that

way. .
Senator MOMILLAN. What do you do with them afterwards?

Mr. WooDWARD, When they are old enough to be removed from the
care of the nurses we try to secure homes for them under indenture.
We want the child when taken from its nursing mother to be trans-
ferred to its foster mother.

Senator MCMILLAN. Do I understand correctly that the Board of
Children’s Guardians do not approve of foundling asylums?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir.

Senator MCMILLAN. And that you would do away with them?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, 8ir.

Mr. SiMoN WoLF. Unfortunately I could not be present at the meet-
ing of the Board of Children’s Guardians on Saturday. Had I been I
would not have voted against foundling asylums, for I look upon such
asylums as one of the most humaune institutions of modern civilization.

Senator MCMILLAN. I had always thought so.

Mr. WoLF. I protest against that action, because my experience
throughout the world, gained from official as well as private observa-
tion, is that institutions of this character are not ounly humane, but
they are in the spirit and line of Christianity and humanity, aud when
you have them you decrease infanticide, which would result from con-
ditions that have existed since the beginning of time. That is my
opinion, and I want to state it.

Mr. WooDWARD. If 20 per cent under our method is a smaller per cent
than can be shown as a result of other ways of keeping them it would
seem to be better.

Mr. WoLF. That is true, perhaps, when they are taken up to 2 -
years of age, but when children are found on the doorstep or in the
streets, as they are in this city and in every other large community,
the percentage does not hold good, for the high rate of mortality is
caused by the conditions that have been explained by abler meun than
myself from a scientific and medical standpoint, that they are found in
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a condition of collapse, and whatever is saved of humanity is a real
good to humanity, and for saving these lives they have the gratitude
and thanks of all friends of humanity. When the Board of Children’s
Guardians get these children they are not in those conditions.

Mr. WooDWARD. I beg your pardon. I understand that these chil-
dren that are brought to us by the police, or by any one else, are just
in the same condition as those taken to foundling asylums.

Senator MCMILLAN. What do you do with such a child—a child that
is abandoned?

Mr. WooDWARD. As I have stated, they are placed with a nurse.
The Government should provide a place where it could be taken care
of; some temporary place where it could be cared for, such as we asked
for the other day. ,

Senator MCMILLAN. You would have a sort of asylum?

Mr. WoODWARD. A sortof clearing house for these children is what
weneed. Itisourcontention and policy that every child hasaright to a
home, and if the child’s natural mother will not orcannot give it the atten-
tion it ought to have the State should provide a foster mother forit; and
the reason why our statistics show a lower rate of mortality is because
our method provides one person to give attention to and care for one
child.

Senator MCMILLAN. Do you think these unnatural mothers should
be sought out and punished for giving birth to these children?

Mr. WoobpwARD., We are here simply pleading for the children, and
not for the mothers. What is the best means of dealing with the moth-
ers is another branch of science altogether, but I think that if questions
were asked and inquiries made by these foundling asylums as to the
parentage it would decrease the number of foundlings very materially.
The letter I quoted from the paper and addressed to Mr. Lewis, our
agent, was written by a girl who, if she entered this room to-day, no one
would suspect of anything wrong. She came to this city from West Vir-
ginia for the purpose of concealing her condition and to get rid of her
second illegitimate child when born, and, if I am not mistaken, the
fathers of both these children were colored men.

Representative NorTaOwAy. The existence of these foundling asy-
lums you think opens the way? ,

Mr. WOoODWARD. Yes, sir.
Representative NORTHWAY. Does the Board of Children’s Guardians

come in contact with the Washington Hospital for Foundlings?
Mr. WoobwARD. No, sir; I can not say we do,
Representative NORTHWAY. Or with St. Ann’s?
Mr. WooDwARD. No, sir.
Representative NORTIWAY. Then there are three institutions here to

which they can be committed.
Mr. WooDpwARD. They can not be committed to the Board of Chil-

dren’s Guardians without a day in court.
Representative NORTHWAY. But there are three institutionscovering

the same ground.
Mr. WooDWARD. One is a State institution and the other two are

private.

Representative NORTHWAY. What does it cost your Board in your
way of caring for these children?

Mr. WoobpwARD. We have not divided off the children of 2 years
of age and under trom the other children; $10 a month for a single
child in a home or $18 where two children are placed in a home, but
we do not put two children under 2 years of age in one home,
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Representative NORTHWAY, Your idea is that if there is a foundling
asylum here it would be better to inquire as to the parentage and let
it be known instead of covering it up.

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, 8ir.

Mr. WoLF. There is no doubt about that. ’

Mr. WoODWARD. A suitable law should be enacted to provide for
support of the child by the parent; I do not care who they are. We
have cases where people have come here and abandoned their children.
Women are sent here and their shame hidden, and then they go back
to where they came from and repeat the offense,

Mr. WoLF. I understand that Senator McMillan’s bill will cover that.

Representative NORTHWAY. Does the Board of Children’s Guardians
inquire into the parentage of a child?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; we do all we can. The police court will
not commit a child to the Board until an investigation is made by us or
the police department. :

Representative NORTHWAY. Then the practice of the Board of Chil-
dren’s Guardians in that respect is exactly opposite to that of foundling
asylums?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes, sir.

Mr. M. M. PARKER. Do you find homes for these children outside of
Washington?

Mr. WooDWARD, Not for infants under 2 years of age.

Mr. PARKER. Well, do you visit those outside of Washington—those
over 2 years of age placed out?

Mr. WooDpwARD, That is just what we are pleading with this com-
mittee for—to give us the means to visit outside of the District of
Columbia. To give you an illustration, we have a boy in the State
of Georgia, possibly Alabama, and we are unable to visit him, There
is some contlict between the neighbors as to the treatment the child is
receiving from the people he is placed with. We have one of the
teachers in the Tuscogee Seminary visit these homes and see the chil-
dren and make a report to us. When we have an agent or the means
to do this visiting with, for which we have applied to this comn ittee,
we shall be able to do that ourselves.

Mr. A, T. BRITTON. You have no regular visitation, then?

Mr. WoODWARD. Yes, sir; we have, but have not the means to
extend it. We can visit within a reasonable distance from Washing-
ton, but not farther than Philadelphia or New Jersey.

Representative NORTIWAY. That is because simply of lack of means
and not lack of power?

Mr. WOoODWARD. Yes, 8ir; because of lack of means. In the Dis-
trict of Columbia they are visited once a month,

Se'na.tor McMiLLAN. Have you any other questions, Colonel North-
way

Representative NORTHWAY. No, sir; I think not.

Mr. WooDWARD. Mr. Mann, the secretary of the Board, has a paper
he wishes to submit to the committee.

Representative NORTHWAY. What grounds does it cover?

Mr. B. PICKMAN MANN. It is a statement of what sort of informa-
tion ought to be obtained from these institutions to enable the commit-
tee and the public to get competent knowledge of their workings.

Senator MCMILLAN. You can just file the paper and we can have it
published.

Representative NORTHWAY. It is an argument showing why certain
things should be done?
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Mr. MANN. Itisa statement, in the first place, of what shounld be done,
and then 1 have some remarks here as to what statistics ought to show
and do show. I think if I read the paper, which is short, it might give
occasion for some questions. .

Senator MCMILLAN. We do not want toduplicate these other reports.
We have now two or three reports from the Board of Guardians, and I
do not think it is necessary to read it. .

Mr. MANN. It is not a duplication of what is contained in the other
reports.

Ié((’mator McMiILLAN. You can file it.

Mr. MANN. I think there are some points which have not been
brought out here,

Senator MOMILLAN, If you have anything to say that is definite
we will hear you.

Mr. MANN. I will refer to some of the points I have here. First, as
to the headings which should go into tables which are given to ditter-
ent institutions to report on. 1 have studied the reports of the super-
intendent of charities, and I have kept track of everything in the
newspapers with regard to this matter for sixteen years in the District
of Columbia, and I can not get the information that I want as to these
institutions.

Representative NORTHWAY. What institutions?

Mr. MANN. Just now I allude to foundling asylums,

Reprt’asentative NorTHWAY, What information is it that you can
not get

Mr. MANN. I do not mean to say that I have asked the institutions,
but I have tried to find it in official reports.

I{'epresentative NORTHWAY. What is it that you want and can not
get
Mr. MANN. At what age the children are received. The annual
report should state the age and number received, dividing the agesinto
short periods, as 1 week or under, 1 week to 1 month, 1 month to 3
months, 3 months to 6 months, 6 months to 1 year, 1 year to 2 years, 3
years, 4 years, and 5 years. They should further state the physical
condition of the children at the time of reception, as moribund, inva-
lid, healthy, and robust, and their condition at subsequent periods, as
at intervals of six months; also to what race the children belong and
what methods of treatment were adopted. So far as the Government
has authority, it should demand the fullest and clearest statements in
regard to all the features of the work, so arranged upon a uniform sys-
tem that comparisons betweeun difterent institutions and methods of
treatinent can be made. Especial emphasis should be laid upon the
rendition of any statistics which go to show failures or defects in any
system or evils which need to be remedied. The tendency of annual
reports generally is to represent the work reported upon in its iost
favorable light.

Representative NORTHWAY. You understand that this committee is
dealing with the business of these institutions, and not with the work-
ings. Wae could hardly deal with that in our hearings here. We may
differ as to how the patients should be cared for, how they should te
treated, whether by allopathic or homeopathic physicians.

Mr. MANN. I wanted to point out some of the topics upon which the
committee should obtain information. I think as a matter of funda-
mental policy that when the Government has provided an agency for
doing this work it should foster that agency under its control and not
leave these matters to private management without control,
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The annual reports of the foundling institutions mostly give meager
statistics in regard to the work. They should state for each year the
number aud age of children received, and the number at each age,
dividing the ages into short periods, as 1 week or under, 1 week to 1
month, 1 month to 3 months, 3 months to 6 months, 6 months to 1 year,
1 year to 2 years, 3 years, 4 years, and 5 years. They should further
state the physical condition of the children at the time of reception,
as moribund, invalid, healthy, and robust, and their condition at sub-
sequent periods, as at intervals of six months, If racial character-
istics be deemed influential upon the life and health of the child, the
racial distinctions should be stated.

If different methods of treatment be adopted, they should be described
and their effects should be noted. So far as the Government has
authority it should demand the fullest and clearest statements in regard
to all the features of the work, so arranged upon a uniform system that
comparisons between different institutions and methods of treatment
can be made. Where the institutions are under governmental direc-
tion forms of statement can be prescribed, and where subsidies are
granted to independent institutions the grants should be made condi-
tional upon the rendering of like statistical statements, not only of
future work but also of that of the past. Especial emphasis should be
laid upon the rendition of any statistics which go to show failures or
defects in any system or evils which need to be remedied. The tend-
ency of annual reports generally is to represent the work reported
upon in its most favorable light.

The reports rendered should be combined into comparative tables
under competent direction,and if lacunz be discovered, further demands
for information should be made, so that no oversight or efforts at con-
cealment should be allowed to detract from the completeness and sig-
nificance of the tables.

I believe the comparison of reports will show that the death rate of
infants in foundling asylums, where the children are kept for any con-
siderable time in bulk and without such constant individual care as is
given by mothers to their babies, is far greater than the death rate of
infants placed immediately upon reception in condition to receive such
motherly care, and consequently that if there be means at hand (as
there are in the District of Columbia at this time) for placing children
in such conditions as to save their lives to any measurable extent, it is
the duty of the Government not only not to aid in the support of insti-
tutious or methods tending to a less degree of preservation of life, but
also, within its powers, to suppress and forbid the maintenance of such
institutions or methods.

Statistics compiled by the Board of Children’s Guardians show that
the death rate of infants placed in the care of the foundling asylums
in this District is far greater than that of the infants placed in the
care of the Board of Children’s Guardians. They show further that
the cost per capita of the care of these children in the Washington
Hospital for Foundlings is twice or more than twice the cost of the care
of children of like age by the Board of Children’s Guardians, at the
same time that they show the death rate to be much larger. (I omit
reference to the cost in the other foundling asylum because I have not
the proper data upon which to base a comparison.) This reference is
not intended in the least to imply that these asylums are not conducted
with the greatest efficiency and in the most excellent manner pertinent

to their class.
I believe, also, that the maintenance of asylums or the pursuif of
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methods which afford an opportunity for unmarried mothers to avoid
the exposure of their violation of the rules of society has a corrupting
influence upon society, the interests of which are of greater importance
than the interests of the individuals whose reyutations might be saved
by the avoidance of exposure,

Such avoidance of exposure is sought especially by and on behalf of
those members of society who occupy the more prominent social posi-
tions, the very ones who by intelligence and opportunities are the most
bounden to observe and to improve the standards of morality, and are
the most to blame for their transgressions. I believe, therefore, it should
be a part of the work of all ageucies maintained by society to bring to
a strict account the transgressors of the social laws, and that the found-
ling institutions should be compelled within the limits of their powers
and the governmental authority to ascertain and record the facts relat-
ing to the parentage of foundling children, and to impose upon the
parents their natural and lawful obligations toward the children.

The work of the foundling institutions involves dealing also with mar-
ried mothers, or those who have not transgressed social laws, but who
seek to avoid the responsibilities which are theirs by nature, and
which, ;vithin the limits of their powers, they should not be permitted
to avoid. .

The statement somectimes made in behalf of these institutions that
they receive all children who are brought to them without asking
questions or without insisting upon full aud true answers, is a confes-
sion that such institutious are the aiders and abetters in the violation
of social and economic laws established for the maintenance and better-
ment of the body social and politic.

As to the extent to which public aid may properly be granted, I hold
it to be a fundamentally correct proposition that governmental agencies
should be provided for the performance of governmental duties, and
that wlhere they are provided they should be independent of private
control.

For a considerable term of years no governmental agency was pro-
vided for the care of foundling children in this District, and one and
another private agency performed all the service for this purpose that
was performed. The Government has now provided a governmental
agency for this service, and in so far as this agency may be found to
work efficiently, public aid should be granted to it alone. In no other
way can this aid be applied strictly and without private interference
to the purposes for which it was intended. Government aid should be
withheld especially from all those agencies which directly or indirectly
tend to foster or preserve modes of violation of the very social and
economic laws upon which the Government is founded. If there be a
question in the minds of individuals as to the fact whether the mainte-
nance of private foundling institutions does or does not tend to injure
the community. the burden and respousibility of acting in that direc-
tion which may be the injurious one should be imposed upon those
persons who maintain that it is not such, and should not be assumed
by the community.

The statistics in regard to mortality are so well and fully discussed
in the answers of the Board of Children’s Guardians that I need say
nothing of them here.

As the methods of placing out children which have been followed by
the Board of Children’s Guardians are approved in theory by all per-
sons, so far as I know, and have been shown by experience to be the
most successful, they should be supported by adequate provision of
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personnel and means to maintain their efficiency and to afford opportu-
nity for still greater betterment.

All that has been said and may be said in regard to the visitation of
the homes in which children are placed applies with force to the visita-
tion of the homes of infants. The needs of such homes are different
from those of the homes of older children in many particulars, but are
as great, and as adequate means for the supervision of these homes
should be granted as for the selection of the homes in the first instance.

So much has been said above in regard to private foundling asylums
that they need not be considered fully here. The laws of some States
provide carefully for the supervision of such asylums by governmental
agencies, recognizing peculiar dangers in leaving them to conduct their
affairs freely in their own ways. The obligations of society to its most
helpless members are peculiarly great and binding, and its interests
are most closely involved in the welfare and proper training of its future
citizens.

Whatever natural right may be recognized on the part of parents to
endeavor to impress upon their children and to perpetuate through
them their own peculiar or partisan views in matters of faith or politi-
cal opinion, the Government has no right to bias the minds of its wards
in favor of or against any partisan views upon matters in which all mem-
bers of society are not in accord, and, so far as it can avoid doing 8o,
shoald not place them in any situation where they shall be indoctri-
nated with the peculiar views of any sect of religion or political party.
The child has the right to be so educated that when he arrives at
maturity he shall be free to choose his own forms of religion and opin-
ion, without the influence of prejudice or forestatement of his judgment.

Mr. A. T. BRITTON. Were you ever in one of these hospitals!

Mr. MANN. I have never visited them myself, and I have nothing to
say mnyself against the management of them; but it has been acknowl-
eged by those representing both of these hospitals that the death rate
iu them is very high. Dr, Sowers tells me that it is smaller in the Dis-
trict of Columbia, in general, than in any other part of the country,and
if that is so, it shows that the District carries on its hospitals in a

better way than any other place.
Mr. BRITTON. We extend to you a very cordial invitation to come

and see them, to visit them.

Mr. MANN. I have based my remarks upon the facts given to me,
which show that the system of having foundling asylums is a system
which results in a large death rate.

Mr. BRITTON. Do you know what the death rate in the District has
been, on the average, of children under 12 months of age?

Mr. MANN. No, sir. The comparison I have made was of children
taken by the Board of Children’s Guardians and by the hospitals. I
think they show that the Board of Children’s Guardians has saved
about three lives where the hospitals have saved one.

Senator MCMILLAN. That is a pretty broad statement to make.

Mr. MANN. The gercentage is about 25 per cen!; of deaths of children
taken by the Board of Children’s Guardians and about 75 per cent of
those in hospitals.

Representative NORTHWAY. Do I understand you to say that the
Board of Children’s Guardians has saved about three times as many as

the hospitals?
Mr. MANN. Yes, sir,
Representative NORTHWAY. That is a broad statement.
Mr. MANN. Well, taking 100 children committed to the Board of
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Children’s Guardians and 100 taken by the Washington Hospital for
Foundlings, at the end of the year the Board would have 75 alive and
the hospital 25 alive.

Representative NORTHWAY. Is it not a fact that they take largely
children under 24 hours old, while you take them 1 year old or more?

Senator McMILLAN. That makes a great difference.

Mr. MANN. I wish you would have the information furnished so that
we can make a comparison. I do not wish to make any unfounded
statements. Without that information we are unable to ascertain the
ages aof the children comprised in their statistics. There is no infor-
mation at hand to show.

Mr. WoopwARD. The question has been raised here as to the physi-
cal condition of children who come to the Board of Children’s Guard-
ians. Mr. Lewis has the practical dealing with these children who
come into our hands. He sees them first, and I wish he would make a
statement as to their actual condition.

Dr. BovEE. I was very much surprised at these statistics given by
Mr. Mann relative to mortality in the institutions and outside. There
is no difference of opinion about the mortality in treating in hospitals
and out of them favoring the system of the institution. You can take
any disease that has ever been known and you will see that statistics
will show that hospital treatment is superior. You can take child-bed
fever and the mortality of lying-in asylums is not one quarter what it
is in private practice, where patients are in different localities. Now,
the Board of Children’s Guardians say they have no place of detention
for temporary care of these children, and notwithstanding that and the
advantage the institution has they claim to have this great increase of
life-saving work. I simply have to say that when the Board of Child-
ren’s Guardians gets a little older they will find that their mortality
will not be so fortunate as they claim it has been in the past. It is
impossible to take care of these children in private houses, where they
are taken simply to get that little $10 & month. In the institution
they make this child-caring work a business and the institution has a
reputation to maintain, and they are therefore going to do everything
in their power to achieve the best results. In the institution thereis a
medical staff that makes it a business of studying these things, and it
secms to me that there can be no doubt of its being a more efficient
system.

Dr. SOWERS. In the early part of the history of this hospital we
made a trial of this plan which seems to have been adopted by the
Board of Children’s Guardians.

Senator MCMILLAN. What hospital?
Dr. SowERS. The Washington Hospital for Foundlings. We did -

the very best that was possible with that method, but it failed and we
abandoned it. We afterward tried a system of wet nursing these
children outside. That method also failed for want of competent care.
Ten dollars a month is what they want and not the child. We tried
wet nursing in the hospital and the want of care was such that we had
to abandon that, so that after trying all these methods we have come
down to the present plan, which we believe to be successful. When
children come there well they do not die.

Mr. LEwis. There seems to be an understanding that a different
class of children comes to the Board of Children’s Guardians; that
their condition when received is not as bad as the condition of those
received at the foundling asylums, Five-sixths of those that come
to us are colored, and as we have tried to show you, ordinarily the
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death rate among them is much greater than among white children.
There is no difference in the physical condition in which they are found
from those that are received by the foundling asylums, and they are
not different in the age at which they are received.

Senator MCMILLAN. How young?

Mr. LEwis. They may be 1, 2, or 5 hours or days old. They have
been brought to us when not 24 hours old.

Senator MCMILLAN. What proportion?

Mr. LEwis. Not a very large proportion at that age, but many of
them under 1 month. In the figures which we have submitted on
behalf of the Board of Children’s Guardians are included only children
2 years of age or under, while 8t. Ann’s include them up to 7 years of
age, and the Washington Hospital for Foundlings up to 3 years. I think
Dr. Bovee, who just spoke, is certainly in the face of the figures. It is
not a controversy which I would invite, but these are public state-
ments and are entitled to be heard. In 1896 the Washington Hospital
for Foundlings had 42 children on hand at the beginning of the year;
it received 66 during the year, making 108 in that hospital during the
year, and of these they lost by death 70. Its daily average cared for
was 32, making the percentage of deaths to the daily average cared
for 218.75; or, in other words, that hospital buried its whole population
more than twice during the year. Take St. Ann’s; the daily average
number cared for was 130, and they lost during the year 72 by death,
a percentage of deaths to daily average cared for of 56.25, the difference
in the rate at the two asylums being accounted for by the fact that the
children remain longer at St. Ann’s than they do at the Washington
Hospital for Foundlings. The number dealt with by the Board of
Children’s Guardians during the same year was 52; the number of deaths
14; a percentage of deaths to number cared for of 35.9, as against 218.75
per cent at the Washington Hospital for Foundlings, and 56.25 per cent
at St. Ann’s.

Representative NORTHWAY. Can you give us the ages of children
under 2 years that come to the Board of Children’s Guardians?

Mr. LEwis. In the report of the Board for 1896 the ages of these
children under 2 years are given; each individual case is spread upon
our records so that it may be seen what the condition was when received
and the progress of each child.

Up to June 30, 1896, when the last annual report of the Board was
made, and which is the end of the period to which all figures heretofore
submitted apply, the Board had received 88 children under 2 years
of age. Of these, 44 were 3 months of age and under; as follows:
Less than 1 month, 28; between 1 and 2 months, 11; between 2 and 3
months, 5.

The average age of all those received at 2 years and under was 8
months, The average age of the children received during the year
1896 was 5 months; 8 were under 1 month, and but 2 were over 1 year.
In the case of 10, the prognosis from a careful examination of the chil-
dren at the time of reception, was ¢ death.” In5 it was “doubtful,”
and in 12 it was “hopeful.”

Every case has been individually dealt with in the reports of the
Board for 1895 and 1896. (See annual reports of the Board for 1895,
p. 15, and 1896, pp 24 and 25.) Marked copies of these reports are here-
with handed you.

Representative NORTHWAY. Unless you have the average age of
children taken into these other hospitals you can not make a fair

comparison ?
8. Doc, 185——10
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Mr. LEw1s. Our statement is based on the number cared for. There
are no figures published to enable anyone to make the comparison yon
suggest. .

Mr. MANN. The point I wanted to bring out was that this committee
has authority to obtain from these hospitals a statement of the ages at
which each child is received.

Representative NORTHWAY. You say that the hospitals can give the
ages
Mr. MANN. I say you have the authority to get that information if
they have the records, and I suggest that this committee secure that
information, for, without it, such a comparison can not be made.

Mr. LEwis. There is only one thing more that I want to say, and that
is in regard to the Colored Foundling’s Home. When the Board of
Children’s Guardians was established this Colored Foundling’s Home
went out of existence, and since then the children have come tous. In
1891 the number of deaths in the Colored Home was —, with a daily
average cared for of —, and in 1894, when the Board had taken charge
of these children, the percentage of deaths was —,

Representative NORTHWAY. When you were here the other day you
spoke something, or one of the members of your Board, in regard to
establishing a sort of temporary place of detention or clearing house
for children, where they could he kept until disposed of into families.
If you had such a home, say, that their stay in your institution would
be a week, would not the mortality be the same?

Mr. LEwrs. No, sir; not at all. I do not wish to be understood as
redecting upon the management of the foundling asylums of the Dis-
tiict. I have been in these institutions at different times, and I do not
think there are any better ones anywhere,

Representative NORTHWAY. Then on what do you base your claim
of better results in the care of children by your Board?

Mr. LEw1s. On the plan of providing individual care for the children.

Representative NORTHWAY. But is one nurse worth any more in
her own home than in a hospital.

Mr. LEwis. Not at all; but she does not have six or a dozen children
to care for in the home as in the hospital. There seems to be some-
thing in the bringing together of large numbers of infants in one room
or in one building which is fatal. It is world-wide experience. And I
want to say in opposition to what has been stated that it is not the
fact that the foundling asylum has the approval of the enlightened
Governments of the world. It is not so. In England they are being
abandoned, and in France they are almost entirely abandoned. In the
State of Massachusetts they are not tolerated.

Mr. WELLER. Since when were they abandoned in France?

Mr. LEwIs. I can not tell you since when, but it is so reported in
works dealing with this subject.

Mr. WELLER. That is not the fact.
Mr. LEwis. The plan of providing individual care for every child is

a plan that is universally successful as compared with the other system.
It is true that the rate of mortality of children separated from their
mothers must be large, but it does not seem that 70 children out of 108,
‘ranging from birth to three years of age, must die in one year. If so,
it would certainly seem that it was time we were delving into our
experience and searching out something different. This plan, I believe,
of providing home care and home food for infants is one that will bring

forth much better results.
Representative NORTHWAY. Can you tell us where this home care

is provid